(__‘]"la{r]c(_;t()]'l Yexcellence is our standarc CCSD BOARD OF TRUSTEES

County SCHOOL DISTRICT AGENDA T
April 13, 2015 CHARLESIONACHIENING EXCELLENGE
75 Calhoun St., Charleston, SC 29401
Business
1.1: Legal Update Information/
The Board will receive a legal update. Action
1.2: Contractual Matter Information/
The Board will discuss a contractual matter related to the Superintendent search. Action
1.3: Personnel Matter - Miller, Collins, Garrett and Ducker Action
A. Sanders Clyde Principal Position
1.4. H. Property Purchase for Future East Cooper HS Campus Action
The Board will discuss a recommendation to approve a contract for the purchase of
roperty for the future East Cooper HS.

1. CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION/MOMENT OF SILENCE, & PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE

1. ADOPTION OF AGENDA Action

V. SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS (15 minutes) — Mrs. Erica Taylor, Executive Director of Recognitions
Strategy & Communications

A. Design Awards — Buist Academy and Wando CAS

B. National Association of Federal Education Program Administrators State
Leadership Award

C. SC Science Olympiad Award - Academic Magnet HS Team

D. NAEYC Accreditation

V. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT — Mr. Michael Bobby, Acting Superintendent of Schools
VI. VISITORS, PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS
VII. APPROVAL OF MINUTES/EXECUTIVE SESSION AGENDA ITEMS Action
7.1: Open Session Minutes of March 23, 2015 Action
The Board will vote on the open session minutes of March 23, 2015.
7.2: Executive Session Action Items of April 13, 2015 Action

The Board will consider a recommendation to approve executive session action items of
April 13, 2015.

7.3: Financial Minutes of the March 23, 2015 Action
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the financial minutes of March
23, 2015.
VIII. CAE UPDATE
1X. MANAGEMENT REPORT(S)
X. COMMITTEE REPORT(S)
10.1: Audit & Finance Committee — Mr. Todd Garrett
A. Audit & Finance Committee Update Information
The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on the
following:
-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward to
the Board;

-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward; and
-What is needed to move the item forward?




B. Head Start/Early Head Start Financials — January 2015 Action
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the Head Start/Early Head Start
Financials for January 2015.
C. Head Start/Early Head Start Financials — February 2015 Action
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the Head Start/Early Head Start
Financials for February 2015.
D. 2010-2016 Capital Building Program (Phase I11) — Wave 1 Savings Action
Reallocation
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the request to reallocate funds
from savings in Wave 1 Projects.
E. East Cooper Montessori Charter School Renewal Action
The Board consider on a recommendation to approve the renewal of the East Cooper
Montessori Charter School charter.
F. Pinehurst Elementary School Action
The Board will consider a recommendation to authorize staff to enter a contract for
design services for Pinehurst Elementary School.
G. Fixed Cost of Ownership Prioritized List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2016 Action
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the prioritized list of projects
under the capital budget for Fixed Cost of Ownership (FCO) for fiscal year 2015.
H. Property Purchase for Future East Cooper HS Campus — Moved to Action
Executive Session
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve a contract for the purchase of
property for the future East Cooper HS.
I. Request to Negotiate Use of Former Baxter Patrick Property and Partial Action
Use of the West Ashley Campus
The Board will consider a recommendation to negotiate the use of the former Baxter
Patrick property and a portion of the West Ashley property with the Charleston Public
Library.
10.2: Policy & Personnel Committee — Mr. Tripp Wiles
A. Policy Committee Update Information
The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on the
following:
-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward to
the Board;
-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward; and
-What is needed to move the item forward?
B. Policy BCA - Board Member Code of Ethics Action
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the second reading of Policy
BCA.
C. Policy JIH — Student Searches, Interrogations and Arrests Action
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the second reading of Policy JIH.
D. Policy IMG — Service Animals Action
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the second reading of Policy
IMG.
E. Policy BEDB-E — Board Agenda Action
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the first reading of a
recommendation to revise the agenda template.
F. Policy BEDH - Public Participation at Meetings Action
The Board will consider a recommendation to approve the first reading of a
recommendation to amend Policy BEDH,
10.3: Strategic Education Committee — Rev. Chris Collins
A. Strategic Education Committee Update Information

The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on the
following:

-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward to
the Board;

-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward, and

-What is needed to move the item forward?




XI.

POTENTIAL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

XI1.

NEW BUSINESS




_ounty SCHOOL DISTRICT
75 Calhoun Street, Charleston, SC 29401

HEAD START/EARLY HEAD START
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Michael L. Bobby
DATE: April 13, 2015

SUBJECT: Head Start/Early Head Start Financials

RECOMMENDATION: It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School District Board of

Trustees approve the revised Head Start/Early Head Start financial report for the ending period, January
1, 2015 to January 31, 2015.

The material is submitted for: X Action (] Iinformation
XI Open ] Executive

Respectfully submitted:

ol

Mr. Michael Bobby

Acting Superintendent of Schools {/m qﬂ/\
Dr. Lisa Herring AR5 L f\
Deputy Superintendent for Academics {
Mr. Jeff Borowy “ N/A

Deputy for Capital Programs

1P L




Head Start
April 13, 2015

SUBJECT:
Head Start/Early Head Start Financials

BACKGROUND:

In accordance to the Head Start Performance Standards 642(d)(2)(A), each Head Start
agency shall ensure the sharing of accurate and regular information for use by the
governing body and the policy council, about program planning, policies, and Head
Start agency operations, including — A) monthly financial statements, including credit
card expenditures. As requested by the Board Chair, we are resubmitting the financial
report for the period ending January 1, 2015 to January 31, 2015 to include the non-
federal share budget. Going forward, this format will be submitted to accurately reflect
the federal and non-federal share.

DISCUSSION:

The following Head Start and Early Head Start Financials are presented to the board for
review (January 2015). The Head Start/Early Head Start financials are presented to the
Board for approval on a monthly basis.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School District Board of Trustees
approve the revised Head Start/Early Head Start financial report for the ending period,
January 1, 2015 to January 31, 2015.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:
N/A

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

DATA SOURCES:
Financial data from MUNIS and credit card expenditure report from Procurement.

PREPARED BY:
Ruth Taylor, Assistant Associate Superintendent

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES
N/A

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES
N/A

ATTACHMENTS



CCSD HEAD START (FUND 841)
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 2015

2014 CARRYOVER PO'S

57,742.27

$ 57,742.27

| YEAR TO DATE JANUARY PERCENTAGE
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION FY15 BUDGET | EXPENDITURES | EXPENDITURE AVAILABLE BUDGET USED
TOTAL SALARIES S 4,100,645.26 | $ 2,000,214.07 S  447,253.201 5 - S 2,100,431.19 49%
TOTAL BENEFITS S 1,586,323.48 | $ 748,273.10 | $ 158,219.64 | 5 - |3 838,050.38 47%
TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES $ 233,348.10|$ 154,157.97 |$  19,902.70 | § 12,662.07 | $ 66,528.06 76%
TOTAL SUPPLIES S 239,537.65| 6 120,425.79 s 15,789.57 | & 6,053.75 | § 113,058.11 55%
TOTAL OTHER $ 368,671.51 | $ 3,028.80 | $ 1,788.80 | 5 . 18 365,642.71 1%
FY15 FEDERAL SHARE TOTALS $  6,528,526.00 | $ 3,026,099.73 | $ 642,953.91 S 18,715.82 | $ 3,483,710.45 47%
NON FEDERAL SHARE S ﬁmwwhwmbpui‘ S 756,524.93 S 160,738.48 s 875,607.07 47%
TOTAL FOR FY15 $  8,160,658.00 | $ 3,782,624.66 | $ 803,692.39 | $ 18,715.82 | $ 4,359,317.52 47%
S




CCSD HEAD START (FUND 841)
EXPENDITURES BREAKDOWN BY LOCATION
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 2015

| YEAR TO DATE JANUARY PERCENTAGE
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION | FY15 BUDGET | EXPENDITURES | EXPENDITURES | ENCUMBRANCE | REMAINING BUDGET USED
0151 HEADSTART/EHS/PRESCHOOL ¢ 1,781,582.23 (¢ 975,011.09|$ 182,426.41 | $ 12,204.14 | $ 794,367.00 55%
0309 MURRAY-LASAINE ELEMENTARY S 314,062.68 | $ 150,392.99 | 5  33,152.24 | S 541.99 | $ 163,127.70 48%
0411 CHILD & FAMILY DEVELOPMEN S 152,093.69 | $ 74,116.85|%  15,979.80 | $ 1,570.58 | S 76,406.26 50%
0412 CHICORA ELEMENTARY S 149,002.11 | $ 67,539.86 | &  15,994.19 | $ 0.04 | S 81,462.21 45%
0413 E A BURNS ELEMENTARY S 252,337.12 |5 126,902.39 /S  28,085.79 |5 - 18 125,434.73 50%
0415 LADSON ELEMENTARY S 24590293 |6 120,61966|S  51,08963 | S 508.43 | $ 124,774.84 49%
0421 W B GOODWIN ELEMENTARY S 311,033.46 | $ 146,390.18 | 6  32,524.33 | $ = K 164,643.28 47%
0422 MATILDA F DUNSTON ELEMENT S 228,597.06 | § 108,149.73 |$  25,350.25 | $ - S 120,447.33 47%
0425 A C CORCORAN ELEMENTARY S 154,701.95 | $ 74,24513|$ 2467297 | $ 428.00 | $ 80,028.82 48%
0426 MIDLAND PARK PRIMARY SCHO S 743,695.70 | § 302,201.52 | S  87,342.21 |5 196.89 | $ 441,297.29 41%
0504 ST JAMES-SANTEE ELEMENTAR S 219,264.75 |6  99,939.23|S  21,76458 | 5 - 18 119,325.52 46%
0655 WA HEAD START S 483,536.25 | § 212,153.81|$  47,655.71| S 2,263.26 | 269,119.18 44%
0752 THOMAS MYERS || 5 599,661.31 | $ 298,309.68 |5  31,468.39|$ - S 301,351.63 50%
0777 CHS COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES g 247.70 | § (58.52)| § (10,237.84)| $ - S 306.22 -24%
0810 E B ELLINGTON ELEMENTARY 3 228867.00 |5 131,98099|$  26,586.30 | $ 1,002.49 | $ 95,883.61 58%
0811 MINNIE HUGHES ELEMENTARY $ 85,872.25 | &  42,711.73 | S 7,053.14 | § - |s 43,160.52 50%
0906 MT ZION ELEMENTARY S 140,671.75 | S 60,858.03 |$  14,51368 | $ - |5 79,813.72 43%
0907 EDITH FRIERSON ELEMENTARY S 70,120.07 | $ 34,635.38|$ 7,532.13 | § - 18 35,484.69 49%
0999 SCHOOL-WIDE ACCOUNTS $ 367,275.90 | § - |5 - 5 - |5 367,275.90 0%
FY15 FEDERAL SHARE TOTALS ———— & 6,528526-00-|-$3,026,099.73-| 5 642,953.91 { $  18,715.82 |5 3,483,71045 | 47%|
NON FEDERAL SHARE §  1,632,132.00| 6 756,524.93 | $ 160,738.48 S 875,607.07 46%
TOTAL FOR FY15 $ 8,160,658.00 | § 3,782,624.66 | 5 803,692.39 | § 18,715.82 | 4,359,317.52 47%
2014 CARRYOVER PO'S S 57,742.27 |5 57,742.27 | S - |S - |$% - 100%




CCSD HEAD START (FUND 841)

EXPENDITURES BREAKDOWN BY OBJECT

FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 2015

YEAR TO DATE JANUARY PERCENTAGE
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION FY15 BUDGET XPENDITURES | EXPENDITURES | ENCUMBRANCE | AVAILABLE BUDGET USED

110 ADMINISTRATIVE SALARY 5 528,208.77 | § 294,31068 | S 66,615.34 | $ - |s 233,898.09 56%
112 TEACHER/PROFESSIONAL ED SA 3 628,148.11 | S 304678315 69,734.02 | $ - s 323,469.80 49%
113 PROFESSIONAL OTHER SALARY 5 158,993.15 | $  98,554.71 | 5 17,411.45 | $ = Ig 60,438.44 62%
114 TECHNICAL SALARY S 26,387.20 | $  12,70490 | S 2,931.90 | $ - 15 13,682.30 48%
115 TEACHER AST/CLERICAL SALAR $  2,756,897.55 | & 1,289,226.39 | $ 292,379.49 | $ - s 1,467,671.16 47%
135 OVERTIME SALARY - T AST/CL 3 1,710.48 | § 439.08 | § {2,119.00) $ - s 1,271.40 26%
142 SUPPLEMENTAL SALARY $ 300.00 | 6 300.00 | $ 300.00 | $ - 18 - 100%
210 GROUP HEALTH AND LIFE INS 3 586,392.15 | & 268,157.62 | $ 50,249.36 | $ = I8 318,234.53 46%
220 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 5 650,256.39 | § 317,135.76 | 71,113.76 | $ - 18 333,120.63 49%
230 SOCIAL SECURITY $ 312,869.89 | & 145,265.65 | 5 32,836.45 | $ - |3 167,604.24 46%
260 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION $ 4,089.48 | & 1,968.87 | & 446.85 | $ - s 2,120.61 48%
270 WKRS' COMP - REIMB OTHR F 5 32,71557 | &  15,745.20 | § 3,573.22 % = 18 16,970.37 48%
319 LEGAL SERVICES S 8,700.00 | § - S - 5 - S 8,700.00 0%
320 PROPERTY SERVICES $ 15,000.00 | $ - IS - |8 - 1S 15,000.00 0%
321 PUBLIC UTIL SVS WATER/SEWA $ 12,788.80 | § 6,143.82 | $ 656.47 | $ - 18 6,644.98 48%
322 OUTSOURCED SUBSTITUTES 3 31,911.35 (% 3093921 | 6,368.11 | $ - |8 972.14 97%
323 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE SR S - |8 - |$% - |3 - | -
324 PROPERTY INSURANCE S 18,051.40 |$  16,400.00 | § - 1s - 15 1,651.40 91%
325 RENTALS/LEASE 3 8,585.98 [ $ 4,468.78 | $ -« 13 - |5 4,117.20 52%
332 IN STATE TRAVEL S 10,000.00 | $ 6,576.26 | § 983.82 | $ - |s 3,423.74 66%
333 CURRICULUM FIELD TRIP TRAN $ 2,068.00 | S 690.96 | $ 564.00 | 5 1,377.04 | $ « 100%
338 OUT OF STATE TRAVEL —— $ 19,087.19 | $ 9,621.67 | $ B . 9,465.52 50%
339 OTHER TRANSPORTATION SERVI S 2,597.70 | $ 2,250.43 | § - |$ - $ 347.27 87%
340 COMMUNICATION (TELEPHONE) 5 16,27058 | $  11,707.58 | S 3,593.67 | S - 18 4,563.00 72%
342 PAGER/CELL PHONE RENT/MESG $ 21,00000 |$  15,837.32|% 2,490.07 | S = % 5,162.68 75%
345 TECHNOLOGY PURCHASED SERVI $ 108.50 | $ 10850 | § - s S - 100%
350 ADVERTISING $ 9,000.00 | $ 6,278.55 | 5 - s - 18 2,721.45 70%
360 PRINTING AND BINDING S 5,541.69 | § 493716 | $ 1,19153 | $ -~ |8 604.53 89%
399 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES $ 52,63691 |$  38,197.73 | 4,055.03 | $ 11,285.03 | $ 3,154.15 94%
410 SUPPLIES 3 169,319.49 |$  81,70563 | 5 7,076.36 | $ 5,005.21 | $ 82,608.65 51%




CCSD HEAD START (FUND 841)
EXPENDITURES BREAKDOWN BY OBJECT
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 2015

YEAR TO DATE JANUARY PERCENTAGE
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION FY15 BUDGET | EXPENDITURES | EXPENDITURES | ENCUMBRANCE | AVAILABLE BUDGET USED

412 POSTAGE $ 653.28 | $ 561.23 | $ - |5 - |s 92.05 86%
417 FOOD AND CATERING S 9,379.79 | $ 2,763.13 | 99959 | § - 13 6,616.66 29%
445 TECHNOLOGY SUPPLIES s 5581.19 | $ 2,002.64 | $ 21375 - |3 3,488.55 37%
446 TECHNOLOGY SOFTWARE s 3,627.88 | S 3,627.88 | $ - |8 - $ - 100%
447 TECHNOLOGY COMPUTERS S - 1§ - 1% - |8 - |S -
448 TECHNOLOGY PERIPHERALS S 1,348.54 | § 286.69 | $ 214.84 | § 1,048.54 | & 13.31 99%
470 ENERGY $ 43,590.83 | $  26,921.75 |5 6,941.29 | $ - 1§ 16,669.08 62%
472 GASOLINE S 6,036.65 | $ 2,466.84 | $ 343.74 | S - |s 3,569.81 41%
640 ORGANIZATION MEMSHP DUES/F 3 2,000.00 | $ 1,240.00 | $ - |$ - 1S 760.00 62%
690 OTHER OBIJECTS S 129,518.46 | $ - s - |8 - 13 129,518.46 0%
692 SOLID WASTE FEE 3 1,788.80 | $ 1,788.80 | § 1,788.80 | § - |s - 100%
791 INDIRECT COST S 235,364.25 | $ - 1$ - |8 - |8 235,364.25 0%
FY15 FEDERAL SHARE TOTALS $  6,528,526.00 | $ 3,026,099.73 | $ 642,953.91 | $ 18,715.82 | $ 3,483,710.45 47%
FY15 NON FEDERAL SHARE S  1,632,13200[% 75652493 |$ 160,738.48 $ 875,607.07 46%
TOTAL FOR FY15 N S 8,160,658.00 | $ 3,782,624.66 | 5 803,692.39 | § 18,715.82 | $ 4,359,317.52 47%
2014 CARRYOVER PO'S S 57,742.27 1%  57,742.27 | 5 - IS - |5 - 100%




CCSD EARLY HEAD START (FUND 842)

FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 2015

YEAR TO DATE JANUARY PERCENTAGE
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION FY15 BUDGET EXPENDITURES | EXPENDITURES | ENCUMBRANCE AVAILABLE BUDGET USED
TOTAL SALARIES S 1,125,716.83 | $ 560,499.68 | $ 101,896.80 | $ - S 565,217.15 50%
TOTAL BENEFITS $ 432,21955 | $ 199,863.98 | S 35,320.71 | $ = S 232,355.57 46%
TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES $ 74,641.27 | 39,201.19 | $ 3,837.29 | 3,82085 | $ 31,619.23 69%
TOTAL SUPPLIES S 51,615.64 | $ 22,756.13 | 5 3,971.84 | 5 1,086.79 | 5 27,772.72 49%
TOTAL OTHER S 63,867.71 | 757.20 | $ 447.20 | S : S 63,110.51 1%
FY15 FEDERAL SHARE TOTALS S 1,748,061.00 | S 823,078.18 | $ 145473.84 | % 4,907.64 | $ 520,075.18 47%
NON FEDERAL SHARE S 437,015.00 | $ 205,769.55 | $ 36,368.46 5 231,245.46 47%
TOTAL FOR FY15 $ llm_h.mm.cua.co $ 1,028,847.73 | $ 181,842.30 | $ nmuu.mh S 1,156,228.28 47%
2014 CARRYOVER PO'S S 31,80241 S 31,802.41 100%




CCSD EARLY HEAD START (FUND 842)
EXPENDITURES BREAKDOWN BY LOCATION
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 2015

YEAR TO DATE JANUARY PERCENTAGE
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION FY15 BUDGET EXPENDITURES | EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCE AVAILABLE BUDGET USED

0151 HEADSTART/EHS/PRESCHOOL 410,459.35 172,030.23 17,535.33 3,486.85 234,942.27 43%
0411 CHILD & FAMILY DEVELOPMEN 277,383.59 147,765.45 30,576.00 1,361.11 128,257.03 54%
0426 MIDLAND PARK PRIMARY SCHO 159,197.23 87,912.85 20,803.90 0.00 71,284.38 55%
0454 R B STALL HIGH 177,853.43 98,198.39 17,955.24 0.00 79,655.04 55%
0504 ST JAMES-SANTEE ELEMENTAR 159,414.55 62,470.42 14,611.68 59.68 96,884.45 39%
0655 WA HEAD START 161,682.17 88,550.27 16,525.08 0.00 73,131.50 55%
0752 THOMAS MYERS Il 125,254.45 57,330.06 9,522.28 0.00 67,924.39 46%
0777 CHS COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES 212,675.05 107,699.84 17,944.33 0.00 104,975.21 51%
0999 SCHOOL-WIDE ACCOUNTS 64,141.18 1,120.67 0.00 0.00 63,020.51 2%
FY1S FEDERAL SHARE TOTALS S 1,748,061.00 | S 823,078.18 | $ 145473.84 | S 4,907.64 | $ 920,075.18 47%
NON FEDERAL SHARE S 437,015.00 | § 205,769.55 | S 36,368.46 $ 231,245.46 47%
TOTAL FOR FY15 $ 2,185,076.00 | $ 1,028,847.73 | 5 181,842.30 | § 4,907.64 | $ 1,156,228.28 47%
NS SER e == G
2014 CARRYOVER PO'S $ 31,802.41 | 31,802.41 100%




CCSD EARLY HEAD START (FUND 842)
EXPENDITURE BREAKDOWN BY OBJECT
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 2015

YEAR TO DATE JANUARY PERCENTAGE
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION " FY15BUDGET | EXPENDITURES | EXPENDITURES | ENCUMBRANCE AVAILABLE BUDGET USED

110 ADMINISTRATIVE SALARY $ 204,417.96 | $  79,365.13 | § 9,339.36 | $ ~ IS 125,052.83 39%
113 PROFESSIONAL OTHER SALARY 3 38,012.55 | $  23,084.06 | S 4,352,86 | $ - |8 14,928.49 61%
114 TECHNICAL SALARY s 20,031.25 |$  10,828.93 | $ 1,971.94 | S - £8 9,202.32 54%
115 TEACHER AST/CLERICAL SALAR s 862,317.13 | $ 446,283.62 |$  86,232.64 | $ s |8 416,033.51 52%
135 OVERTIME SALARY - T AST/CL g 937.94 | $ 93794 | $ - ] - '8 - 100%
210 GROUP HEALTH AND LIFE INS S 157,211.11|$  64,682.66 | $  10,658.43 | - s 92,528.45 41%
220 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT $ 178,839.86 | $ 88,876.54 | $  16,201.58 | - |3 89,963.32 50%
230 SOCIAL SECURITY 3 86,04557 | $  41,313.97|$ 7,541.66 | 5 - |3 44,731.60 48%
260 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 5 1,124.77 | 554.31 | $ 101.78 | § = I'E 570.46 49%
270 WKRS' COMP - REIMB OTHR F 5 8,998.24 | § 4,436.50 | § 817.26 | 5 - |s 4,561.74 49%
321 PUBLIC UTIL SVS WATER/SEWA s 500.00 | S 447.20 | § ~ S - S 52.80 89%
322 OUTSOURCED SUBSTITUTES 3 20,49451|¢  15,073.30 | § 2,428.60 | $ - 1 5,421.21 74%
323 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE SR S (1,168.75)| S (1,168.75)] $ - 15 - |8 - 100%
324 PROPERTY INSURANCE $ 4,100.00 | $ 4,100.00 | $ - = |8 - 100%
325 RENTALS/LEASE 5 1,267.20 {5 1,117.20 | 5 - S - 5 150.00 88%
332 IN STATE TRAVEL S 9,602.72 | $ 3,14357 | § 137.40 | $ - s 6,459.15 33%
338 OUT OF STATE TRAVEL $ 4,474.47 | $ 2,822.46 | $ - 3 - |$ 1,652.01 63%
339 OTHER TRANSPORTATION SERVI $ 574.41 | $ 548.22 | § = I & = 18 26.19 95%
350 ADVERTISING 3 139.63 | 139.63 | $ - |$ - |3 - 100%
360 PRINTING AND BINDING S 2,755.08 | $ 2,522.98 | § 319.00 | § - |8 232.10 92%
399 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES S 31,902.00|$  10,455.38 | S 952,29 | § 3,820.85 | $ 17,625.77 45%
410 SUPPLIES S 45363.85|% 20521105 3,142.20 | $ 1,086.79 | $ 23,755.96 48%
412 POSTAGE S 201.12 | $ 138.32 | $ = 18 - 18 62.80 69%
417 FOOD AND CATERING S 1,500.00 | $ 34694 | S 249.90 | § - |8 1,153.06 23%
445 TECHNOLOGY SUPPLIES S 2,725.00 | 5 1,613.58 | § 579.74 | $ - 18 1,111.42 59%
446 TECHNOLOGY SOFTWARE S 118.22 | § 118.22 | § - |$ - |S - 100%
447 TECHNOLOGY COMPUTERS 3 74515 745 |5 - | - |8 - 100%
448 TECHNOLOGY PERIPHERALS S 1,700.00 | § 1052 | § - S - s 1,689.48 1%
640 ORGANIZATION MEMSHP DUES/F S 400.00 | § 310.00 | § - |8 - 18 90.00 78%
690 OTHER OBIJECTS S - |$ - | $ - |S - 1S -
692 SOLID WASTE FEE $ 447.20| $ 44720 | $ 447.20 | § - | - 100%




CCSD EARLY HEAD START (FUND 842)
EXPENDITURE BREAKDOWN BY OBJECT
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 2015

[ YEARTODATE |  JANUARY PERCENTAGE

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION  FY15BUDGET | EXPENDITURES | EXPENDITURES | ENCUMBRANCE | AVAILABLE BUDGET USED
791 INDIRECT COST S 63,02051 | $ - F& - s ~ s 63,020.51 0%
FY15 FEDERAL SHARE TOTALS S 1748,061.00 | S 82307818 | S 145473.84 |5 4,907.64 | § 920,075.18 7%
FY15 NON FEDERAL SHARE € 43701500 |5 205769555  36,368.46 5 231,245.46 7%
TOTAL FOR FY15 S 2,185,076.00 | 5 1,028,847.73 | § 181,842.30 | 2,907.64 | 1,156,228.28 a7%
2014 CARRYOVER PO'S 5 3180241 | 5 31,802.41 - S - 100%




Company Name CHARLESTON COUNTY SCHOOL DIST

Grp One of 0151 EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION (RUTH TAYLOR)
, TOSHIBA CHAMPAIGNE or 0151 EARLY GHILDHOOD EDUCATION 3
P Card Spend for Ruth Taylor's (RUTH TAYLOR) Christine Buck
Post Date Between 2015-01-01 00:00:00 and 2015-01-30 23:50:59

Report Owner AUSTIN, KACEY
Report Time 2015-02-01 10:13:26
Transaction Type One of: Cash advance or Misc Credit or Misc Debit or Purchase or

Payment
CH Full Name
Post Date Purchase Date  Item Description Item Price ftem Tax  Total Card Spend
HILL. ALl
01/07/2015 01/06/2015 WM SUPERCENTER #3367 - Purchase 43.88 0.00 43.88
01/07/2015 01/06/2015 tax 0.00 0.66 0.66
01/07/2015 01/06/2015 Wi SUPERCENTER #3367 - Purchase 4.77 0.00 4.77
01/07/2015 D1/06/2015 fax 0.00 0.41 0.41
01/07/2015 01/06/2015 WAL-MART #3367 - Purchase 17.54 0.00 17.54
01/07/2015 01/06/2015 tax 0.00 0.26 0.26
01/21/2015 01/20/2015 WAL-MART #0632 - Purchase 5.06 0.00 5.96
01/21/2015 01/20/2015 tax 0.00 0.08 0.09
01/21/2015 01/20/12015 WAL-MART #0632 - Purchase 54.85 0.00 54 85
01/21/2015 01/20/2015 tax 0.00 0.82 0.82
01/26/2015 01/23/2015 PIZZA HUT 013758 - Purchase 43.73 0.00 43.73
01/26/2015 01/23/2015 Pizza Hut 10.93 0,00 1093
01/28/2015 01/27/2015 RITE AID STORE #11611 - Purchase 9.63 0.00 9.63
count: 13 191.28 2.24 183.53
JOWERS, GLENNETT
01/14/2015 01/13/2015 WM SUPERCENTER #3367 - Purchase 11.94 0.00 11.94
01/14/2015 01/13/2015 tax 0.00 1.01 1.01
01/14/2015 01/13/2015 WAL-MART #3367 - Purchase 73.18 0.00 73.18
01/14/2015 01/13/2016 tax 0.00 6.22 6.22
01/14/2015 01/13/2015 WM SUPERCENTER #3367 - Purchase B7.50 0.00 87.50
01/14/2015 01/13/2015 fax 0.00 B.99 8.99
01/14/2015 01/13/2018 walmart 24,12 0.00 2412
count: 7 196.74 16.22 212.96
MAGWOOD, DENA
01/18/2015 01/16/2015 PUBLIX #472 - Purchase 14.81 0.00 14.81
01/18/2015 01/16/2015 tax 0.00 0.48 0.48
01/18/2015 01/16/2015 Publix 3.82 0.00 3.82
01/22/2015 01/24/2015 STAPLST7130464976000001 - Purchase 473.89 0.00 473.89
0112212015 01/21/2015 tax 0.00 51.44 51.44

AUSTIN, KACEY 1 of 4 2015-02-01 10:13:26



CH Full Name

Post Date Purchase Date  Item Description Item Price ltem Tax  Total Card Spend
01/22/2015 01/21/2015 Staples 131.33 0.00 131.33
01/23/2015 01/22/2015 PUBLIX #472 - Purchase 42.19 0.00 42,19
01/23/2015 01/22/2015 tax 0.00 1.65 1.65
01/23/2015 01/22/2015 Publix 10.96 0.00 10,96
count: 9 G677.00 53.57 730.57
ROCK, AVIS
01/06/2015 01/05/2015 APPALACHIAN SPRINGS - Purchase 13.80 0.00 13.80
01/07/2015 01/05/2015 SC.GOV - Purchase 51.85 0.00 51.85
01/09/2015 01/08/2015 STAPLS7129715618000001 - Purchase 180.49 0.00 180.49
01/08/2015 01/08/2015 tax 0.00 19.59 19.59
01/09/2015 01/08/2015 Staples 50.02 0.00 50.02
01/12/2015 01/10/2015 STAPLS7129901892000002 - Purchase 34,90 0.00 34.99
01/12/2015 01/10/2015 tax 0.00 2.87 2.97
01/12/2015 01/10/2015 siaples 226.44 0.00 226.44
01/12/2015 01/10/2015 lax 19.25 0.00 19.25
01/13/120156 01/12/2015 SNPFINGERONLINEFOODORDER - Purchase 106.71 0.00 106.71
01/13/2015 01/12/2015 easlt bay deli 26.68 0.00 26.68
01/15/2015 01/14/2015 STAPLS7130128612000001 - Purchase 195,37 0.00 195,37
01/15/2015 01/14/2015 tax 0.00 16.61 16.61
01/15/20156 01/14/2015 STAPLS7129901892000001 - Purchase 36.72 0.00 36.72
01/15/2015 01/14/2015 tax 0.00 312 312
01/15/2015 01/13/2016 KAPLAN EARLY LEARN - Purchase 50.79 0.00 50.79
01/15/2015 01/13/2015 §C.GOV - Purchase 224.54 0.00 224,54
01/15/2015 01/13/2015 SC.Gov - Purchase 56.14 0.00 56.14
01/19/2015 01/16/2015 JASON'S DELI CHL #192 - Purchase 192.45 D0.00 192.45
01/19/2015 01/16/2015 Jason's Deli 48.11 0.00 48.11
01/2712015 01/26/2015 551 CLASSROOM DIRECT - Purchase 1,100.71 0.00 1,100.71
01/27/2015 01/26/2015 tax 0.00 93.53 93.53
01/28/2015 01/26/2015 SC.GOV - Purchase 407.80 0.00 407.80
01/29/2015 01/28/2015 STAPLS0131483903000001 - Purchase 80.97 0.00 80.97
01/29/2015 01/28/2015 lax 0.00 5.88 6.88
count: 25 3,103.83 142.70 3,246.53
SCROGGY, GILBERT
01/08/2015 01/07/2015 LOWES #00B55 - Purchase 18.01 0.00 18.01
01/08/2015 01/07/2015 tax 0.00 1.63 1.53
01/12/2015 01/08/2015 LOWES #00655 - Purchase 12.92 0.00 12.92
01/12/2015 01/08/2015 tax 0.00 1.10 1.10

AUSTIN, KACEY

2 of 4

2015-02-01 10:13:26



CH Full Name

AUSTIN, KACEY

3 of 4

Post Date Purchase Date  ltem Description Item Price ftem Tax Total Card Spend
01/16/2015 01/15/2015 LOWES #00497 - Purchase 24.49 0.00 24.49
01/16/2015 01/15/2015 tax 0.00 2.08 2.08
01/19/2015 01/16/2015 WW GRAINGER - Purchase 1.068.75 0.00 1,068.75
01/18/2015 01/16/2015 tax 0.00 90.85 90.85
01/21/2015 01/20/2015 LOWES #02948 - Purchase 19.52 0.00 19,52
01/21/2015 012002015 tax 0.00 1.37 1.37
01/26/2015 01/23/2015 FERGUSON ENT #23 - Purchase 226.58 0.00 226,58
01/27/120156 01/26/2015 LOWES #00655 - Purchase 19.88 0.00 19.98
01/27/2015 01/26/2015 tax , 0.00 1.70 1.70
01/30/2015 0112812015 LOWES #00661 - Purchase 26.06 0.00 26.06
01/30/2015 01/29/2015 tax 0.00 222 2.22
count: 15 1,416.31 100.85 1,517.16
WATERS, PAMELA
01/07/2016 01/06/2015 US TOY/CONSTR PLAYTHINGS - Purchase 1.382.70 0.00 1,382.70
01/08/2015 01/06/2015 LAKESHORE LEARNING MATER - Purchase 1.430.10 0.00 1,430.10
01/08/12015 01/06/2015 tax 0.00 121.56 121.66
01/12/2015 09/08/2015 STAPLES 00115832 - Purchase 309.45 0.00 309.45
01/12/2015 01/08/2015 tax 0.00 2427 24,27
01/12/2016 01/10/2015 STAPLS0130973577001001 - Credit (124.43) 0,00 (124.43)
01/12/2015 0110/2015 fax 0.00 (10.58) (10.58)
01122015 01/09/2015 STAPLES 00115832 - Purchase 1.855.19 0.00 1,855.19
0112/2016 01/09/2015 tax 0.00 15769 157.69
01/14/2015 01/12/2015 WAL-MART #2348 - Purchase 35.74 0.00 35.74
01/14/2015 01/12/2015 fax 0.00 3.04 3.04
01/14/2015 01/12/2015 STAPLES 00115832 - Purchase 7712 0.00 77.12
01/14/2015 01/12/2015 fax 0.00 5.56 6.56
01/15/2015 01/14/2015 WM SUPERCENTER #2348 - Purchase 31.15 0.00 31.15
01/15/2015 01/14/2015 lax 0.00 0.58 0.58
01/15/2015 01/14/2015 Walmart 7.79 0.00 7.79
01/16/2015 01/15/2015 HARRIS TEETER #0087 - Purchase 20,85 D.00 20.85
01/16/2015 01/15/2015 lax 0.00 061 0.61
01/16/2015 01/15/2015 VWM SUPERCENTER #632 - Purchase 73.08 0.00 73.08
01/16/2015 01/15/2015 lax 0,00 1.40 1.40
01/16/2015 01/14/2015 STAPLES 00115832 - Purchase 50.19 0.00 58.19
01/16/2015 01/14/2015 tax 0.00 5.03 5.03
01/16/2015 01/15/2015 MCALISTER'S DEL! - Purchase 960.30 0.00 960.30
01/23/2015 01/22/2015 WALGREENS #6075 - Purchase 11.99 0.00 11.99

2015-02-01 10:13:26



CH Full Name

Post Date Purchase Date  Item Description Item Price Item Tax Total Card Spend
01/23/2015 01/22/12015 tax 0.00 1.02 1.02

count: 25 6,130.22 311.18 6,441.40
report count: 94 11,715.39 6526.76 12,342.15

AUSTIN, KACEY

4 of 4

2015-02-01 10:13:26



Wawowilnnog 1 oyl stendard
7 SCHOOL DISTRICT

75 Calhoun Street, Charleston, SC 29401

HEAD START/EARLY HEAD START
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Michael L. Bobby
DATE: April 13, 2015

SUBJECT: Head Start/tarly Head Start Financials

RECOMMENDATION: It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School District Board of

Trustees approve the Head Start/Early Head Start financial report for the period ending, February 1,
2015 to February 28, 2015.

The material is submitted for: X Action ] Information
X Open [ Executive

Respectfully submitted:

Mr. Michae! Bobby )/%
Acting Superintendent of Schools ,W

7 F

Dr. Lisa Herring =~
Deputy Superintendent for Academics

Mr. Jeff Borowy N/A
Deputy for Capital Pregrams

Ruth Taylor
Assistant Associate Superintendent

Committee Recommendation{s}:

Audit and Finance Committee recommendation:

Mr. Todd Garrett, Chair
Audit & Finance Committee




Head Start
April 13, 2015

SUBJECT:
Head Start/Early Head Start Financials

BACKGROUND:

In accordance to the Head Start Performance Standards 642(d}{2)(A), each Head Start
agency shali ensure the sharing of accurate and regular information for use by the
governing body and the policy council, about program planning, policies, and Head
Start agency operations, including - A) monthly financial statements, including credit
card expenditures.

DISCUSSION:

The following Head Start and Early Head Start Financials are presented to the board for
review (February 2015). The Head Start/Early Head Start financials are presented to
the Board for approval on a monthly basis.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School District Board of Trustees
approve the Head Start/Early Head Start financial report for the period ending,
February 1, 2015 to February 28, 2015.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:
N/A

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

DATA SOURCES:
Financial data from MUNIS and credit card expenditure report from Procurement.

PREPARED BY:
Ruth Taylor, Assistant Associate Superintendent

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES
N/A

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES
N/A

ATTACHMENTS



981627 §

Bang

107 AMVNUIAA QOTNAd AHL Y04
(I#8 AN LAVLS QVIH dSDD

LTTVL LS S| LTTvLLs S 5.0d HIAOAHEYD ¥T0Z
WES E6'SIT'908'E S| Lrsle 0L S| 66°T00°T5S  $ | 59°9Z9'EEEY S | 00'8S9'09T'E 5 STAd HO4 IYLOL
%ES L9°80¥'G9¢ 35 Oy'00Z'0TT S| €€°62£'998 S| O0'ZET'ZEST ¢ JHYHS TvE 3034 NON
%ES Q7 E0L'OV0'E S| T¥sisny S 65080y S| ZETO6'99F'E S| 00'9TS'8eSa 9 STI0L JHYHS TYYI03d STA
%1 TLTr9'59E S - S - S | 09870t S| 15°1£9°89¢ 3 HIHLO TYLOL
%55 £1'970'86 S| 0gveEsIT S1ERDSL'S S1ZL9LT'OET 5 | 59LEG'65T g $INddins 1YLOL
9L 6YTEE'GY S| 790856 Steeese'or S| 6LPEY VLT S | OT'BYPE'EET S SIHAYIS dISYHIUNG TVLOL
%Ly |E0L8 B/ S - S|OSE6THIT S ]097/vL98 S| 8P ECE9IRS'T 4 SEIAIANAE IVIOL
6D $9'05R'308°T g - S| vevisIer S 9z’ S’ 00T Y $ 54

HYIYS Y101
Waos




%00T - Sl - s - S{LTIvl’is S| LTTYLLS s 5,0d HIADAYYYD 102
%EG E6'STI'908'E S 1 IVSI6’0e $ | 66'T00T5% S| $9°9Z9°€EE’y S | 00'BSS'09T'E § STAd ¥O4 TWLOL
%ES £9'90F'59{ S OFQ0Z'0TT S| E£°624'998 5 1 00ZETZes’t & JHYHS TYHIGId NON
%ES 97604 OVP0'E $ 1 ZvSIe'or 5165 TOROPY S| ZETO6'99Y'E 009268259 & STYLOL THYHS 1vH3034 STAS
%0 06'GLT'L9E $ {000 - s - $106'G/7°/9¢ $ SINNODIY IGM-TO0OHIS 6660
%45 92'9/0'0E $ {000 € 80%S IgEV0'0yr S| L00ETOL $ AYVINIANTIT NOSYI S HLIGT LO6D
%1S £5°605'69 $ {000 61 ¥0E07 TTEIT'TL 5 SLTL905T $ AYYININITTI NOIZ LN 9060
%65 €T LZTSE S {000 67 EE6L ZOSHO'0S S| SZTLR'SY S AYYENIATTI SIHDNH JINNHA TT80
%£9 ST9TESL S |zgeeo’c £ET 16881 TU2480ST S| 60°298°8¢7¢ $ AHYINIWITI NOLDNITIZ 8 3 0T8O
%9 vLTEL $ 1000 87 ELT SEVTT s | osive % SIDIAHIS NYWNNH ALNNOD SHD ££20
%45 G0'986°967 s looo 45 E9ETH 9TELYOFE S | TET99'665 $ I SYIAN SYINOHL 2520
%15 BR'96T'LET S lozegze £ TTBIE IUSL6'EPT S | GT'9ES'ERY S L1HYLS QVIH ¥AA $590
%L SOU'65.P0T s {ooo L7'995¢71 0508 %11 &5 | S2°992°61¢ S HYLNIATTI FALNVS-STNYS LS FOS0
%8 60'YZ0'68E S 067252 6T 8YE6Y TLEPTTSE S | OL°S69ERL S OHDS AHYINIYG NHVYd QNYIAIA 92F0
%95 0T0¥0'29 5 |o6's9¢ 8050TT S6'662°98 S| S6'T0LPST g AYYLNIAT1I NYHOOIHOD D ¥ S2F0
%GS5 ST LZS'€0T $ looo 8107691 16'690°62T S| 90°(65'8TZ S ANTNTIT NOLISNNG 4 YAILYIN 2250
%S 90°029'TVT $ (000 LTETOEL OV EIF'69T S | O EE0'TIE S AYVINIANTII NIMAOOS 9 M TZH0
%L 9£°668°S0T S |EE 9ty 8T /E681 Y8955 '6ET S | £6'T06°SYE S AYTLINIINGTI NOSOVT STPO
%8S 98 £v0'S0T s looD L9 06807 9UEGTLYT  § | TTLEETSE $ AYYINTAZTI SNYNA ¥ I ETH0
%ES T£292'D4 S |p00 SPETTT 9E'veEL'8L S| TTZ00'6YT 3 AYYANINTTI YHODIHD 2170
%L5 00°8£099 $ |vS8Iv'T £'08v01 STL6S'VB S 1 69E60ZST S NINLONIAIA ANNYS B QUHD T1H0
%3G OT'OT6'9ET s loT0TE" 6E6YYSE BEZYE'SLT S 1 BYTY0VIE $ AYYENTATIT INIVSYT-AYHENIN 6050
%L9 vO9TLGLS S |EVOI6s LOPY60ET 91'956'S60'T S | ETT8S18L°T TOCHISTud/SHI/LUVLSAYIH 1510

€

SI0C AHVIHEHAd dOYAd AHL Y04

NOILYDOT A NAOMIVIYEG STINLIANEIXA

(1v8 ANNA) LUVLS AVIH ASDD

Ol N0




SS'8LOPET
50

SI07 AUVNUIAA AOIHAd FHL Y04
LDACHO A9 NAAOMAVIEY STUNLIANTIXT
(18 GNNA) LUVLES AVIH dSOD

%65 8€°6/5'89 S | 9z9gz’01 slzzspis S|SRESY06 % | 6V ETEBIT S $311ddNs 0Tt
%56 I8'T6+Z s | 8868E'8 S | 67 L55°E S| ZTssi iy 5| 16'9£9°ES 5 SINAHIS QISYHIYNC HIHLO 66F
%68 £5'9D9 S - 5 - 519186y 5 | 69°TVS’S S ONIONIS ANV DONILNIYG 098
%0L SPITLT S1 - S $ 1558429 S | 00°000°6 s ONISILYIAQY OGE
%00T - 5 - 5 - 5109801 < | oggot g IAYIS JISYHOUNd ADOTONHDAL S¥E
%L% 19°7L9°C S - S| L0006V S{6E/ZERT S| 00000'1Z 5 953N/ LNTY INOHd T133/4939vd ThE
%03 FLOBT'E $ - $ | 97ZBET S| UVEER0'ET S| 850L79T S {INOH4TTIL) NOILYDINNININGD OFE
%L8 LTLYE S - 5 - S | erose'e S 10LL682 5 IAYIS NOILVIHOJSNYY L YIHLO 656
%05 75°59%°6 S 51 - S| 91298 S| 618061 13 TIAVYL 3LVLS 40 LNO BEE
%00T - S| PLOBTT $ 10981 slovies $ 1008902 $ NVHL 411 Q13 ANTADIYYND £E€
%8 Z0'ZI8'L st - S|zttt $186£81'9 $ 1 00°000°0T § TIAVYL JLVLS Ni ZEE
%S 0T LIT'Y S - S - S |88 5 | 866858 $ ISYIV/SIVLINIY S2E
%16 OP'189°T S - sl - STO000P'9T S OVIS0RT 4§ IONVHNSNI ALHId0Hd $TE

- S - 51 - S| - S| - S ¥S IONVYNILNIVIA ONY SHIVdIY E2E
%671 (08'0SE6) 5 - S| PEECEDT SIST29ZTy 5| SETIEIE S SALNLIESENS QIDUNOSLNO F7E
%S ¥6'816°S 3 - ¢ | voozs S | 98°698'g S 1 08'88L°71 3 YMIS/HIIYM SAS 1IN 11804 TZE
%0 00'000°ST S - 5 - 5 - S | 00'000'ST S $321AY3IS ALHIE0Nd OTE
%0 D0'004'8 s - 5 - 5 - 51 0000L8 i SIHAYIS TvDTT 6IE
%SG 76'LE9'PT $ S | GPTEET S|SULLOBT 5| L5GTLEE S 4 HH1O ST - dINOD SUNM 04T
%55 ET'6Z8'T S| - 5 | 8r'i6z $ | SE09TC S| 87680y $ NOILYSNIdINOD LINIWAOTINING 09T
%ES 9°£99°9¢T $ - S | 090¥60T $18Z902'99T 5 | 69'698°CIE S ALIND3S WIDCS Q8T
%9% 59°(BLGET $ - S | 86 CEE9Y S| PLBIVEGE S | 6E°957°059 s INIWIHILIY FTAOTAING 077
%S V5 TE6'89T $ - $ | 66'TOE6Y S T965YLTE  $ ] STZ66°98% S SNI 3417 GNY HLTYIH dNOYD 017
%001 - g - S s $ | 0000€ S | 00008 4 AHVIVS TYINFAT144NS THT
%9E £9°L60T S - S| LLELT 558719 S|8FOTLT S TI/1SV L~ A¥YIVS 3WILHIAD SET
%S 8V'TCL'SLT'Y S - 5 | 86876161 S| LESLTIBP'T S| 55/6895.T HYTVS TYOIIITD/LSY d3HOYAL ST
%95 0L LLLTT S sl o9pseT S105658'%T  $|0T/8E9T g AVIYS TYOINHIAL bTT
%69 08°0£8'SY S - S| v9L09°TY SISETITOIT 5| ST'EGG'RST $ ABYIVS HIHLO TYNOISSIH0Ud ETT
%95 65'66E'LLT St S | 1869097 S|ZUBPLOSE S| TT8YI'BLY S VS 03 TWNOISSIJ08d/HIHOYIL 71T
%EY L S | ¥S'618'6E S| ZTOET'PEE  $ | LL'807°9TS S AYYIVS AAILVHLSINIAQY OTT




%001 - 51 - S - SliTare’ss S| ieivi'is $ $.0d YIADAYYYD $T0T
Y%ES £6°'5T1°009'¢ s | zr'st6'02 $ | 66' 100155 s | s9'9ze'ces’y ¢ | oo'gsoBeLE $ STA4 HOd WLOL
%EG L9 90¥'S9L ¢ Ov'00Z'0TT S| EEszi'998 S| 00TETZEIT S JUVHS TVHIAT NON STAS
%ES 97°60L0%0'F s | zvsi6’0z S| 65108 DYy S| ZETOE'99Y'E S | DO'9TS'8LS'S & SI¥L0) IHYHS TvHIa34 STAL
%0 ST P9E'SET sl - 4 s - § | SZ¥9E'sET S 1500 LOIYIANI 162
%0O0T . s - s - slosssst S| DR'88LT S 334 1LSYM CIT0S 269
%0 9y 815'671T s - st - - S 1 opers’srl S S123rd0 ¥Y3IHLO 069
%Z9 00°09, S{ - $ S 1 000FZ'T s | 000007 g 1/53N0 dHSWIN NOILYZINVDYO 09
%1h 18'695'¢ S| - S - S p899r'z 51 699509 5 INITOSYD TLF
%79 80'699°91 S| - S| - SISLTT69L S| EBO6S'EY S ADYIANT OLY
%66 TE'EY S | v58P0'T sl - 5| 69'98¢ S| ¥ 8FET 3 STYYIHAIYId ADOTONHIIAL 84+

- =2 S| S| - 51 - S SYILNDINOD ADOTONHIAL Lt
%007 - 5 - 5 - S18Riz9c S| 8®LT9'E $ TUVARLAOS ADOTONHIIL 9t h
%Lt S8°9/6°C 51 - S10L218 5| vE'S09'E S | 611855 S S3i1ddNS ADOTMONHIIL Sip
%PE BV EST'D st - S| LT EEY S{0E96TE S| 6L6LES 3 ONIYILYI ONY Q004 L17
%56 sl - S | ¥89g ¢ | L0819 $187£59 S

11413

S107 AMVANYAd qONAd IHL Y04
LOATd0O A9 NAOQIVING STHNLIANTIXT
(I¥8 AN LUVLS GVEH dSDD

10V¥1S0d {1y




%00t IPZ0BIE S TYeog'TE S S.0d HIAQAYYYD #10T
%ES 65 TIV'ZZ0'T $ ] 6U°9Y9E $ | oeese’eer S| E6'90L'8ST'T & | 00'9L0S8YTT § STAS HO4 WI0L
%ES ZE 28V P0T 5 PETGR'ST S HETISTEY S| 00SIOLEY ) JUYHS TYH30I4 NON
%ES LT6LE'LTE $1619%9°E $|9ec0vE0T S| v598Y9E6 S| ODTSOBRLT S $IVIOL IHYHS TvH3034 STAL
%1 T1S0TT'E9 ) - 5 - SloTial S| T4L98°E9 ) HIHLO TWLOL
%8y 8T€57'9C §129°448 5| 148202 S| y8PeLYE $ | ¥YISTITS S S31dd NS TYLOL
%65 LY TLYLT $] LS BI0'E s | vorooL't SIEZIOGSY & | LTTVI'VL g SIHAYIS QISYHIENd TWLOL
%ES TETLO'G0T g - S|lozegz'te  S|vTLivLLTE S| SS6TCZEY S S443IN3E Y101
%95 08°178'56% g - S|GESEERY S $1ERITLGIIT & SIMYIVS Tv.0L

£0°968'679

S107T AMVNULGAd GOTHAd AHL Y04
(Z¥S AN LYVIS AVIH ATHYA dSDOD




%001 TP'Z08'TE S| T¥ZO81E S S,0d HIAQAYYYD vI0T
HES 65 IIV'ZZOT S| BT 9YYE S| 0Z'652'62T S| E6°901'8S1'T $ | DO'OLO'SBT'E S STAd HOd TYLOL
%ES TETBYYOT S Y8 1S8'ST S| 6E'TTYTEZ S| OO'STO'LE? S JFHVYHS 1vYA034 NON
%ESG LT 6T6LTR o T S 198 L0F'E0T S| ¥SSBP9Z6 S| 0019078V T S SIVLOL FUYHS TwyIQId STAA
%E 15°020°59 S - 5 . Si9021't S| 8T IPT Y9 ) SLNNODY IQIM-TO0HDIS 6660
%8S 90°850°06 < - slarst6vt S 66919727 S| S0°5/972IZ $ SIDIAYIS NYAINH ALNNOD SHD ££240
%1% 0T'6TLT9 S - 51675619 S| SES2S'E9 § | SyySszseT 5 i SHIAW SYIWOHL 7540
%E9 9£'9LE'65 § - SIPISSLET S| IVSOEZOT S| /1289191 3 1YYIS QV3IH ¢M 5590
%St OE'EET L8 S| GEBIT S | 871696 s|oet9t’ze 5] SSPIv6ST S YYINTATIZ ITLNYS-STNVYT LS P0SO
%EY 9TCIC'69 8 - SI8LTPPOT S 1ZTIPe'80T S EVESSLLT $ HOIH TT91S 8 Y +SH0
%E9 60°'679°65 S - S| 6TSSYTT S| vT895°66 S| ETLBI'BST S OHIS AHYINIYY YHYd ONYTAIN 9270
%19 06'8LT'LOT S| LT8el S| L60P9'TE $| ZVO0V'69T S | 65EBE'LLT S NIWAOTIAIA ANIAYS 2 OTIHD TTH0
%97 6T 165°0LT SHLS8TLT $192601T°'ST S| 6V6ETL8T S| SEBSYOIY ) TOOHIS3Yd/SHI/LUYLSAYIH ISTO

SI0C AUVIHEHd O Ed HHL HO4
NOLLYIOOT A NAOGMVIRT SHHNLIANIdXH
(Zr8 ANND LUVLS AVAH ATV JSOD



LOArdO Ad NAOMIVIHE FUNLIANAIXA
(ZP8 ANA) LUVLS GVIH ATHVE dSDD

S107 AMVYNHEHd dONAd 3HL 404

%001 - St S| - S| o0Tivy s | 0T Ly $ 334 ILSYM Q1105 269
- S| - 51 - $1 - sl - S 5123190 Y3IHIO 069
0006 S - 5 - S| 000tE S 1 00°'00F S 4/53N30 dHSWIIN NOILYZINYDYO OF9
87'689'T S - S - $17501 s | 000047 ) STIVHIHAIYNId ADOTONHDIL 8t
- s| - s - siave s|sve 3 SHILNANGD ADDTONHDIAL 0¥
- S| - S - $ | ee8rt 5| zzeit S IHYMIAOS ADOTONHIAL 8t
4 AR ) - S : S IBSETOT S| ooszee S 5311ddNS ADOTONHDIL Si¥
LL¥PO'T S - 5 | 62801 S| £S5y S | o000s'T S ONIYILYD GNY 000 £17
0829 s - 5 - 5§ ZE8ET s|zitoz 5 I9VIS0Od 21t
1L 9vE'CZ slz9418 $|evoTsT STEZSIVYET S| GR'E9E'SY S S3ddNS 0Ty
BLLTS'LT $ | £5°890° $1|Le098 S| S9SIETT S| 00Z06IE 5 SAMAUIS GISYHIUNC HIHIO 65E
01'ZET 51 - 5 - $ 1867757 S| 80'554'¢ S ONIGNIE ONY ONILNIYd 098
- S| - S - 5| £E9°6ET $ | £9'6ET S ONISLLYIACY 0SE
6197 st - $ - S 78S S Tyees S IAYIS NOILVIYOJSNYYL HIHLO 655
10743 sy - 5 - S| 9veee’e S1LYoLE'Y S JAAVYL 31V1S 40 N0 BEE
90'T6v'9 S| - ¢ Hie2E) 5| 99°0T1'e S {7,709 S JIAVYHL ILVLS NI ZE£
00°05T s - 5 - S1oTLIl't s {oesezt S SYII/STYINIY 628
s S| - $ - $ | 00°00T"% 5 | o0'00T'y S IINVHNSNE ALYIOU $2¢
- S - 5 - S |(52891°T) $ [{seget'T) S ¥S IDNVNILNIVIN ONY SHIVdIY €28
£5°8¥ST g - 5| 89TBE S186°SPE'ST ${ IS PEPOT S SILALILSINS GINNOSLNO T2E
0825 5 - $ - S| 0T Lby $ | 00°00S ) YAIS/HILYM SAS TLLN JM8Nd T2
£9'900'v S S 111556 S 119166 S | vz866'8 5 4 HHIO 9N - dN0OD SENM 042
60 105 S - 5| LE°69 $|89°€9 S| Liver't S NOILYSNAINGD INFNADIGWENN 097
BE'V/9'6E S S 12T LS0'S SI6TTig'ar §| L5°6¥0'98 S ALIMND3S WIDOS 0T
I¥'626'8L S - STIGEECTT S jSv0OT666 S| 986ERRLT S ININEYI13Y 33A0TdWIA GET
0209618 $ - S1G94950T S{TE0STSL S| TTITEL4GT g SHI 341 NV HLTY3IH dN0YD 012
- S - $ - S1v6ig6 S| veies S T/L8Y L - ASVIVS JWILHIAC SET
09'149'19¢ S - SIIETIVEPS  § | €S'6PO00S S| ETATET98 g 4Y7YS 1YDIHIID/1SY YIHOVAL SET
OL£88'¢ st - S| zoyieT $iS8SEbTEt S| szre00e S AYVIVS TYIINHDIL P11
6592071 S - s 061062 S196'686°ST $ | SSZTOBE S AYYTYS HIHLO TYNOISSI40Hd £1T
16'GEZ ¥1T 51 - $ | Z6'918'0T S| SOT8I06 S| 96'L1PV0T s AHVIVS JALLVHLSININGY OTT;
19ane 118 : X ! AU 0




%001 - S IVZ08'TE  § | 1v'Z08'IE 5 S,0d YIAOANYYD ¥T0T
%ES 65" 11V 220’ $ | 6179¥9'E § | DT6ST6ET S| £6°90TRST’T & | 009405817 6 STAS HO4 TWLOL
%ES TE'Z8Y0Z 3 PRTIGB'ST S| 6ETZ9TIsT S | QUSTO'LEY 5 FHUVHS 1YHIATS NON STAS
%ES LT6T6°L18 5| 6T9¥9c s |locz0p'e0t S| vssBr'9ze S| ooTo0'8rL’T S STVLOL FUVHS 1vd3A3d STA4
%0 15°0Z0'€9 5 : S| - 5] - S | 150209 $

LOAFG0O A9 NAOUMVAHY DU LIANALXT
(Z¥8 ANNA) LUVIS AVAH A TAVI dSDD

S10C AdVIiddid dOIdHd FHL H04d

1500 1234IAN] 162




19.52'80 ¥2-£0-510¢ B o 1 AINLENOD 'NOSNIA

8EE
OPLpBLSGL $591 oo'a P5BE SSBYUNG - dF FLVISHALNI ELL GLOZISOED S LOg/e0el
gEE
oyzialLs) 8L¢g 000 9Lz uojests S1Z/€0rZ0 S10Z/S0/20
8ET
[41:45 21512 Zo'LE [al4] 2041 ssBURINd - 5 TH10H YINYLLY NOLYHIHS S102IEBIE0 510Z/50/20
8ge
orevglst 4334 00'0 A ZHaH SLOTAHEO SLOZIZ0IZ0
gee
(94041415 A 400 gr'Zet 3seyNg - HYO-V-INTH ZLiaH S102/0€/1G G1LQOZME0/Z0
g€EL
OvEYBLGE it A4 000 6Z'¥ 0 HEYSs §L08/LE/0 $1.02/20/20
8€E
opLy8Lst ot oyl elog] Xe} SLOZAE/LO S10Z/20/2C
98
arL¥ELS) gLsi o400 8L'Gl aseyind - gOESLEETYG LS 10 THEHHS SLOZNE/RG SL0Z/TOED
¥NIQ 'SiAvYa
£2'88 110 FARFA ¥ qunod
L
CiETiv0l 90'| 90t 460 xe] G10Z/80/20 GLOZIBOED
Ly
oLzZzivdt 504 oG 26°0L FSEUDIN - BYEZH HILNITHILANS WA 5102/80/20 $102/60/20
iy
aLzZivol oL o000 049 aseijamy - Z6GZ0BBZYZ01BY L5 SASN SLOzEenzo SLOZ/Y0IZ0
ve
LZETLYOL 56°6 000 56’5 FSRUYNG - NOILYN JOIOA SR ARITAY SLDZ/E0IZ0

YEIHSOL "BNOIVAINTHD
apog 8l D
UNO2Y UOITEIGHY (19 pusadg pae (BI101 xeyj wa)] @D WY ugndissag way ayeq asEYANg 2es] 150d

aweN | HO
aliAeet
10 5BYDINJ 4O NGB0 OSIA 40 JIPa20 IS SO SILIBADE YSED 1O SUD adky uofnesuell

L6:6Z:80 bZ-E0-GLOZ Wil Hoday
ATNIHEN0D ‘NOSHIA 18UMO Loday

£5.:85'C7 LE-20-510Z PUS 0D:00:00 L£-L0-GLOZ M_mwémm“ sieq isod
(210wt |
yang augsiyd {HOTAVL HLNY) £ NOHYINGT GOOHOWHD AT
510 40 ANDIVAINYHD YEIHSOL (MOTAYL HLMY) NOILYDINGD s 0ifey YNy 404 puads pied o
AOOHHHD ATy 1510 Jo subedwizy) eqiysol (HOTAVE
HLAH) 180ddNS TYNOLLOMYISNI® JINIQYDY $010 40 U0 dio

1810 TDOHDS ALNNDD NOLSATHYHD awen Auedwio



155280 ¥Z£0-G10¢C

6 J0 g

AZNLYNOD 'NOSNIA

1Y “T3iH
598} gL'y L0894 §Z o2

Ly

O1Z#B1LGL 16'8¢ 000 1662 wey paxeqABUOH SLOZCTIED $LOZ/GZIZ0
LIy

0L LPRLSL ozt az'L 000 X} GLOZ/CZIZ0 SLOTISZIZO
1w

0LEPBLSS POPLY 000 oL aseyaind - €26} WvH JaXYEAINOH SLOZEZIZ0 GLOZIGZIZ0
Ly

OPEYRLSL 159 000 158 sinuogg LUjUnQ GLOZ/MLIZD $10Z/0Z/Z0
AR

OripBLS) Z0'8E 6o fA14:T4 83BUIING - SED  DGBLOSHE NEMNNC SLOZIRLIZD GLOZIZIZO
LL¥

HrErRl s eBit 000 EgLL peaig 2oURd SLOZ/B1L/Z0 SLOZIBLIZO
Ly

OF|FELSGL zs'ay ao'a 59 BsEY2ING - ZREPH GYIHE YHINVd 5LOZ/RLIZD SLOZHLIZ0
8EE

ovzralsL $G5OPL 000 BG O¥L UOIB IS SLOZIL0/20 9 1L0ZI60/E0
8g¢

OrL¥BLSH 08295 00'0 0e'zos #5eUDING - 13LOH VINY1LY NOLYYIHE 5L0Z/L01Z0 S LOZBOIZ0
ge¢

OVEFSIGL 29801 00’0 BE 591 uoleIRys SLOZ/IEQ gL02/60/20
gEE

OFLPBLGL LGBEY 000 LG'BEY asBUDING - TFLOH VANV 1LY NOLVYHIHS S102/B0/20 GLOZIBOIE0
BEE

OrEreLS: POy oo Yoy BIUEB[E LOWRIBYS SLOZTPOEC G1LOZ/90/Z0
gee

OFLvgISL 610t o0'a 6191 BSBYDIN - 4 THLOH VINYIEY NQLYHIHS §LOZH0/Z0 S10Z/90/Z0
8€E

ovErBLSL 609 00 89'Y winos saasbap ok G10Z/#0/20 GLOZ/ADIZO
BEE

ovLPBLGL §4°0Z 00’0 GL9Z aseyoind - HLNOS S33HOAC 0L GL02M0/20 GLOZISOIZD
8€€

0FEFaISL DGy 000 05y dfl SiesIaN LLL G LOZ/S/Z0 SLOZO0IE0
gee

OvLrglSt L 000 xe} GLOZ/G0/Z0 € 102/80120
spog 122fa0 M9

WNoasy BORRIOYY 1D ﬂ_tonm pdes RI1OL Xe) wag Dig WIS :Omun__uunaﬂ ol ajeq aseyainid sieq] 1sad

EN (INd HD



£5-52'80 ¥2-£0-5L0¢ 6 10 E AFNLHNOD ‘NOSNIA

Ly

oLLPBLEL 9L 0 840 000 xel SLOZIGEIZ0 G LOZ/LZIEO

LIy

OLi¥8LG1 2021 Eve) Z0° 4L ssetING - ZAb# X8Nd SLOZ/OZIE0 §LOZIZIE0

Oi¥

BVZPRIG) £0El 0o £0°ZL sa|deig S102102120 S10Z/EZ/Z0

oLy

erlvaisl Wy 1Lt 000 xg) SLOZI0ZIZ0 GLOZIET0

Oit

&F18L51 e 000 Ay BsEYMINd - ZERGLLOC  SFTIVYLS $1L0Z/02/20 §LOZ/EZIZ0

VNG {COOMOYIN
140 9z'¢ 88’19 £ jN02

oL¥

00Z¥ETS, ErEL oo £V'EL LHYINTYA SLOZ/BO/Z0 SL02190/Z0

Oi¥

06.PBZGL 9Z'G B A 000 xel SLOZ/S0/20 G1LOZP0IZ0

oLy

0BL+8Z5.L S e 000 Sy BSEYRING - LGEEE LHVIN-TYM 5 LOZIS0/Z0 5L0ZI00/26

LLANNATD 'SYIMOr
LEEEL 187 ¥50EL g unod

0iv

0OZFerns 61 184 00D e} §102/G2/20 GLOZ/GZ/Z0

Oi¥

00Z¥av0s zEY0L no'n ZL VDL FSRYING - ZESH WILNIADYISNS W 5102/G2/20 SLOZIOZZ0

oLy

06LPREEY £1°0 £4°0 000 xey S10Z/GZZ0 GLOZ/9ZIZ0

0LF

06LPRETY ¥6'8 000 768 aseyng - ZESO# LUVIN-TYAA GLOZIGEZ0 SLOZIGZZ0

oLy

00Z¥8P0% 050 050 oo xe) G LOZ/G0/E0 GLOZIBOZO

0ir

00ZPEr0S w65 on'o Ve 9SRUDING - JGEER { HYW-TYAM SLOZIB0/Z0 GLOZB0IZ0

0LF

06LYBZEY Lo AR, 00 ¢ xe} GLOZ/90/Z0 GL02/60/20

o1y

061PBZZF vELL oon FE L BEBYDING - LGECH LHYIN-TYM SLOZI90/20 SLOZIBOED

apog o e

BOYY UaBaY 1D puadg plen eIl Xej tiay 82| Widyf uondiasac way| ay(] aseyoaung ajeq 1504

swien {ind HO



15:G2'80 ¥Z-E£0-5102

g o v

AGNLANOD NOSNIA

AR

6¥ZPBISL oes 000 'S SASN SLOZ/E0Z0 G10ZIP0/Z0

FALY

6¥L¥BIGH 9117 00’0 a1’z ssRYING - 940Z0B6155658F L6Y SISN 5102/80/20 GLOZYD/Z0

ol%

0eZvRLLL DL oLg oUo xe} SLOZICOE0 SLOZORN

oly

osePRLLL G6'6G a0 66 69 aseuding - £00000£05851LELLETdYES SLOZIEDZ0 SLOZIFOIZ0

oLt

0618906 SG'Z 1A 0oo xel SLOZ/E0Z0 SLOZIOIZO

Ot ¥

08t #8906 6667 000 66'6Z aSBUING - LODO0OCBLROZIELLE VLS SLOZ/E0/E0 S102/%0r20

Oi¥

D IPRLEL 1L FAN3 000 xe; SL0Z/E0/Z0 SLOZHWDIED

ol¥

OvLPBLSL €16 oo ELES PSRUIING - Z0000006180T1ELLS VLS GLOZIECIZ0 SLOZIPOIZ0
I6'G 59 Qo0 xet SL0Z/E0IZ0 SLOZHOIZ0

4184

QL LPglsl $6'19 ooe 5649 sa|delg SLOZ/e020 SLOZH0/E0

gty

6p1¥815L S0'%L 000 S0 ¥l 98EULINGG - LO0D00L0GBSE LELLSTIVLS GLOZROIZ0 §1L0Z0/Z0

oy

[¢1:48 4 1R*21 BE'Z BEC 00’0 Xej GLOZEQRZ0 SL0ZP0/Z0

4154

L 9YLG1 g6'LE oog BE'LE aseudng - Z00000LQ585L LE LT THYLS G1L0Z/e0ien SLOZYOIZ0

oLy

oeZreLll 05'69 00’0 95'69 BEEYLINA - SONIYGS NYIHOV TYddY CLOZ/Z0/Z0 G LOZ/IEQ/Z0

SIAY MO0

15811 v 0541t 8 [N

Lib

0LZ¥9ISL Z6'9 000 Z6'9 pEalg BIsuey 5102/92/20 GLOZILZIZ0

yERY

OLLPRILGE 09' 12 oo 99le FSBYDING - ZBEFE (vl P3NV GLi02/92/20 GlLOZiLZIZ0

Ly

OLZFRIGE Ch'y oo Gr'y Mg §L0Z/0Z120 SLOTILERED

apo) Pk i

JUNoasy VORIOYY D puedsy pien {830 *ej waj Bl WIOH uopduaseq way  Keq aseydingd S1E0) 1504

SwieN #f4 HO



L5580 vEEOSL0E

g€8
OPErglst
8EE
OFL¥BLS1
Li¥
0LZP8LGL
Llv
OLIFBLGE
gee
OPZPELSL
gEe
OrlLyeiss
ges
ObPZrRLst
gt
orl¥elst
910 4
QLEPBLSE
0¥
0LLPEESS
0oL
OLEPBLSGY
oLr
arLPBicl
oy
0484200
66£
[33:4:33°13
66E
WZyBLGL
g6t
arivelsl
gLy
OEZVBLLL
oLy
0ECvBLLL

apo3 18lyg 1 1H
JNNITY LOREIB Y 1IN

£9°G0LE

£L ey

Ly'S¥

88'i8lL

0889t

L2549

684y

S8°064

oc'el

§0°L

5879

0E'e

G8°L9

00°0%L

00°095

9y

86°95

pueds pies jejog

00'g

00°¢

000

00'0

000

00°¢

00°¢

QoG

GO0

50°L

00’0

0z'0

o}

0g'0

o0

0¢'o

Lgy

000

HE] Way

Er's0l

ELVEr

FA 21 4

8g'L8l

0e'agl

12°8L9

GaLP

S9°06}

00'gl

a0

S6'%9

000

oed

G815

Q0ori

00'09s

000

86¢S

asiid way

g 0 g

UG

asRYDN - TILOH VINY LY NOLYMIHE

pesig wisued

asBYIN - Z8EF0L# O3 V3NV

gjUE|ly UOIEIBUS

SSEYMI - TALOH VINYILY NOLVHIHS

asudisun

SSELRIN - HYO-Y-LNIY ISiHdHZIND

sajdeg

xe]

F8RUYIN - LOU0D0CI26RZLELLS VLS

XB}

SseYIIN - LODO00LLLGIELELLSIAVES

aseyINg - AQD 08

aucisyoea)

FSBYIINe] - INOISHIOVIL

Xg]

8¥eYDINd - POOD00L0GEGELELLSTUVLS

uopdpasag wie)

SL0ZRWED

SL0ZMB0E0

SLOZ/L0/E0

SEOE/L0Z0

§1LOZ/L0/20

SLOZ/L0/ED

GLOT/LOr20

SEGZILOE0

§102/50/20

%102/60/20

G10Z/90/Z0

SLOZISOIZ0

S10ZIS0/Z0

SLOZPOR0

SLUZH0IZ

GLOZP0/Z0

SLOTIROIE0

SLIZ/E0MZ0

aleq eseyding

AINLIMNOD "NOSNIA

S10Zre0/Z0

5102/80/20

S10Z/60/20

GL0ZreDZ0

G1L0Z/BOZ0

SLOZ/BOIZ0

GL0&/B0/rZ0

SLpgienza

Si0Z/amed

S10Z/90/26

GLOZ/S0ED

S1L0Z/90G/Z0

GLOZ/P0ZN

SLOZ/90E0

S102/50/E0

5L02/50/20

SL0Z/P0/Z0

SLOZH0/Z0

a)eq 1504
WEN §Nd HD



255280 +Z-E0-5L02

0iF
oLIpBLSL
ol¥
01ZPEIGL
53
OLipaisl
oLy
DLIPRIGL
DLF
DOZFRESO
oL
0618859
oLy
0618559
Li¥

04 Z¥RLGL
it
OLLbILSL
Li¥
OLL¥8L5L
86¢
G1Ze8lst
66¢
0LL¥a3GL
oL
OLLYPELG!
oL
OLLPRISL
oy

G} L#BESL
Gy
0L1P81G1
gee
OvZr8iStH
gee
OPLPBLSL
apon iAo D

WNOIY UOREIOHY 1D

£8'18Z

0ie

Z8°0

B84°L

oA

196t

BGESE

8e'9

FA -4t

80'5e

DE'ES

856L¢

eee

6492

L0

52’8

Zy00L

0410%

pueds paeg (2oL

000

Z8'0

0o

ao'n

98l

00'a

000

¥

000

00

000

ge'e

00'0

040

GO0

000

an'g

xe} wey

cgigz

aLe

0oo

842

95'er

0o'g

6951

8E0

00a

9052

06'¢S

6551LE

LR}

6L°9¢

o0

T

FA gV

0l Low

adtid way

6

10

ASEYDINS - LOO000BSGGFOLEEL LS HV LS

saldeig

Bl

9sRYDING - ZOODD0BSSFICEL LSdY.LS

sadels

X2

9sEYMNG - LOD000BEDISZEEL LS TdVLES

o8

=13

FSEYUNG - LGLGH AHIO0HO 07719

AGD OB

sgelring - AQD'OS

ey

a5BUXNG - Z0000086L9LB1ELLG IdVLS

xe}

GSEUDING - L00000BBLOLBLELLSIEVIS

agidiauyg

SBYDING - HYDY-LNTH I8y IND

uondiosag way

L0020

GiQ2/0Zre0

S1L02/08/20

Si0eGere0

SLOELEZ0

S10Z/4Z/20

SLOZ/EE0

SLOE/BHEO

SLOZBL/ED

GLOZ/BLIED

SLOZ/LLER

GLOZILLIZ0

GLOZ/PLIZO

SLOZT/PLIZ0

S10ZE0

SLOZIPL/Z0

510Z/69/20

GLOZIBMEG

ajeg aseYding

AINLHMNOD ‘NOSNIA

Si0TIEZIEG

SLOZIETIZ0

GLOZEZR0

S10z/eeZ0

GloTiReIZe

GLOZ/EZIZ0

SL0ZRTR0

§1L0&/02/20

SLOZ0ZME0

GL0ZI0ZR20

SLOZIELIE0

SL02/GLIZ0

GL02/91/20

Sipg/eliea

SLOZIALIZ0

GL0Z98120

SLOZ/OLIED

GLOZIGLIZD

9IBd 1504
JUISN | HD



156280 PTEL-GLOT

G Jo £

AGNLENOD 'NOSNIA

oL¥

ZHLERIGL 0622 000 06'ZZ 9seULING ~ L6000 SIMOT SLOZ60/20 SLOZIOLIZO
ol

ZrivRlS) 591 GO°L 00 BSBLDING - NYINAEYOSE ANY 00D GLOZIZOIZ0 S102/60/20
aly

ZrLPBIGL 00°06 000 00'06 BSBUDIN - NyWAYYOE ANY HO0D SL02/20/20 G LOZ/B0MZ0
olF

Tribeist 20k A1 00'0 xe} GLOZVOIZ0 ¢ L0ZIGOZD
ol¥

IrIbBist 10zl U0 Liy4} aseyINd - §GO00# SAMOT GLOZPOZD GLOZ/50/Z0
0i¥

ZrLPRISL 8L gF'L 000 bl GLOEZ0RZ0 G LOZIEOIZO
0Ly

ZPLbRISL v il 000 ev il 2SRUYDING - GSO00# STMOT SLOZ/ZOIZ0 SL0T/EZ0

LU ADD0HIT
oL LB 9L} 6¢°508'y 09 junod

oy

06148608 vLE PLE 000 xe) SLOZAEIZ0 S LOZ/SEME0
oy

06 L PR60E B6EY 0o 66°E¥ SSEYN - LOOODCEALLLBLELLSIHYLS GLOTPEIZO S10ZIGEZ0
aLv

00Z#R8S9 vy o 0% sajdelg SLOZLEZ0 ©LO0Z/ETIE0
0Ly

06LPRSS9 65'L 651 000 xe| GL0Z/L 2120 &10Z/EZiZ0
oLt

065¥RGSO LR 000 PO¥L SRYNG - ZODDDOBESSTEEE LS THIVLS SEOZ/ZIED 5 LOZICTIZO
B6€

OLI¥BISL 716 000 ?L6 aseying - AOD 0% G1£0Z/0Z/Z0 SLOZICEIZO
oLy

0EZPRLLL ZLve ZLVE 000 xe) GL02/12/20 GLOZEZIZ0
oLy

0EZYRLLL 24062 0o 847062 SEBYDING - LODDDOVPLEGETE LS THVLS 6 L0Z/L 220 QLOZEZIZO
oLy

OLEPALS) el 0eo LBl sajdelg SLOZ/OZIZO GLOZIEZIZO
oL

OLL¥RIGL 6508 6408 000 xey SLOZIOZIZ0 GLOZ/ETIZO
apo 108iq0 D

N33y HOREI0NY 15 ﬂcmﬂw pied 2104 XE)| Wwayl B4 Wwia}| cﬁmbatumoﬂ wiagg ey aseyding G180 1504

BULEN N HD



15:68'80 ¥2-£0-5102 6 40 8 ASNLHNOD "NOSNIA

oLy

OEZZI0G} Jioge] 1998 oco xe) SLOT/BELD GLOZIZHL0

oLy

0£2ZLOG1 Z98L0'L 600 ZUBL0'} BERYDING - ZERGLLH0 ST WIVAS SLOZ/BZIL0 GLuZI20/20

V13NY 4 ‘SHELYM
75162 8Z'€e ¥ 82T ¢ unes

AR 2

LZe2Lrol 60 000 659 9SeUDINd - 85| Z0BBLYZ0REFLEY 345N SLOZISEIED 6102192720

oir

BLEZLODE 8z¢e 82¢2 i} xey SLOZBLIZO G10Z/02/20

oLy

BLEZ100E crize 000 §2LEE PSRN - ZEO0O# V- HOIHD SLOZ/BLIZ0 $10Z/0Z/20

8 HLNY HOTAYL
z4 02y 96¢¢ 9L 48E gi ungd

oLr

ZrLegist Zo'i gL o0 xej SIOE6 L0 GLOZIOZIZ0

0Le

Zrip8ist 106 000 L0613 aseYoINg - SGO00# SIAAOT SLOZIBLIEO SLOZ/0Z/R0

oLt

ZPLPHIGL i FA¥S 000 xe S1LOEILLIZ0 SLOZIgLIZ0

oLy

ZyivRISE 99°6Z 0oC 99'6¢ aSBY2Nd - §5900# SHEMOT GLOZ/LEIZO S10Z/51/20

oLy

TrIPBISI L0'9 106 o0 ey GLOZIOLIZD GLOZILLIZO

0i¥

FAR LT e oo LELL aseyINg - 569004 SIMQ SLOZIDLIZ0 GLOZILLIZO

OLp

ZELPRLGL 186 6 a0o ssEYIING - A1ddNS ALLD 1HOd GLOZIZLIZO SL0Z/91IZ0

oLy

ZhivBIS) (A 00C LA asEyIng - NlddNS ALID LH0d §1L0Z/Z1IZ0 GL02IBLIZ0

oLE

TrIPEIS] T gz'L 0o xey SL0Z/0LIZD SLOZALIZ0

0i%

ZyLP8IGL 80§l 000 80°G1 aseyoIng - $9800% STMOT GLOZ/OLIED GLOZ/LLIZD

ol¥

ZFLPRIG) G6°} G661 00°0 e} SLOZBHZ0 GLOZI0LIED

8pon aslad D

WnoaYYy :e_uﬂu&_q b [3) ﬁ:unm pagny |0, He) WSl a3y wiayg ;o_«a_»ummﬂ [$1: 173 alef 5B RN aleq] 1804

awen ind HO



L5'G2:80 ¥Z-€0-SLOZ 6 Jo 6 AGMNAIENOD 'NOSNIA
16929 IRELT (AR YN LEL  :unod Jodal
82°90L°L £9'88 796101 Z unod

apon yaafio 10
ROy uoEIONY & puadg peD [BIOL XEL W Balkd way| uepdusssq way  aeQ 3seYsng aye(] 1804
swen jind H3



M Boenowiieeg in gur stancars
v SCHOOL DISTRICT

75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

Finance & Operations
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Michael L. Bobby
DATE: April 13, 2015

SUBJECT: 2010-2016 Capital Building Program (Phase III) - Wave 1
Savings Reallocation

RECOMMENDATION: Staff request approval to reallocate funds, attained
from savings in Wave 1 Projects; Buist Academy (Project #5130) and
Memminger Elementary School (Project #5133), in the amount of $858,600.

The material is submitted for: X Actioh [ ] Information
Open [ ] Executive

Respectfully submitted:

Mr. Michael Bobby
Acting Superintendent of Schools

Dr. Lisa Herring
Deputy Superintendent for Academics

Mr. Jeff Borowy | e _
Deputy for Capital Programs T »;} Fzr

.

Committee Recommendation(s):

Audit and Finance Committee recommendation:

Mr. Todd Garrett, Chair
Audit & Finance Committee




Finance & Operations
April 13, 2015

SUBJECT:
2010-2016 Capital Building Program (Phase III) - Wave 1 Savings
Reallocation.

BACKGROUND:

The Charleston County School District is currently in the 2010-2016 Capital
Building Program (Phase III}. This Building Program was funded by an
approved referendum to establish a one (1) cent sales tax for a term of six
years.

The master list of projects was approved at the time of the referendum. (The
order and sequence was approved following the referendum by the Board of
Trustees).

DISCUSSION:

We have been reporting to the Charleston County School District Board of
Trustees the Wave 1 Projects in the 2010-2016 Capital Building Program
(Phase III) were ready for preliminary financial close.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff request approval to reallocate funds, attained from savings located in
Wave 1 Projects; Buist Academy (Project #5130) and Memminger
Elementary School (Project #5133), in the amount of $858,600.

The project budgets will be reduced to reflect the reallocation and those
funds incorporated into the overall 2010-2016 Capital Building Program
(Phase III).

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:
The 2010-2016 Capital Building Program (Phase III) is being funded by the
one (1) cent sales tax revenues.

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A




DATA SOURCES:

Jeffrey Borowy, Deputy, Capital Programs

Rick Holt, Cumming Construction Management
Joyce Costello, Capital Projects Accounting Officer

PREPARED BY:

Jeffrey Borowy, Deputy, Capital Programs

Rick Holt, Cumming Construction Management
Joyce Costello, Capital Projects Accounting Officer

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES:
N/A

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES:
N/A

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolutions Requesting Reallocation of Funding




RESCLUTION REQUESTING REALLOCATION OF FUNDING
201¢-2016 CAPITAL BUILDING PROGRAM (Phase i1} - SALES TAX

2010-2016 CAPITAL BUILDING PROGRAM (Phase li)- SALES TAX - TOTAL BUDGETS AND ADJUSTMENTS

PROJECT # PROJECT APPROVED BUDGET | PROPOSED BUDGET VARIANCE
5130 Buist Academy $31,650,000.00 $31,095,000.00 {$555,000.00)
5133 Memminger Elementary School $21,900,000.00 $21,596,400.00 {$303,600.00)

2010-2016 Building Program Phase 1l $0.00 $0.00 $858,600.00

TOTAL

$53,550,000.00

$52,691,400.00

$0.00

Resolved this 1

By:

By:

3th day of Aprit 2015.

okl

3 2e/75

Michael Bobby
Acting Superintendent of Schools

. }gy"-—-‘%m

/ Date’

3 fwéj §§

Jeffrey%w/
Deputy, rograms w

Date



“SCHOOL DISTRICT

75 Calhoun Street, Charleston, SC 29401

OFFICE OF GENERAL
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: John F. Emerson and Robert Olson

DATE: April 27, 2015

SUBJECT: East Cooper Montessori Charter School Renewal

RECOMMENDATION: It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School
District Board of Trustees approve renewal of the East Cooper Montessori Charter

School charter.

The material is submitted for:

~ Respectfully submitted:

Action

(] Information
A Open [ ] Executive

Mr. Michael Bobby
Acting Superintendent of Schools

il

Dr. Lisa Herring
Deputy Superintendent for Academics

Mr. Jeff Borowy
Deputy for Capital Programs

Committee Recommendation{s):

Audit and Finance Committee recommendation:

Mr. Todd Garrett, Chair
Audit & Finance Committee




Office of General Counsel
April 27, 2015

SUBJECT: Renewal of East Cooper Montessori Charter School
BACKGROUND:

East Cooper Montessori Charter School (ECMCS) was first chartered in 2003, with
Charleston County School District (CCSD or District) as its sponsor. It was renewed in
2008. It has been serving approximately 250 students in grades 1-8 in its facility on
Civitas Street in the I'on community. In the 2014/2015, through an agreement with
the District, the school expanded into space in the old Whitesides building on Rifle
Range Road in Mt. Pleasant. The charter has use of the building in exchange for
offering Montessori training to District teachers and for providing additional Montessori
seats in the East Cooper area.

The current charter expires this academic year and ECMCS seeks to renew for a ten-
year term per state law.

DISCUSSION: The ECMCS renewal application proposes to continue its mission with
some changes and additional services.

First, it is the intent of the school, with the agreement and collaboration of the District,
to consolidate all grades in the old Whitesides facility by August 2015.

In addition, ECMCS proposes to add three grades over the course of the next three
academic years (2016, 2017 and 2018). The first new cohort will be composed of
three-year-olds. The charter has agreed to reserve 40 percent of those seats for
students who qualify for free or reduced lunch. The next grade will be added each
year to accommodate that cohort until it moves into first grade. CCSD staff proposes
that the District subsidize the expenses of the first two cohorts for that initial three-
year period.

RECOMMENDATION: It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School
District Board of Trustees approve renewal of the East Cooper Montessori Charter
School charter.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST: General Fund

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT: Funding students in three-year-old and four-year-old
program programs for the first three years. This cost is estimated to amount to
approximately $6,500.00 per student per year.

DATA SOURCES:

PREPARED BY:
John Emerson and Robert Olson



REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES:
Yes

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES:
N/A



HIS AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO ARBITRATION PURSUANT TO THE
UNIFORM ARBITRATION ACT. SECTION 15-48-10, ET SEQ. CODE OF

LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED,

STATE OF SOUTH CARCLINA )
} FACILITIES USE AGREEMENT
COUNTY HARILESTON )

THES FACILITIES USE AGREEMENT (the “AGREEMENT"™) is made
and entered into this 3 day of Jovwear<s » 2015, but retroactively effective 1st
day of July, 2014, by and between the CHARLESTON COUNTY SCHOOL
DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT®), and EAST COOPER
MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL, a3 South Carolins non-profit
corperation/organization/association (hereinafier referred to as “CHARTER
SCHOOL™).

WHEREAS, as of 2003, East Cooper Montessori Charter School
(“CHARTER SCHOOL”) became a charier school, located in Charleston County,
South Carolina and sponsored by the Charleston County School District, pursuant
to the South Carolina Charter School Act of 1996 (the “Act™), as amended; and

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT desires to permit CHARTER SCHOOL to use
and CHARTER SCHOOL desires to use, a portion of the facility known as the
former Mamie Whitesides Elementary School campus, (“CAMPUS”) located at
1120 Rifle Range Road, Mt. Pleasant, South Carolina;

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:



iption of SCHOOI. PROPERTY: DISTRICT hereby allows
CHARTER SCHOOL to use, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in
this AGREEMENT, a portion of the CAMPUS containing 9.24 acres, more
or less, commonly known as the former Mamie Whitesides Elementary
School, located at 1120 Rifle Range Road, Mt. Pleasant, Charleston County,
South Carolina, as more particularly described in Exhibit A. That portion,
for the Initial Term includes approximately four classrooms, the cafeteria
and support space in the annex of the CAMPUS, shall be referred to herein
as SCHOOL PROPERTY.

For the Option Term and Renewal Term(s), if any, the SCHOOL
PROPERTY shall be the entire CAMPUS. CHARTER SCHOOL shall
also be entitled to use of certain furniture, fixtures and equipment
(FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT”) not removed from
CAMPUS for use at Sullivan’s Isiand Elementary School, or otherwise
removed by DISTRICT for its use elsewhere. Such FURNITURE,
FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT shall be specifically listed in attached
Exhibit B. CHARTER SCHOOL acknowledges that it is receiving the
CAMPUS, SCHOOL PROPERTY and FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND
EQUIPMENT in “as-is” condition and that DISTRICT neither makes nor
assumes any representations or warranties, express or implied, as to the
condition of the CAMPUS, SCHOOL PROPERTY or FURNITURE
FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT, including, without limitation, any abw.ous
or latent defects.

Upfit and Improvement: In addition, DISTRICT agrees to undertake
the repairs and improvements set out in Exhibit C, which DISTRICT shall
make good faith efforts to complete prior to the start of the 2014/2015

school vear.

Prior to or at the expiration of the Initial Term, it is expected that DISTRICT
and CHARTER SCHOOL will explore, and pursue further mutuai
agreement regarding, additional iterns of improvement and/or repair relating
to the CAMPUS, including:

a) Preparation for use consistent with the Items set forth in Exhibit C;
and



SA.

5B.

b) Improvements and/or repair consistent with the District’s advanced
design Montessori standards as will be determined from a formal
inspection and assessment of the CAMPUS.

Term of Agreement: The Initial Term of this AGREEMENT shall
be for a period of one year, beginning on July 1, 2014 (the “Commencement
Date”) and ending at midnight on June 30, 2015 (the “Expiration Date™),
During the Initial Term, CHARTER SCHOOL shsll apply for a renewal of
its charter with DISTRICT as sponsor.

Option Term of Agreement: On or before the expiration date of the
Initial Term, the parties may, by mutual agreement, extend the term of this
AGREEMENT by a term of ten (10) vears, (“Option Term”) beginning on
July 1, 2015 (the “Commencement Date™) and ending at midnight on June
30, 2025 (the “Expiration Date™).

Renewsl of Term: The partics may renew for subsequent terms of ten
{10) vears by agreement of the parties.

Notice of Non-Renewal: During the Option Term or any Renewal thereof,
either party may choose not to renew the term of the AGREEMENT for any
reason with a minimum of two (2) year’s nofice to the other, otherwise, the
AGREEMENT shall be deemed to have been renewed. CHARTER
SCHOOL shall surrender the SCHOOL PROPERTY to DISTRICT upon
completion of a term without renewal.

Mutusal Copsideration: In consideration for its right to use the SCHOOL
PROPERTY as a charter school for educational and community purposes,
CHARTER SCHQOL agrees to provide services to CCSD that will support
training and development of Montessori teachers, teacher assistants, and
administrators as the need for human capital continues to evolve to support
Montessori progressing in CCSD} (See generally, ECMCS Collaborative
Education Venture proposal of October 2012 and addenda).



7.

8.

a.

Use of SCHOOL PROPERTY:
a.

Public Scheol. CHARTER SCHOOL will use the SCHOOL
PROPERTY solely as a charter schoo! for educational and community
purposes in accordance with the terms and provisions of the South
Caroling Charter Schools Act of 1996, Sections 59-40-10, et seq.,
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, and the Charter
School Agreement between DISTRICT and CHARTER SCHOOL.
CHARTER SCHOOL shall have the right fo allow community groups
for a public benefit to use the space controlied by the CHARTER
SCHOOL, only, for periods of time not to exceed twenty-four (24)
hours consistent with CCSD policy. If a longer time period is desired,
written consent from the DISTRICT shall be required. DISTRICT
shall have the right to use the space, at no cost. DISTRICT shall have
priority to use the CAMPUS including the SCHOOL PROPERTY
over all CHARTER sub-users, so long as DISTRICT has given the
necessary notice of their intent to use the space. All scheduling and
approval of use must be done by DISTRICT with notice to
CHARTER SCHOOL.

Laews., CHARTER SCHOOL shall conduct activities on the
SCHOOL PROPERTY in a lawful manner. CHARTER SCHOOL
will not permit any illegal business or transactions of which it has
knowledge to take place on the SCHOOL PROPERTY. CHARTER
SCHOOL shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules,
regulations and ordinances applicable to charter schools in connection
with its operations on the SCHOOL PROPERTY.

Facility Services. All maintenance, grounds and janitorial services
used by or provided to CHARTER SCHOOL in connection with the
SCHOOL PROPERTY, together with the vendors and providers of
such services, must be pre-approved in writing by the DISTRICT
Executive Director of Maintepance, Facilities and Asset Management
and such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

mig:

airs, Alterstions apd Improveme

Except as otherwise provided herein, CHARTER SCHOOL shall,
throughout the term of this AGREEMENT and any renewals thereof,

4



at its own expense, maintain the SCHOOL PROPERTY in good order
and repair. CHARTER SCHOOL shall be responsible for minor
repairs to the electrical, plumbing, and heating, ventilating, and air
conditioning (HVAC) equipment servicing the Charter School
Premises, to inciude light bulb and ballast replacement. The parties
agree that, to the extent any individual repair incurs a cost of FIVE
THOUSAND ($5,000.00) AND NO/100S DOLLARS or more, such
expense shall be considered capital in nature and shall be borne by the
DISTRICT.

CHARTER SCHOOL shall, on the expiration or earlier termination of
the term of this AGREEMENT, surrender the SCHOOL PROPERTY
to DISTRICT in the same condition as when received, reasonable
wear and tear accepted.

Subject to the dollar limitations set forth in 8(a), where CHARTER
SCHOOL elects to bear, itself, the responsibility of any maintenance,
repairs or other obligations, or to outsource same, required to be
performed by CHARTER SCHOOL and CHARTER SCHOOL fails
to perform, for a period of thirty (30} days after CHARTER
SCHOQL’S receipt of written notice from DISTRICT so to do, then
DISTRICT, on the expiration of such thirty (30) day period, may, but
shall not be obligated to, enter on the SCHOQOL PROPERTY and
perform such maintenance, repairs and obligations of CHARTER
SCHOOL, at CHARTER SCHOOL s sole cost and expense, in which
case CHARTER SCHOOL shall pay to DISTRICT the entire cost of
such maintenance, repairs and obligations within fifteen (15) days
after CHARTER SCHOOL’S receipt of written demand from
DISTRICT for such payment. Subject to the dollar limitations set
forth in 8(a), if CHARTER SCHOOL'’S failure to perform any such
maintenance, repair or other obligation adversely affects or endangers
the demised SCHOOL PROPERTY or the health or safety of the
public or of CHARTER SCHOOL'’S agents, employees, students, or
invitees, and if DISTRICT so states in its notice to CHARTER
SCHOOL, DISTRICT may, but shall not be obligated to, perform
such maintenance, repairs and other obligations of CHARTER
SCHOOL at any time after the giving of notice and without awaiting
the expiration of the thirty (30) day period, and may charge to

5



CHARTER SCHOOL, and CHARTER SCHOOL shall pay, to
DISTRICT the entire cost of such maintenance, repairs and
obligations within fifieen (15) days after CHARTER SCHOOL'S
receipt of written demand from DISTRICT for such payment.

CHARTER SCHOOL shall have the right, at its own expense, o
make any alterations, improvements, additions or modifications on or
to the SCHOOL PROPERTY reasonably necessary for the operation
of CHARTER SCHOOL’S school and other school-related functions,
including the installation of fixtures and equipment necessary for the
operation of CHARTER SCHOOL’S school on the SCHOOL
PROPERTY, provided that any such alterations, improvements,
additions or modifications do not weaken the structural soundness of
the SCHOOL PROPERTY, damage the SCHOOL PROPERTY, or
otherwise endanger the safety of its occupants. All such work shall be
done in a workmanlike and satisfactory manner in compliance with all
applicable building code and with the written approval of the South
Carolina Department of Education’s Office of School Facilities, if
applicable. Except as expressly provided in this AGREEMENT,
CHARTER SCHOOL shali not, without the prior, express, and
written consent of DISTRICT, which consent DISTRICT shall not
unreasonably withhold, make any alterafions, improvements,
additions or modifications to the SCHOOL PROPERTY which are
either (i) permanent in nature or (i) the aggregate Total Cost of which
will exceed FIFTEEN THOUSAND AND NO/100THS (815,000.00}
DOLLARS (the “Pre-Approved Improvements™). The term “Total
Cost” as used herein shall be deemed to mean and include all costs,
expenses and other amounts actually incurred or to be incurred in the
construction of the Pre-Approved Improvements, including, without
limitation, all amounts paid to contractors and material suppliers,
architect and engineer foes, paving, curbing, light standards, and other
on-site improvements as required in the preparation of the building(s).
When requesting DISTRICT’S approval for any Pre-Approved
Improvements, CHARTER SCHOOL’s request must be in writing
and must include a list containing an itemization of all such costs and
expenses which CHARTER SCHOOL expects to incur directly in
connection with the construction of the Pre-Approved Immprovements
(the “Preliminary Budget”). DISTRICT assumes no liability or

&



responsibility of any kind whatsoever for any such alterations,
improvements, additions or modifications to any cosntractor,
subcontractor, iaborer, or material supplier.

All alterations, improvements, additions, repairs and modifications to
the SCHOOI. PROPERTY shall on the expiration or eartlier
termination of this AGREEMENT become the property of DISTRICT
without compensation to CHARTER SCHOOL.

All such work shall be done in 3 workmanlike and satisfactory manuner
in compliance with all applicable buildings codes (including, but not
limited to, all state, county, municipal and local building codes) and
the State of South Carolina Department of Education Office of School
Facilities, to the extent applicable.

CHARTER SCHOOL shall not permit any mechanics’, materialmen’s
or other liens to be filed against the SCHOOL PROPERTY, any
portion thereof, nor against CHARTER SCHOOL’S interest. If by
reasoun of any alteration, repair, labor performed or material furnished
to the SCHOOL PROPERTY for or on behalf of CHARTER
SCHOOL any mechanics’ or other lien shall be filed, claimed,
perfected or otherwise established as provided by law against the
SCHOOL PROPERTY, CHARTER SCHOOL shall discharge or
remove the lien by bonding or otherwise at CHARTER SCHOOL’S
cost and expense, within sixty (60) calendar days afier notice from
DISTRICT to CHARTER SCHOOL of the filing of same.
DISTRICT shall have the right at all reasonable times to post and
keep posted on the SCHOOL PROPERTY any notices which it deems
necessary for protection from such liens. If any such liens are filed,
DISTRICT may, without waiving its rights and remedies based on
such breach by CHARTER SCHOOL and without releasing
CHARTER SCHOOL from any of its obligations, cause such liens to
be released by any means it shall deem proper, including payment in
satisfaction of the claim give rise to such liens. CHARTER
SCHOOL shall pay DISTRICT at once, upon notice by DISTRICT,
any sum paid by DISTRICT to remove such liens.



10.

11.

Capital Repairs:  The DISTRICT shall be responsible for the capital
replacement and capital repair (See Section 8(a)) of the major systems,
HVAC, the foundations, roof, and structural portions of the exterior walls of
the SCHOOL PROPERTY (exclusive of the panes of glass themselves) and
the concesled clectrical and plumbing systems, except that, CHARTER
SCHOOQL shall be responsible for paying any deductibles owed under any
insurance policy by reason of the acts of CHARTER SCHOOL, its
employess, agents, invitees, contractors, or licensees, excluding those of
DISTRICT. CHARTER SCHOOL shall have the right to recover any
portion of any deductible paid by CHARTER SCHOOL as to any amounts
recovered via subrogation and/or direct claim against any responsible party
and/or their insurance carrier. DISTRICT shall be under no obligation to
inspect the Demised Premises. CHARTER SCHOOL shall prompily report
in writing to DISTRICT any defective condition which DISTRICT is
required to repair or replace. DISTRICT shall not be obligated to make any
repair or replacement required of it unti] notice in writing from CHARTER
SCHOOL of need for same. DISTRICT shall have reasonable time in which
to make such repair or replacement. During the term of this AGREEMENT
DISTRICT shall warrant the major components of the HVAC eguipment, to
include the compressors, condensing units, and air handlers, which warranty
shall be contingent upon CHARTER SCHOOL maintaining, and providing
written proof of maintenance thercof to the DISTRICT, the HVAC
equiprnent and ductwork by entering into a contract with a reputable HVAC
services company approved in writing by DISTRICT. Said contract shall
include a minimum of monthly filter changes, routine testing for Freon
leakage, cleaning, and other customary periodic maintenance. CHARTER
SCHOOL may elect to allow DISTRICT {o maintain same and reimburse
DISTRICT for the cost of said maintenance.

Utilities: For the Initial Term, at least, DISTRICT shall advance payments
for all utilities, as well as assessments for user fees by city and county
entities, and CHARTER SCHOOQOL shall reimburse to DISTRICT its
allocable share of such expenses based on its occupancy aund use of the
SCHOOL PROPERTY, in proportions described in Exhibit D.

Insurance:
3. DISTRICT shall, at all times during the term of this AGREEMENT,
keep all improvements that are mow or hereafter a part of the

§



SCHOOL PROPERTY (and all personal property of DISTRICT now
or hereafier located in or on the SCHOOL PROPERTY) insured
against loss or damage by fire, exiended coverage, vandalisn and
malicious mischief in accordance with ifs current insurance policy.
All insurance required by this provision shall be carried for the mutual
benefit of the parties in proportion to their respective interests in the
SCHOOL PROPERTY. Any loss adjustment shall require the written
consent of both DISTRICT and CHARTER SCHOOL. The insurance
carrier shall be selected by DISTRICT.

The parties hereby ackmowledge and agree that the aforesaid
insurance will not cover any of CHARTER SCHOOL’S personal
property now or hereafier located in or on the SCHOOL PROPERTY
and that CHARTER SCHOOL shall obtain and maintain any other
insurance that CHARTER SCHOOL desires on the SCHOOL
PROPERTY or the personal property of CHARTER SCHOOL st the
expense of CHARTER SCHOOL, and any additional insurance
desired by CHARTER SCHOOL may be written by any carrier
selected by CHARTER SCHOOL; provided, however, that such
insurance company must be authorized and licensed to do business in
the State of South Carolina, and CHARTER SCHOOL shall at all
times during the term of this AGREEMENT keep all of CHARTER
SCHOOL’S personal property located in or on the SCHOOL
PROPERTY insured to its full insurable value and provide DISTRICT
with a certificate of insurance evidencing said insurance npon request
by DISTRICT.

CHARTER SCHOCL, at its own expense, will at all times during the
term of this AGREEMENT maintain and carry a comprehensive
general hiability insurance policy including contracted coverage in an
amount not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
annual aggregate with an insurance company authorized and licensed
to do business in the State of South Carolina, naming DISTRICT as
an additional insured and will furnish certificates of insurance to the
Director of Facility Services, Charleston County School District, 3999
Bridge View Road, North Charleston, South Carolina 29403, Any
such policy of insurance which contains a deductible in excess of
Twenty-five Thousand and No/100ths ($25,000.00) Dollars per

9



12.

occurrenice must be approved in writing by DISTRICT prior to the
‘issuance of such policy. (CHARTER SCHOOL shall be solely
responsible for the payment of any and all such deductibles),

d. DISTRICT, at 1ts own expense, will at all times during the term of this
AGREEMENT maintain and carry a comprehensive general liability
insurance policy and will furnish certificates of insurance to
CHARTER SCHOOL. (DISTRICT shall be solely responsible for the
payment of any and all deductibles under any such policy of
insurance),

DISTRICT’s Right of Entry: DISTRICT, and DISTRICT’S agents, shall
have the right, but not the duty, to enter the SCHOOL PROPERTY at
reasonable times to use the SCHOOL PROPERTY for community purposes,
including community education, in the same manner as DISTRICT’S other
schools are sometimes utilized, to inspect the SCHOOL PROPERTY, to
conduct routine monitoring visits as defined in the charter school application
addenda, to take samples and conduct environmental investigations, fo post
notices of non-responsibility and similar notices, to perform maintenance,
replacement and repairs, to perform CHARTER SCHOOL’S obligations as
permitted herein when CHARTER SCHOOL has failed to do so. If possible,
DISTRICT shall give CHARTER SCHOOL twenty-four (24) hours notice
of any entry to inspect or repair the SCHOOL PROPERTY; however, no
notice shall be required in the event of an emergency or with regard to any
ongoing community uses. DISTRICT shall at all times have the right to
retain a key which unlocks all of the doors in the SCHOOL PROPERTY.
DISTRICT and DISTRICT’S agents shall have the right to use any and all
means which DISTRICT may deem proper in an emergency to obtain entry
to the SCHOOL PROPERTY. No entry to the SCHOOL PROPERTY by
DISTRICT or DISTRICT’S agents shall under any circumstances be deemed
to be forcible or unlawful entry into, or a detainer of the SCHOOL
PROPERTY, or an eviction of CHARTER SCHOOL.

14



13.

Subject to DISTRICT'S and CHARTER SCHOOL’S right to
terminate this AGREEMENT as provided below in this Section, if the
SCHOOL PROPERTY is damaged or destroyed by fire, flood, wind
storm, or other casualty (a “Casualty”), DISTRICT may at its
discretion, choose to repair and/or replace such damaged property
and restore the SCHOOL PROPERTY, consistent with the nature and
intent of this AGREEMENT, to the extent of the insurance proceeds
received (net of collection expenses), and subject to delays due to
adjustment of insurance claims, strikes and other causes beyond
DISTRICT’S control. DISTRICT’S obligation, should it elect or be
obligated to repair the SCHOOL PROPERTY following a Casualty,
shall be limited to only those parts of the SCHOOL PROPERTY that
were originally in existence upon the execution of this AGREEMENT
and the Pre-Approved Improvements. To the extent of any applicable
insurance proceeds, CHARTER SCHOOL shall, at its expense,
replace or fully repair all of CHARTER SCHOOL’S personal
property and any alterations or other improvements installed by
CHARTER SCHOOL existing at the time of such Casualty and not
pre-approved in writing by BISTRICT.

DISTRICT or CHARTER SCHOOL shall have the right to terminate
this AGREEMENT following a Casualty if any of the following
occurs: (i} insurance proceeds (fogether with any additional amounts
CHARTER SCHOOL elects, at its option, to confribute) are not
available to DISTRICT to pay one hundred percent (100%) of the
costs to fully repair the SCHOOL PROPERTY, excluding the
deductible and DISTRICT does not intend to repair or restore; (ii)
DISTRICT determines that the SCHOOL PROPERTY cannot, with
reasonable diligence, be fully repaired by DISTRICT (or cannot be
safely repaired because of the presence of hazardous factors,
including, but not limited to, hazardous materials, radiation, chemical
waste and other dangers) within one hundred and twenty (120) days
after the date of such Casualty: (iii) the SCHOOL PROPERTY is
destroyed or damaged during the last twelve (12) months of the then
current term of this AGREEMENT and DISTRICT does not intend to
repair or restore within that twelve (12) month period; (iv) more than

11



14.

15.

fifty (50.00%) of the area of the building(s} located on the SCHOOL
PROPERTY is damaged or destroyed and DISTRICT does not intend
to repair or restore such building(s); or (v) an event of default by
CHARTER SCHOOL has occurred under this AGREEMENT and is
confinuing at the time of such Casualty and CHARTER SCHOOL has
not undertaken substantial steps to cure same. If DISTRICT or
CHARTER SCHOOL elects to fterminate this AGREEMENT
following a Casualty pursuant to this Section, then the terminating
party shall give the non-terminating party written notice of its election
to terminate within thirty (30) days after DISTRICT has knowledge of
such Casualty, and this AGREEMENT shall terminate and
CHARTER SCHOOL shall surrender the SCHOOL PROPERTY to
DISTRICT sixty (60) days after the date of such notice.

¢.  On any such termination of this AGREEMENT under any of the
provisions of this Section, subject to the terms of Section 59-40-120,
S.C. Code Ann. (2004), the parties shall be released without further
cbligation to the other as of the termination date, provided that the
parties shall remain liable to each other for any monies or other items
that have accrued as of the termination date and are then unpaid.

Transferring or g Interests: CHARTER SCHOOL may not:

a. Assign, convey, encumber, or morigage this AGREEMENT or its
interest in the SCHOOL PROPERTY:; or

b.  Sublet the SCHOOL PROPERTY or any part of the SCHOOL
PROPERTY.

Netices: Any and all notices or other communications provided for in this
AGREEMENT shall be in writing, shall be signed by the party giving the
same, and shall be delivered personally, or mailed, by certified mail, retum
receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the party to whom such
communication is directed as herein below provided. Notice shall be
deemed to be given and received hereunder on the date of delivery if
personally delivered, or two (2) days afier the date of mailing if mailed as
aforesaid (not including the date of mailing). Any party may change his or



16.

17.

18.

its address at any time by giving the other party notice thereof. Such notice
shal} be addressed as follows:

Ifig DISTRICT:

Charleston County School District
Attention: Wayne Wilcher, Contracts Officer
3999 Bridge View Drive

N, Charleston, SC 29405

Ifto CHARTER SCHOOL.:

East Cooper Montessori Charter School
Attention: Jody Swanigan

250 Ponsbury Road

Mt. Pleasant, 8.C. 29464

Richard A. Hricik, Esq.

Law Offices of Richard A. Hricik, P.A.
941 Houston Northcutt, Ste. 204

Mt. Pleasant, 8.C. 29464

Successors: This AGREEMENT shall inure to the benefit of and shall be
binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the parties hereto,

Remedies Cumulative:  All rights, options and remedies of DISTRICT
and CHARTER SCHOOL contained in this AGREEMENT shail be
construed and held to be cumulative, and no one of them shall be exclusive
of the other. Either party shall have the right to pursue any one or all of such
remedies or any other remedy or relief that may be provided by law or
equity, whether or not stated in this AGREEMENT. The failure of the
DISTRICT or CHARTER SCHOOL to insist in any one or more cases on
the strict performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, provisions,
or agreements of this AGREEMENT shall not be construed as a waiverora
relinquishment for the future of any such term, covenant, condition,
provision, or agreement.

vs’ Fee If any action at law or in equity shall be brought on
account ef an.y breach of, or to enforce or interpret any of the covenants,

13



19.

20.

21.

22.

23,

terms, or conditions of this AGREEMENT, or otherwise in connection with
this AGREEMENT, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the
other party as part of the prevailing party’s cost, reasonable attorneys’ fees,
the amount of which shall be fixed by the court and shall be made a part of
any judgment rendered.

Captiens: The captions and headings wsed in this AGREEMENT are for
the purpose of convenience and shall not be construed to linzit or extend the
meaning of any part of this AGREEMENT.

Days; Dates: Unless otherwise specified herein, all references to “day” or
“days” in this AGREEMENT shall mean a calendar day or calendar days. If
any date set forth in this AGREEMENT or computed pursuant to this
AGREEMENT falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or national holiday, such date
shall be deemed automatically amended to be the first business day
following such weekend day or holiday.

Governing Taw: This AGREEMENT is being made in the State of South
Carolina and shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of
the State of South Carolina.

Severability: = Wherever possible, each provision of this AGREEMENT
shall be interpreted in such manser as to be effective and valid under
applicable law, but if any provision of this AGREEMENT shall be
prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be
ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without
invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining provisions of
this AGREEMENT.

dimg :  In the event CHARTER SCHOOL remains in possession
of t}le SCHOOL PROPERTY after the expiration of the initial term hereof,
or any extension, CHARTER SCHOOL shall occupy the SCHOOL
PROPERTY on & month to month basis, subject to all the conditions of this
AGREEMENT. Should CHARTER SCHOOL elect to holdover under such
circumstances, without the written consent of DISTRICT, CHARTER
SCHOOL shall pay to DISTRICT monthly rent, in the amount equal to
FIVE AND 00/100s ($5.00) DOLLARS per square foot of space in use by
CHARTER SCHOOL, divided by twelve (12) months, beginning on the first

i4



24,

day of the next month Should eviction proceedings become mnecessary,
CHARTER SCHOOL hereby waives any right to notice or a hearing, and
shall be responsible for any fees or costs, including reasonable atiorney’s
fees incurred by DISTRICT in effecting such eviction.

a. Subordination. The rights of CHARTER SCHOOL shall be and
remain, at the election of DISTRICT or any ground lessor or
morigagee, subordinate to the lien of and rights under any current or
future mortgage, deed of trust, ground lease or other security
instrument affecting the SCHOOL PROPERTY during the term of
this AGREEMENT. This subordination shall be effective without the
necessity of any additional document being executed by CHARTER
SCHOOL; however, if requested by DISTRICT or any morigagee,
CHARTER SCHOOL shall execute and deliver within fifteen (15)
days after CHARTER SCHOOL’S receipt of such request in the form
requested by DISTRICT, or any mortgagee or ground lessor, any
additional documents evidencing the priority or subordination of this
AGREEMENT with respect to any such ground lease or the lien of
any such mortgage, deed of trust or other security instrument.
CHARTER SCHOOL'’S failure fo timely execute and deliver such
additional documents shall, at DISTRICT’S option, constitute an
event of default hereunder. Furthermore, if CHARTER SCHOOL
fails to execute and deliver any such additional documents within
fifteen (15) days of DISTRICT’S request, CHARTER SCHOOL’S
failure to execute and deliver such additional documents shall be
conciusively deemed to constitute irrevocable appointment of
DISTRICT as CHARTER SCHOOL'S special attorney-in-fact to
execute and deliver those additional documents., I DISTRICT'S
interest in the SCHOOL PROPERTY is acquired by any ground lessor
or morigagee, or in the event any foreclosure or in the event a
conveyance in lieu of foreclosure is made for any reason, CHARTER
SCHOOL shall, notwithstanding any subordination and upon the
request of the resulting successor-in-interest to DISTRICT, attorn o
such successor-in-interest and recognize such successor-in-interest as
the DISTRICT under this AGREEMENT.

15



25.

26.

b.  Estoppel Certificates. Within fifieen (15) calendar days of request
by DISTRICT or any mortgagee, CHARTER SCHOOL shall, from
time to time, execute and deliver estoppel certificates in the form and
certifying such matters with respect to this AGREEMENT, as
DISTRICT or any such mortgagee may reasonably req_uest.
CHARTER SCHOOL'S failure to timely execute and deliver any
such estoppel certificates shall be deemed CHARTER SCHOOL'S
certification of the statements in such certificate and, at DISTRICT*S
option, shall constitute an event of default hereunder. Furthermore, if
CHARTER SCHOOL fails to execute and deliver any such estoppel
within fifteen (15) calendar days of DISTRICT'S request, CHARTER
SCHOQL’S failure fo timely execute and deliver any such estoppel
certificate shall be conclusively deemed to constitute irrevocable
appointment of DISTRICT as CHARTER SCHOOL’S special
attorney-in-fact to execute and deliver such estoppel certificate.

} i This AGREEMENT embodies the entire agreement
and understandmg between the pamw hereto with respect to the subject
matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, oral,

written or otherwise, relating to such subject matter. No provision hereof
can be changed orally, and no change or attempted waiver of any provision
hereof will be binding unless in writing and signed by the party against
whom the same is sought to be enforced. The masculine pronoun, when
used herein, shall include the feminine and neuter pronoun, if applicable,
and the singular shall include the plural, if applicable.

Dispute Resoltion: If DISTRICT and CHARTER SCHOOL have any
dispute or claim arising out of or relating to this AGREEMENT or breach
thereof, and the parties are unable to resolve it between themselves, it is
expressly agreed that mediation is the next required step. If the parties
cannot agree on a mediator, one will be selected by the Administrative Judge
for the Court of Common Pleas for the Ninth Judicial Circuit {Charleston
County) from its list of approved mediators. If both parties expressly agree
that mediation will serve no useful purpose, then all other disputes or claims
shall be resolved exclusively by arbitration pursuant to South Carolina Code
Ann. Section 15-48-10, et seq. and in accordance with the Rules of the
American Arbitration Association (AAA) currently in effect. Although the
rules of the AAA shall be used, a single arbitrator shall be used and selected

16



by the parties. If the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator, one will be
appointed by the Administrative Judge for the Ninth Judicial Circuit
(Charleston County) from a list of approved arbitrators. It will be requested
of the Judge that the arbitrator be experienced in disputes of the pature then
pending, The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon both
parties, and any award rendered may be entered as a judgment in any court
having jurisdiction with any appeal directly to the Supreme Court of South
Carolina. Venue of any mediation or arbitration shall be Charleston County.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the said parties have hereunto set their hands and
seals as of the date and vear first written above.

DISTRICT:
CHARLESTON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

By /Z’ % Lf}?gé—?

Iis:  Supenntendent of Schools

Pate:

By QM% L&W L peiS

fts:  Chairman of the Board of Trustees

Date: - 23 %u_}_

CHARTER SCHOOL:
& South Carolina non-profit wrpomﬁon!orgamﬁonf&ssnczamn

By‘\\ %/ﬁfj]ff,f/ Q fkﬁf,{

Im; [ 0’23{;’{ (j/‘f E/

17



= e b g

TEAEELY s BB EET
225 e

L=<
RELE P2 B

ko2
LT =R IT BRI ETHDR,
Y

FEXRT, BERIL WSRTPICT BB D




Old Whiteaides Inventory of items ECMCS ie Using

Room ems

Room 11 5 small chairs

Front Hali 11 SmartBoards & Tech Boxes

Reom 41 Computer Lab Table

Tech £1 SmariBoards & Tech Boxes Some are missing trays and pens
Room 52 1 Science Table

Ecience Lab 8 Science Tables

Built-ln Sheives & Casework
Teacher Science Table

ilediz Centsr Circulation Desk
§ Stand-alone Racks
1 Long Wooden Table
1 Couch
1 Baa Hive
3 Computer Desks
§ Relling Book Carls
Wall mounted Shelves on 8§ walis
B Round Tables
36 Wooden Chairs
SmartBoard and Tech Box
1 Teacher Rolling Chair
Eimo & Laptop
3 rectanguliar Tables
€ burgundy Chairs
Z miscalizneous shelves
1 Book Return

Computer Lab 4 rolling Computer Desks
5 Burgundy Chairs
2 Roliing Chairs

Room: 28 short ladder

This is the day porterroom 11 Dlastic Carts
1 Rocking Chair

Annex Lunch Boom 26 Chairs
8 Ractangle Tables

"?E;km B

{f=



7 Cubby Boxes

Annex Office 1 Table

Annex Lab 24 padded rolling chairs
12 Computer Tables
24 Computers

Room: 25 B Sclence Tables

Science Rolling Table
1 Long Wooden Table

Reom 34 7 Filing Cabinets
2 large Paper Flle Boxes
L.arge Wooden Cabinet
Litility Shelf
2 Tall Wooden Bockshelves
3 Round Tables
1 Joni Craft Cubby Box
1 Partisan Classroom Shelf
11 Rectangle Tables
25 Desks
18 Small Chairs
2 Short Red Shelves
2 Wooden Desks
5 Long Lunchroom Tables
Kidney Table
10 Miscellaneous Shelves
1 Square Table
1 Water Table
1 Science Table
3 old Refrigerators {two are in teacher workroom & one in annex)

Principal'e Office 1 Wall Unit

Guidance Offlce ked. Table

fiscelianecus 4 Painted Stage Backgrounds
& Courtyard Benches
Cafeteria 40 Cafeterla Benches {can be taken at end of the year)
Raoom 48 2 Rolling Computer Tables
Room 47 Kiln
Music Room 8 Small Chairs
Bl B



The district will take responsibility of the following;

Construction of a secure entry to the Annex Building,

Provision of Visitor Check-in System.

Consiruction of a wireless overlay for the Annex Building.

District standard cleaning of the Annex Building.

Normal repairs of previously damaged, broken or non-functioning elements
of the Annex Building,

6. District standard preparation of campus grounds, play areas, and equipment

A

Beyond this list, ECMCS and CCSD can agree on other modifications.



EXHIBIT “I¥

LIST OF UTILITIES AND OTHER ONGOING EXPENSES TO BE ASSIGNED
TO BCMCS PROPORTIONATELY

Playground Mulch*
Day Porter**
Trash**

Electric*

Water™

Sewer*

Security**

Repair Services*
Contracied Services / Pest Control®*
AC Filters*

Total

* To be billed ECMCS as allocated to Annex
##% To be billed ECMCS as a percentage (20%)



CHARTER SCHOOL

CCSD & ECMICS Collaborative Educational Venture
(Doc October 2012)

The following are termed in cost savings for CCSD and not direct expenses.

Foundational Coursework -Teacher Training
35 CCSD teachers Montessori trained and credentialed savings of $6K
each - $210,000
Annual American Montessori Society Dues for training site - $7,000
Four model classrooms, materials usage $2.75 per sqft - $9,900
Access to annual professional development day $25 per teacher - $3,425

Internships/Mentoring Programs for Principals/Teachers/Assistants

Attracting, developing and retaining quality Montessori educators is essential to
the long-term viability of successful Montessori programs. Minimal turnover will
come from excellent choices in selecting talent and developing the talent through
training and mentorship.

Mentoring savings $76,625- $135,125

« DD Crawford has worked for two years for CCSD as Induction Coach and
Mentor serving our first year Montessori teachers who are also teaching
for the first year in the profession.

« VVeteran teachers have hosted after school workshops for the last three
years as invited by the district specialist for a particular level in their
prepared environments at ECMCS. Serving 25 teachers.

« Jody Swanigan, principal of ECMCS, has mentored a new principal in
training and is available to answer in house questions and solutions for
challenges that may arrive from day-to-day.

« ECMCS has hosted and offered a "back to school" Montessori Conference
three times inviting both private and public school communities to share
their knowledge.

« Teachers at ECMCS welcome observations and school visits by novice
Montessori teachers and principals from our schools to view the
workings of the Montessori prepared environments.



« Jody follows the guidelines and expectations for Essential Elements for
Monfessori Schools in the Public Sector and supports these as an
example for our newest school underway.

Technical Assistance

As an established school, ECMCS has the support network to be able to skillfully
provide technical assistance to start up Montessori programs that are often
stretched thin in the beginning years. $35, 400

Parent Portal
Leveraging parental suppott is critical to the development of the chiid, family and
program. ECMCS leverages tools and support in a number of ways including

Silent Journey, Parent Talk System and Parent Education Coursework. $8,800

Value-Added — $100,000K



CHARTER SCHOOL

Primary Program Addendum

The Montessori philosophy and pedagogy begins with the primary aged student.
ECMCS seeks to add a primary component to the school community in the fall of
2015. As part of the plan fo continue to offer a rigorous free public Montessori
education incorporating all levels of Montessori philosophy into the educational
opportunities available, ECMCS will also use the primary platform to welcome
diverse families. There are three spaces within the Rifle Range Campus already
prepared for primary aged children and continuing to utilize them as primary
aged will be a renovation cost savings.

East Cooper Montessori Primary will;

2 @ © e @

Offer much needed early education to students

Provide a platform for a diverse student body

Provide a full compliment of Montessori educational programming

Meet the goals of access and diversity within the district

Provide curriculum needed for struggling students entering in the
elementary levels

Provide the same level of care and efficacy as provided throughout the
successful model Montessori programming of the elementary and middle
levels

Represent the zone plan with a the same primary programming offered at
the other Montessori programs ,

Pay for all start-up costs including teacher training, furniture and fixtures
as well as other expenses not covered by the base cost.

Charleston County School District will:

Provide the student base cost (3$6,750) for non-state funded students
2015 — 16 students pilot class
2016 - 32 students
2017 - 48 students

Admission to the primary Montessori program:
ECMCS will have two lotteries for incoming three-year old children



First lottery will have the following priority order:

e Children of staff

e Siblings

» District 2

« Charleston County

Second lottery will be for families gualifying for free or reduced lunch.

Sixty per cent of the seats will be from 1st lottery
Forty per cent of the seats will be from 2nd lottery

As lotteries are conducted, seats that are not filled from either lottery will be filled
from the other lottery.

All children picked in the lottery will remain at the school until they age out.
If additional seats are available in grades 1 - 8, lotteries will be held following the
ECMCSIottery priorities as stated in their charter agreement with CCSD.

Funding

There will be no tuition to attend the primary Montessori program. CCSD agrees
to fund the base cost of the three and four year old children. The charter will pay
all expenses including the furniture and fixtures, teacher training, and any other
start up costs. During the third year, ECMCS and CCSD will enter into

discussions about funding options.



First lottery will have the following priority order:

« Children of staff

« Siblings

= District 2

« Charleston County

Second lottery will be for families gualifying for free or reduced lunch.

Sixty per cent of the seats wilt be from 1st lottery
Forty per cent of the seats will be from 2nd lottery

As lotteries are conducted, seats that are not filled from either lottery will be filled
from the other lottery.

All children picked in the lottery wilt remain at the school until they age out.
If additional seats are available in grades 1 - 8, lotteries will be held following the
ECMCSlIottery priorities as stated in their charter agreement with CCSD.

Funding

There will be no tuition to attend the primary Montessori program. CCSD agrees
to fund the base cost of the three and four year old children. The charter will pay
all expenses including the furniture and fixtures, teacher training, and any other
start up costs. During the third year, ECMCS and CCSD will enter into

discussions about funding options.



CHARTER SCHOOL

CCSD & ECMCS Collaborative Educational Venture
(Doc October 2012)

The following are termed in cost savings for CCSD and not direct expenses.

Foundational Coursework -Teacher Training
35 CCSD teachers Montessori trained and credentialed savings of $6K
each - $210,000
Annual American Montessori Society Dues for training site - $7,000
Four model classrooms, materials usage $2.75 per sqft - $9,900
Access to annual professional development day $25 per teacher - $3,425

Internships/Mentoring Programs for Principals/Teachers/Assistants

Atftracting, developing and retaining quality Montessori educators is essential to
the long-term viability of successful Montessori programs. Minimal turnover will
come from excellent choices in selecting talent and developing the talent through
training and mentorship.

Mentoring savings $76,625- $135,125

» DD Crawford has worked for two years for CCSD as Induction Coach and
Mentor serving our first year Montessori teachers who are also teaching
for the first year in the profession.

« Veteran teachers have hosted after school workshops for the last three
years as invited by the district specialist for a particular level in their
prepared environments at ECMCS. Serving 25 teachers.

e Jody Swanigan, principal of ECMCS, has mentored a new principal in
training and is available to answer in house questions and solutions for
challenges that may arrive from day-to-day.

« ECMCS has hosted and offered a "back to school" Montessori Conference
three times inviting both private and public school communities to share
their knowledge.

= Teachers at ECMCS welcome observations and school visits by novice
Montessori teachers and principals from our schools to view the
workings of the Montessori prepared environments.



= Jody follows the guidelines and expectations for Essential Elements for
Montessori Schools in the Public Sector and supports these as an
example for our newest school underway.

Technical Assistance

As an established school, ECMCS has the support network to be able to skillfuily
provide technical assistance to start up Montessori programs that are often
stretched thin in the beginning years. $35, 400

Parent Portal

Leveraging parental support is critical to the development of the child, family and
program. ECMCS leverages tools and support in a number of ways including

Silent Journey, Parent Talk System and Parent Education Coursework. $8,800

Value-Added — $100,000K



v SCHOOL DISTRICT

75 Calhoun Street, Charleston, SC 29401

CAPITAL PROGRAMS
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Michael L. Bobby
DATE: April 13, 2015

SUBJECT: Pinehurst Elementary School
RECOMMENDATION: It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School District Board of

Trustees authorize staff to enter into a contract with Thomas & Denzinger Architects, in the amount of
$1,303,952.00, to provide design services for Pinehurst Elementary School — Renovations & Additions.

The material is submitted for: B Action ] information

X Open [ ] Executive

Respectfully submitted:

Mr. Michael Bobby
Acting Superintendent of Schools

Dr. Lisa Herring
Deputy Superintendent for Academics

Mr. Jeff Borowy
Deputy for Capital Programs

Committee Recommendation(s):

Audit and Finance Committee recommendation:

Mr. Todd Garrett, Chair 7 Ny
Audit & Finance Committee M ﬁ v/




CAPITAL PROGRAMS
APRIL 13, 2015

SUBJECT:
Pinehurst Elementary School
BACKGROUND:

On August 9, 2010, by Item 9.8, the Board of Trustees approved the construction and
budget for the Pinehurst Elementary School. On June 22, 2014, Requests for
Qualifications (RFQ), for architectural and engineering services, were advertised for
this project and listed as Solicitation 14-CMG-R-006. Qualifications were received on
July 8, 2014. There were fifteen (15) responses to the solicitation from Architectural
firms. The Technical Evaluation Board (TEB) met on October 21, 2014 to review the
responses. The TEB discussed each proposal and came to a consensus that Usry Wolfe
Peterson Doyle, Thomas & Denzinger Architects and Red Iron Architects were best
suited for this project.

On October 24, 2014, the Source Selection Board (SSB) was briefed and concurred
with the recommendations submitted by the TEB. Invitations for the Interviewswere
issuedon October 24, 2014. Interviews were conducted on November 12, 2014. On
November 24, 2014, by Item 1.5, the Board of Trustees authorized Staff to negotiate a
contract with the highest ranked shortlisted firm Not to Exceed (NTE) $850,000.00.
On December 5, 2014 the SSB made the selection of Thomas & Denzinger Architects to
provide design services for Pinehurst Elementary School Additions & Renovations.

DISCUSSION:

During design fee negotiations and discussions between CCSD Staff and Thomas &
Denzinger Architects, the scope of work was modified. Originally, only major
renovations and one (1) addition was included in the scope of work. Current scope
includes major renovations, two (2) additions and master planning for future expansion
as well as commissioning costs. On March 19, 2015, Thomas & Denzinger Architects
submitted a revised proposal in the amount of $1,303,952.00. After a study and fee
analysis was completed it was determined their proposal to be fair and reasonable and
in line in industry standards.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School District Board of Trustees
authorize staff to enter into a contract with Thomas & Denzinger Architects, in the
amount of $1,303,952.00, to provide design services for Pinehurst Elementary School
- Renovations & Additions.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:

This project is being funded by the one (1) cent sales tax revenues.



FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:
No additional funds required.
DATA SOURCES:

Jeffrey Borowy, Deputy for Capital Programs
Rick W. Holt, Director, Cumming Construction Management, Inc.

PREPARED BY:

Jeffrey Borowy, Deputy for Capital Programs
Rick W. Holt, Director, Cumming Construction Management, Inc.

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES

N/A
REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES
Lawrence Lutrario, Construction Procurement Officer

ATTACHMENTS

1. Thomas & Denzinger - A/E Design Fee Analysis dated March 19, 2015
2. November 24, 2014 Board Report
3. August 9, 2010 Board Report



S10Z ‘6T yrew

00°009°9 $ 00'0E0'FL $ 00°095°'vL $ [buyepoly Ableug
0006875 3 0008¥'es  § DOS66°6F § [bumoissiuwoy [ejuatiepun
SIAJIAYIAS
TYNOILIQAY INTJONIINOD
%0L°L  D0'SEE'v0Z $ %821 | 00'S09°6SL 3§ %08l | 00°L65°BEL 3 [eloigng
- 00°0P6'S § lleouioaig Joy ubisaq epinoid
. 009101 $ [SHING-SY ‘UseyyBoIID8|g
- 00°009°21L § isHing-sy Bpig Buysixg
008288 § jdwnd a4
00'8bS 2L $ ALY DAJIWAIINISSEE]
00°0BO'SE $ o0Zer've % 00°0FPLL § Isonsnooy
0000072 $ 000F6'ZL § 0070007 ¢ |sbuuspuay
00'vEE'EL % 00°204'81 % - ¢ |Bumiuniad/suoneiuasaiy
: . rsBunsspy memey areig/Aln
00'290° 10} $ 00°002's g 000091 $ |dioed owspjebeyoe 8IS ApES
. 00°'S9% 71 g 00r65'92 & .D0'SLEBL 8 [wuensuog jooy
00 496 $ 00'0S6'€e % C00BLLLL £ 1B ZEHABUSWIUOIALT
- 00'z08'0e $ 0092t/ % DO'SEES § |yoaroen
00 0v9'sL $ 00°965°8 $ 00°002°EL § |Aenng
S3DIAHIS IYNOLLIGAY
%820  00°000'ZS $ 00°008'¥e % %EP0 | 00'000°0S 8 sdjqesinquiiey S/
00°g85'9LL'L  § %02.0! | 00'88Y' I¥2L 3 %98 | 00°962°200"t g | seoiaeg oiseq je1o) ang
000088 § o0SiErl  $ i § |soiniag pocy
00°06E" /¥2 3 DO'LES'B0Z  § - § 1Bu3 daw
D0'GZO'6L L $ DOELE'DSE  $ - ¢ |einpnng
0048229 3 00O¥SEDL  $ 00°BEGL] & 18ug wo
%PL'0  00006'SE 3 %9%'0 | 00EL9°98 & %i0°C 009687 £ |emnioayyory edeospue
%8F'C . 00'BILS /PO $ %0ES |00 IC9BYFE  § %ES'E 00002296 ¢ hoalgory
: : S99IAISG Jiseq
WI3LI
JBDIZUS(FSeWOY aljjoi ~IeBuZusq ¥ SBWOL ) ETY]
SNCWIS STNvYTr vdd ¢ s3isumnysuig JO0OHDS
_
SU0D % BYR'8HS'GE $ SU0D % | 091L'B222F  $ | ISU0D % 000cEELL I3 19bpng uolonasuc)
1 :

SISATYNY 924 ubiseq 3y
S3 LSHNHANId




STOZ ‘61 Y22y

%E6'L  GUSEDSIYL

5,062l |

$ 00'ErSLIE'L ¢ %OVl O0D'ZSE'E0EL L1 S334 MYLOL 8
%550 . 00'061'20L $ %obL'L | 00°0Z6'8EL  § %0680 - 00°STL'E0L g el ] qnsg
00°00L'0F $ 0o'oLr' 19 $ 00°0L1L 8¢ & |soue|eg pue isal

SISATTYNY 284 uBisaq 37y
S3 1SHNHINI




: vt o sy CCSD BOARD OF TRUSTEES . - i‘;}é 7 §
o AGENDA S AU
SCHOOL DIS 'RICT November 24, 2014 .
75 Calthoun St., Charleston, SC 29401

Business

A regular meeting of the Charleston County School District Board of Trustees was held on Monday, November 24, 2014, in
the Board Room at 75 Calhoun Street. The following members of the Board were present: Mrs. Cindy Bohn Coats - Chair,
Rev. Chris Collins, Mrs. Kate Darby, Mr. Tom Ducker, Rev. Eric Mack, Rev. Michael Miler, Mr. Emerson Tripp Wiles and Mr.
Michael Bobby, Acting Superintendent of Schools and Executive Secretary.  Mr. Todd Garrett and Mr. Chris Staubes — Vice

Chair were absent.

Staff members Mr. Jeff Borowy, Mr. John Emerson, Mrs, Michele English-Watson, Dr. Lisa Herring, Mrs. Anita Huggins, Mrs.
Audrey Lane, Mr. Ron Kramps, Mr. John McCarron, Dr. Brenda Nelson, Mrs. Terri Nichols, Mrs. Erica Taylor, Mrs. Latisha
Vaughn-Brandon, and Dr. James Winbush were also in attendance.

The news media was duly notified of the meeting. Media representatives were present.
L EXECUTIVE SESSION
4:30 p.m.
Rev. Collins moved, seconded by Mr. Miller, to go into Executive Session at 4:15 p.m. to discuss the Executive Session items

listed below. The motion was approved unanimously.
1.1:Student Transfer Request
1.2: Student Expulsion Appeal Hearings
1.3: Personnel Matters
1.4: Negotiations of Land and Building Purchase — Mr. Michael Bobby, Acting Superintendent of Schoois
1.5: Pinehurst Elementary Contract - Mr. Michael Bobby, Acting Superintendent of Schools
OPEN SESSION
5:15 p.m.
11. CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION/MOMENT OF SILENCE, & PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE
Mrs. Coats called the Open Session meeting of November 24, 2014 to order. Then she calied for a Moment of
Silence foliowed by the Pledge of Ailegiance.

IXL. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
Rev. Collins moved, seconded by Mr. Ducker, to adopt the November 24, 2014 agenda with one amendment.

Agenda item 7.3B Financial Minutes of October 30, 2014 was pulled because it was inadvertently left out of the
board agenda packet. The vote was 7-0.

Iv. SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS (15 minutes) — Mrs. Erica Taylor, Executive Director of Strategy &
Communications
There were no speclal recognitions this evening.

V. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT — Mr. Michael Bobby, Acting Superintendent of Schools

Acting Superintendent, Mr. Michael Bobby began his report by thanking stakeholders in attendance for their
support provided to CCSD. He also thanked Board members, Mrs. Coats, Rev. Mack and Mr. Staubes, for their
support on November 14, 2014, when the District publicly acknowledged our "Excellent Rating.”

Mr. Bobby thanked employees recognized at the at the monthly Superintendent's High Performing Breakfast for
continuing to go above and beyond. He was able to see first-hand what is so special about honoring CCSD team
members who do 50 much for our children. The discussion during the breakfast was informative and inspirational

and he looks forward to hosting the next one in January.

Mr. Bobby thanked the current Teacher of the Year, Ms. Jamie Cunningham, whom he had the opportunity to
present during a Charleston Classic Basketbali Game. He commended her for her efforts and acknowledged that

she continues to do great things for our students.

Current teachers who are being celebrated by their schools as the 2014-2015 Teachers of the Year candidates will
be recognized at the district’s annual Educator Gala in February

Mr. Bobby thanked the countless partners for supporting CCSD. Teacher Supply Closet was commended for
1




VL.

making it possible for teachers to supply their classrooms with the most basic tools so that our children will have
the necessities they need for academic success. The Teacher Supply Closet and other partners that support the
work of the district are appreclated. :

Mr. Bobby said he was thankful for this season because the Thanksgiving holiday s his favorite holiday because it
is filled with family, friends, and time to be thoughtful and grateful for the treasures of life we have recelved.

Mr. Bobby concluded his report by saying although this has been a rocky month in Charleston County, we remain
thankful. We remain thankful for our ever-improving ratings; for the extension of the one penny sales tax which
will help us continue our cutting-edge capital programs initiative; and for the unwavering support we receive from

thousands of community partners.

VISITORS, PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS

1, Mr. George Green, a Mt. Pleasant Academy (MPA) parent, spoke on behalf of other MPA parents,
inquiring about the appeal process for rezoning in District 2. He expressed concerns about the number of
students impacted and the amount of time parents must wait to appeal.

2. Rev. Ed McClain used biblicat scriptures about the use of straw to build bricks to express his concerns
about Low Country Tech at Rivers. He congratulated Dr. McGinley and staff about the recent
announcement of the report cards scores. He also urged the Board to reinstate Dr. McGinley as
Superintendent of Schools for the sake of Charleston County Students instead of going through a costly
process of searching for a new superintendent.

3. Rev. Nelson Rivers said 60 years ago schools were officially desegregated by the South Carolina Supreme
Court. South Carolina refused then and refuses now. He spoke of the history of Bonds Wilson High
Schaol stating that it was built as a segregated school. And, sixty years later there is another segregated
school on the same campus as Academic Magnet High School. In that school only 15 of the 650+
students are African-American. He went on to say that Academic Magnet High School is a publidly funded
private school and said it was a disgrace that Board members allowed this to happen in 2014. Rev.
Rivers spoke about the district’s Report Card celebration and expressed concerns about Dr. McGinley
being forced out and fired when she should be credited for doing the right thing and bringing the district
to this point. He urged the Board to reinstate Dr. McGinley and not accept a publicly funded private
school that is almost all white in 2014.

4. Ms. Yolanda Gibbs, a James Island parent, expressed concerns about overcrowding and the future of
schools on James Island. She said Harborview, Stiles Point, and James Island Elementary are all at
capacity. She asked if traditional students would be forced in trallers to allow a full transition of the
Montessori program. She said it is imperative to have four elementary schools on James Istand.

5. Ms, Shante’ Ellis, presented questions and concerns with the Board about the Montessori and Traditional
programs at Murray LaSaine.

6. Mr. Shannon O'Brien, a retired CCSD educator and state department specialist at the State Department of
Education, spoke in support about Dr. McGinley. She mentioned the goals Dr. McGinley put in place for
students and teachers and how she motivated teachers and principals to build strong teams. She urged
the Board to reinstate Dr. McGinley.

7. Mrs, Ann Birdseye, a retired educator that worked with the CCSD Central staff, addressed the Board in
support of reinstating Dr. Nancy McGinley. She urged the Board to reinstate Dr. McGinley,

8. Ms. Jean Morgan addressed the Board about the District 2 Board's rezoning and the impact on students
that were granted transfers for multiple years. She also expressed concerns about the process. She said
the timing of this decision—three weeks after the magnet schoo! application deadline was unfair. She
requested the Board grandfather students impacted by the rezoning decision and provide information to
parents regarding the appeals process.

9. Mr, Muhammed Idris spoke about a book titied “Mis-education of Negroes” by Carter G. Woodson and the
gap between the rich and poor citing that the gap between the two groups is not about race; but about
greed. He sald when one is educated, they don't look for a job; they create jobs. He said society has
taken God out of the educational system and has given the credit to professors, He concluded that there
is no fairness in the system.

10. Mrs. Carol Tempel, a retired CCSD educator, spoke about the district’s excellent report card and attributed
the achievement to the leadership of Dr. McGinley. She said the dedsion about Dr. McGinley was a last

2




11.

12,

i3.
14,

15.

16.

minute decision of an outgolng board. She suggested the new Board has the ability to reinstate Dr.
McGinley to allow her to complete her vision for 2016 and provide a quality education for the students tn
the district.

Rev. Alonzo Washington addressed the Board about the district’s excellent report card rating. He said it
was a travesty to see Dr. McGinley, whose teadership resuited in an excellent rating, be treated unfairly.
He urged the new Board to consider an offer to reinstate Dr. McGinley.

Mrs. Dot Scott, addressed the Board on behaif of the NAACP, to urge the board to reconsider the recent
decision to accept the resignation of Dr, McGinley as School Superintendent. She said the decision was
far from voluntary and a result of being pressured to resign due to the racial issue with the Academic
Magnet High School football tearn. She suggested the Board used that as an excuse to get rid of Dr.
McGinley who kept her promise about the shared Rivers facility and establishment of Low Country Tech
Academy. Dr. McGinley was also pro-active in promoting diversity among her senior staff and worked
hard to bring equity in funding and staffing in all schools. 1t is sad that those on the school board were
only interested in micromanaging and catering to their own interests. White Dr, McGinley and the NAACP
hasn't always seen eye-to-eye, she has displayed a wiilingness to talk to the community and build
linkages, Since her forced resignation, her work has resulted In an excellent rating. Mrs. Scott urged the
Board to reinstate McGinley for the children in Charleston County.

Mrs. Elizabeth Martin, a retired educator, addressed the Board about the efforts of Dr. McGinley and the
implementation of her long range plans. She requested that Dr. McGiniey be reinstated.

Mr. Tripp Moye, expressed concerns about rezoning in District 2 and issues refated to shuffling students
back to their home school. He urged the Board to reconsider the process.

Ms. Lora Renedo, expressed concerns about rezoning in District 2, They were informed on Friday that
they'd have to go back to their home school when they were told earlier that they were accepted through
the grade level. She asked the Board to reconsider the decision to rezone.

Mr. Dexter Rumsey expressed concerns about the recent rezoning decision in District 2. He suggested
the constituent Board revisit the decision.

VIL. APPROVAL OF MINUTES/EXECUTIVE SESSION AGENDA ITEMS

7.5

7.2

A. Open Session Minutes of October 21, 2014 Special Called Meeting
Mr. Miller moved, seconded by Mr. Ducker, to approve the open session minutes of October 21, 2014,

The vote was 7-0.
B. Open Session Minutes of the November 10, 2014
Mr. Miller moved, seconded by Mr. Wiles, to approve the amended open session minutes of November

10, 2014. The vote was 7-0.
e Rev. Mack asked staff to determine the cost of constructing a new facility for Angel Oak

Elementary.
e Rev. Mack sald Mr. Garrett said $9.3 million was allocated to Angel Oak; not Stone Park.
Executive Session Action Items of November 24, 2014
The Board voted on the following executive session action items of November 24, 2014,

i.1: Student Transfer Request
Mr. Ducker, moved, seconded by Mr. Miller, to deny a student transfer request. The vote was 7-0.

1.2: Student Expulsion Appeat Hearings

The Board identified dates for student expuision appeal hearings.

1.3: Personnel Matters

Mr. Ducker moved, seconded by Rev. Mack to create the position of Deputy Superintendent for
Academics and to authorize the Chair to execute addenda to the current employment contracts
between the Charleston County Schoo! District and Dr, Lisa Herring to serve as Deputy Superintendent
for Academics and Mr. Michael Bobby to serve as an Acting Supetintendent, which will provide
additional responsibilities and compensation respectively, consistent with the discussions in executive

session. The vote was 7-0.

In response to a question from Rev. Collins, Mrs. Coats said the contract addendums would be effective

immediately.
1.4: Negotiations of Land and Building Purchase — Mr. Michael Bobby, Acting

Superintendent of Schools
Mr. Miller moved, seconded by Rev. Mack, to autharize the district to negotiate a purchase contract for

Northwoods Academy site and structures. The contract would ultimately be brought to the Board for

3




final approval. The vote was 7-0.

Mr. Bobby said there are 3 parcels with approximately 10-12 acres. Staff is determining how much of

the land is usable,
1.5: Pinehurst Elementary Contract — Mr. Michael Bobby, Acting Superintendent of Schoois

Mr. Miller moved, seconded by Mr. Ducker, to authorize the district to negotiate a contract with the
highest ranked shortlisted firm post interview/presentation at a Not to Exceed (NTE) cost of
$850,000.00. The funding source is the one-cent sales tax revenues. The vote was 7-0.

A. Financial Minutes of October 21, 2014 Special Called Meeting

Mr. Miller moved, seconded by Mr. Ducker, to approve the financial minutes of October 21, 2014. The
vote was 7-0,

B. Financial Minutes of the October 38, 2014 Special Calied Emergency Meeting

The financlal minutes of October 30, 2014 were pulled from the agenda. Therefore, no action was
taken.

C. Financial Minutes of November 10, 2014 Meeting

The financial minutes of November 10, 2014 were pulled from the agenda. Therefore, no action was

taken.

Mr. Ducker asked why the FY15 impact was $470 million. Mr. Bobby said that was an error that would
be corrected.

VIIY, CAE UPDATE

8.1:

A. Murray LaSaine Montesscori Pilot Update — Mrs. Terri Nichols
Mrs. Terri Nichels, Associate Superintendent in the Elementary Learning Community, presented an
update on the Montessori pilot program at Murray LaSaine Elementary.

Background Information
« November 2012 the Board approved the Montessori pilot program to begin Fall 2013 at MLES

¢ Fall 2013, Montessori classrooms cpened {3 Primary and 2 Lower Elementary)

e During the 2013-2014 school year 36 informational meetings were held to inform the MLES
community about the Montessori option

Facility Upgrade

« Develop plans for the renovation of MLES that started Fall 2013

¢ Pians indude classroom space large enough for Montessori instruction

e  MLES refocates and renovation begins - Fali 2014

Current Enrollment - Murray LaSaine: Enrollment Today

e Primary: 64

= CDand K:46

¢ lower EL:59

e 1st, 2nd and 3rd grade:40

« Upper EL:18

e 4th and Sth grade:24

Total Enroliment

¢ Montessori - 141

e Traditional - 110

= Total Enroliment —-251

Program Support

¢ Montessori Training: LaDene Conroy

« Classroom best instructional practice: Cassie Novelt

= District PD Instructional Coach: o Anne Solesbee

Primary Grades Academy Growth

e MLES PGA Students: Students who made at least typical growth Fall to Spring MAP Reading (2013-
2014)

Summary:




August 9, 2010
A regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Charleston County School District was held on
Monday, August 9, 2010 with the following members of the Board present: Chair — Mrs. Ruth Jordan,
Vice Chair - Mr. Ray Toler, Rev. Chris Collins, Mr. Chris Fraser, Mrs. Toya Hampton-Green, Mrs. Efizabeth
Kandrac, Mr. Gregg Meyers, Mrs. Ann Oplinger, Mr. Arthur Ravenel and Dr. Nancy J. McGinley -
Superintendent of Schools and Executive Secretary. Staff members Mr. Michael Bobby, Mr. John
Emerson, Dr. Doug Gepford, Mrs. Audrey Lane, Mr. Bill Lewis, Dr. Brenda Nelson and Mr. Elliot Smalley
were also in attendance.

The news media was duly notified of the meeting and representatives were present.

Chair - Mrs. Ruth Jordan called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. Mr. Meyers motioned, seconded by
Mrs. Oplinger to convene into Executive Session to discuss agenda items listed below. The motion was

unanimously approved.

Executive Session Agenda Items
1.1: Student Transfer Appeals
1.2: Workers’ Compensation Settlements

1.3: Teacher Appeals
1.4: Personnel Matter
1.5: Greg Mathis Plan — Move to Open Session
1.6: Kindergarten Appeal

II. CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION/MOMENT OF SILENCE. ANP PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Board reconvened in Open Session at 5:15 p.m. Vice Chair — Mrs, Jordan calied the meeting to
order followed by a Moment of Silence and the Pledge of Allegiance.

III. SPECIAL RECOGNITION
Recognition — West Ashley High School ROTC Team

The Board recognized Master Chief Strickland and two heroic ROTC West Ashley students, Savannah
Bryan and Chris Beachler, for their courageous efforts in assisting a family moments after they were
involved in an automobile accident,

IV. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT
4.1: Superintendent’s Report

Dr. McGinley shared the following:
¢ The first day of school is just over one week away the district has a lot going on. Last week
Adequate Yearly Progress, or “A-Y-P,” and the “PASS” assessment of third-through-eighth grade

students were received.

o The AYP results, based on federal benchmarks, were positive. Two years ago, only 21 of CCSD
schools made AYP. This year, for the second year in a row, 51 schools made AYP. Statewide,
only 52% of schools made AYP, compared with 74% of CCSD schools. When Title I schools do
not make AYP, they enter “improvement” status and must offer school choice and supplemental
services, This year, the district is down to 14 schools that must offered school choice. That's
half the number from 2008. Dr. McGinley said she felt good about the fact that less time,
money and energy will be spent on transporting students from faiiing schools, and more will be
spent on keeping students learning and achieving in their neighborhood schools.

o CCSD did not make AYP because schools and districts must hit every target in order to make
AYP, and CCSD hit 34 out of 37. Although the district's compliance index has increased for
three straight years, the district will focus on the three missed targets and have a plan for
picking up the pace.

6-1-1 - Page | of 9



9.2: Board Policy Regulation — ECA-R - Security - The Board received Policy Regulation ECA-R as
information.

9.3: Home School Applications — A recommendation to approve the home school applications. Mrs.
Oplinger moved, seconded by, Mr. Meyers approval of home school applications. The motion was

approved 9-0.

9.4: Purchase of K-5 Reading Workbooks ~ A recommendation to approve the purchase of K-5 FiA
workbooks to accompany the Trophies text series. The total cost is $303,988.94. The funding source is K-
5 Funding. - Mrs. Oplinger moved, seconded Mr. Meyers, approvai of the recommendation to purchase K-
5 ELA workbooks. The motion was approved 9-0.

9.5: Drayton Hali Elementary Parking Lot Improvements — 4 recommendation to approve the
change order to correct subgrade soil and replace with suitable fill and additional funds--$30,356.55 to
complete the project. The funding source is Fixed Cost of Ownership savings and Reaflocation funds. The

motion was approved 9-0.

9.6: Purchase of Surveillance System and Camera Access for St. Andrews Elementary — 4
recormynendalion to approve a reallocation request from FYI0 Fixed Cost of Ownership to Security to
purchase and install surveillance access and camera system for St. Andrews Elementary. - Mrs. Oplinger
moved, seconded by Mr. Meyers, approval of the reallocation request for the installation of surveillance
access and camera system for St. Andrews Elementary School. The amount is $62,557.03 Capital/Fixed
Cost of Ownership Funds. The motion was approved 9-0.

9.7: District Wide Professional Painting Services — Bid #1032 — 4 recommendation to award the
District Wide Professional Painting Services to the following firms. The funding source for this contract will
be General Operating Funds. The potential contract cost over the maximum term (5 years) Is unknown at
this time.

S&A Enterprises Dan Ahring4425

2125 Woodtrail Drive Longwood Drive

Columbia, SC 29210 Ladson, SC 29418

A & A Contractor, Inc. JW Painting & Repairs

2038 Highway 35 2112 Commeander Road
Saint Stephen, SC 29479 Narth Charleston, 5C 29405

Mr. Mevers moved, seconded by Mr, Fraser, approval of the recommendation to award District Wide
Professional Painting Services to the firms listed ahove. The motion was approved 9-0.

9.8: Six Year Capital Program One-Cent Tax Referendum — A recommendation to place a 1%
Educational Capital Improvement Sales and Use Tax on the Ballot for Consideration November 2, 2010.

During discussion, Mr. Bobby said the Board approved the 8-year plan at the last Board Workshop.
However, after reflecting on what could be approved in November, a 6-year is now recommended.
The following information was provided on the four Bands:

6-1-5 - Page 50f 9




Band 1 - Life Safety (Sullivan’s Island and District 20 seismically chalienged schools)

Band 2 - QOvercrowding

Band 3 — Work to Support Building Improvements and Program Issues

Band 4 — District Wide items such as Athletic Fields and land purchases

Mr. Bobby said the 6-year plan provides access/opportunities across the county and hits the highest
priorities. While it does not fund everything, it aligns with what was heard from stakeholders.

e &8 @ @

Mr. Jake Stoudemire, Assistant Director of Research at the Riley Center located at the College of
Charleston, was introduced by Mr. Bobby to share preiiminary findings of the survey they were hired to
conduct. Mr. Stoudemire shared the following:

« In spring he was approached to do a pelitical polling for & referendum of $300 mililon and $500
million. With help from Mr. Bobby and the Chamber, questions were developed and a list was
purchased to do polling of voters who not only vote during Presidential elections. Trained students
used scripts and called between hours of 3pm and 9pm. Three attempts were made to call each
number. Anyone who wished not to participate was removed from the list. Telephone numbers
used came from voters’ registration. Mr, Stoudemire said due to summer vacation, time was an
issue, However, approximately 300 surveys were compieted.

= Persons polled responded to questions about age, gender, race, income, housing, tenure, etc.
They were also asked if they had students in CCSD schools and the age range. They were polled
about their awareness of recent district constructions and examples were provided. Both, the $300
million and $500 million options were shared. The person polled was asked if they were fikely to
support or not support the two options provided. 58% of those polled did not favor the $500
million option. Only those who were negative to the $500 million were polled about the $300
million option. Some polled were negative about bath options. Open comments from those polled
were will be provided at a later date.

Mr. Fraser commented that the majority of those polled preferred a Sales Tax over Property Tax and a
shorter term. Mr. Ravenel said they should have been asked if they preferred the 8 year plan over the 6
year plan. That would have made a difference. While the 6 year plan is attractive, the 8 year plan would
allow more money, almost $600 million and take care of all facility needs.

Mr. Meyers suggested the Board focus on the list of projects proposed and articulate how schoals would be
prioritized in item #25. Mr. Ravenel reminded the Board that someone who supported the 8-year plan or
some wha was absent when the Board voted on the 8-year plan must be willing to support the 6-year plan
recommendation. Mr. Ravenel also reminded the staff about the Air Conditioner for the gymnasium at
Garrett Acadermy. Mr. Bobby said staff will proceed with the Garrett project utilizing two funding sources.

Mr. Meyers moved, seconded by Mr. Fraser, to approve the 6 year plan. Mr. Bobby responded to a
question from Mrs. Kandrac about why Garrett was moved from Band 3 to Band 1 indicating that it was
because of the Life Safety Seismic Evaluation. Also Mr. Bobby said the same process that was used earlier
would be used to get the best analysis. Mrs. Kandrac also questioned the amount identified for Buist
Academy. Staff responded that Buist Academy has both elementary and middle grades (K-8) and special
program requirements. Mr. Fraser suggested Stono Park and Jennie Moore be moved to the top of the list
over parking lots in Band 4. Mr. Meyers said if approved, the Board has the latitude of changing priorities.
However, he discouraged the Board to do so at this time because the newly elected Board may want to
make changes upon being elected in November.

In response to Mrs, Green’s question about Campaign Manager, Mr. Fraser said the Chamber is willing to
run the campaign.

After Mrs. Kandrac read a statement Mr. Bobby made at the June 2, 2010 Board meeting about hiring
someone to study potential revenue streams, Mr. Bobby said Miley and Associates submitted & proposal

0-1-6 - Page 6 of 9




not to exceed $15,000. Mrs. Kandrac moved there be an Independent Audit by an auditor identified by the
Attorney General or Comptroller. No one seconded the motion. Mrs, Kandrac said audits should be
conducted every three years. Mr. Fraser said the district is audited annually. Rev. Collins said it was not a
bad idea if they could help the district save money.

Mrs. Jordan asked about the CTE program at the Rhett building. Mr. Bobby said the CTE program for Low
Country Tech at Rhett is not included in the list of proposed projects. However, he recommended placing
it under Band #3. He suggested $5 million for advanced design. However, he said additional funding may

have to be found later.

Mr. Fraser suggested funds for James Island Charter High School for a fine arts facility and small
auditorium as advanced design. An additional $15 million was suggested. This amount would raise the

$10 million previously identified to $25 million.

At this time, Mr. Fraser moved, seconded by Mr. Ravenel, the Board reconsider its approval of an 8-year
capltal program and approve the G-vear program [Agenda [tem #9.B) with the following modifications.
The motion was approved 7-2 (Colling and Kandrac opposed).
« Expand ltem # 25 to list each school whose athletic facilities is proposed to be affecied;
s The allocation for James Island Charter High be expanded from $10 miliion to $25 million for a Fine
Arts facility;
¢ Include in Band 3 include $5 million for Advanced Design and CTE Program for Low Country Tech
at the Rhett campus; and
= Stono Park and Jennie Moore be moved to the top of band 4, (o be listed above the Arzalea bus ot
Rengvation currently listed first),

9.9: Eight Year Capital Program — A recommendation to place a 1% Educational Capital Improvement
Sales and Use Tax on the Ballot for Consideration November 2, 2010.

The Board did not vote on this item since item #9.8 was approved.

9.10: Greg Mathis Plan — In response to an earfier request from the Charleston County School District,
Greg Mathis Charter submitted their Academic and Attendance Improvement Plan.

Mr. Emerson said the Board adopted a motion to forgive Greg Mathis the debt of approximately
$32,000.00 owed to CCSD and renew the charter for one year provided Greg Mathis provides the Board,
within 45 days, a comprehensive plan for academic improvement and a plan to increase attendance. Greg
Mathis submitted their Academic and Attendance Improvement Plan last week which is brought before the
Board for review prior to school openings. Mr. Emerson shared the following from the plan submitted:
» Academic Performance

o The plan mentions 4x4 block scheduling, Implementation of MAP Testing,

o Implementation of the USATestprep—which CCSD is not familiar with,

o Implementation of the Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) test—which requires a license and is

a computer system which their computers may not be able to support,

o And Implementation of APEX.
¢ Attendance Improvement — simply says by increasing students’ performance, students will attend.
e The recommendation from CCSD staff is to not accept the improvement plan submitted by Greg
Mathis. Mrs. Oplinger agreed the academic plan was very vague and lacked specificity. She also said the
attendance plan was weak. Mr. Fraser called for a motion.  Rev. Collins moved approval of staff's
recommendation. Mr. Emerson said the plan does not support the motion the Board adopted. Therefore,
the Board should revoke the charter. Mr. Meyers said there were no goals in the plan. However, he did
not mind giving Greg Mathis Charter another chance allowing staff to go back to set goals. Rev. Collins
said to the Board that when Greg Mathis came before the Board earlier, the Board was too lenient. The

6-1-7 - Page 7 of 9




district cannot afford to place students in the school not knowing if they will succeed when there are other
schools available for these students to attend.

Mr. Emerson stated that today counts 45 days since the Board heard the appeal of Greg Mathis. The
statute does not specifically say if its 45 days from the hearing or date the Order is issued. He went on to
say the Order was issued 10 days after the appeal hearing. ™Mr. Ravenel said it's been a long time and
students at the schoo! are adults which he wants to be successful. Very few students will enroll in other
schoals. Some may even wind up in jail. In addition, they just lost a principal who had good intent. Since
there is a new principal, he suggested the Board delay making decision tonight and allow Greg Mathis to
bring a plan which has specifics. This will also allow him time to meet with the new principal. Mr. Toler

agreed with Mr. Ravenel.

Rev. Collins said the district is in the business of educating students. However, the number of students at
Mathis does not support the funds spent for the charter school. He was told by Jenkins Academy staff that
only 30 meals are sent to Mathis daily. Dr. McGinley referred to the Alternative Plan, Credit Recovery and
Online Program information presented by Dr. Herring at an earlier Board meeting. Dr. Herring said Clark
Academy, the Summit Program, Home School, Online Program and Adult Education are the options for

students currently enrolied at Greg Mathis.

Mrs., Oplinger moved, seconded by Rev. Colling, to revoke the Greg Mathis’ charter. The motion was
approved 5-0-3 (Meyers abstained; Kandrac, Ravenal and Toler cpposed).

There being no further business to come before the Board, at 8:15 p.m. Mr. Meyers moved, Mr. Fraser to
adjourn the meeting. The motion was approved by consensus.

Approved:

Nancy J. McGinley, Ed.D.
Superintendent of Schools

6-1-8 - Page B of 9



400

$22,000,000

$22,000,000 _

900,000

1 1.20.1 Memminger £5 {rebulld schoagl) ‘ 379 20 C4
i 202, JAMes Simons ES (rebulld school} 276 400 20 c4 $27,400,000 $49,400,000
A, 1,203 | Bulst Academy (rebulld school) | 394 500 20 C4 $3_§‘_?_{_)_q¢gﬂﬂ [ $85,100,000 :
Charleston Progressive Academy
i . 1,204  {rebulld school) . 2895 400 20 Ca £18,600,000 %103,700.000
' Selsmic Evaluation (Mary Ford &
3 1.4.8  Northwoods MS) NjA N/A 4 NJA $700,000 $104,400,000
i Selsmlc Evaluation (C.E,
: Williams, St. Andraws, & West
1107 Ashley MS N/A NfA 10 N/A $900,000 $105,300,000
i Seismlc Evaluation, Advance
. Deslgn (Garratt Academy of :
141  Tech) 791 _ N/A .4 £3 .. . $1,600,000 $106,900,000

Murray LaSaine ES {whale school

amer Tnoly
2 2.2.3 . Academy (Naw School [Addition) N/A 600 2 N/A $49,700,000 $156,600,000
2 2.3.1  Harborview ES {rebulld school) 577 600 3 c4 426,500,000 $183,100,000
P4 2.4.3 . Chicora ES {rebuild schoal) 378 600 4 €3 $28,ﬂﬂg,000 $211.1005000
St. Andrews Math and Science ES
| 2 2,10,1  (rabulld school) 750 750 10 Cc4 $33,100,000 $244,200,000
Montessori Community School
2 2.10.5 | {new school) 123 350 10 C4/QSCB $6,000,000 $250,200,000 l
2 2,103 | Springfeld (rebulld school) . 519 . 750 19 | €3 $33,100,000 |  $263,300,000
Lalng Middle School (rebuild 900712
2 2.2.2.2  school) 451 i oo 2 c4 $30,100.000  $322,400,000

3 . 3.99.1 Center (IT relocation;

200 400 3 c3 $10,000,000 ___%$332.400,000
Angel Oak ES {whole school
3 75 renovation) 400 410 9 c3 $9,300,000 341,700,000
" North Charleston Creative Arts £S
L3 e, ATebUI school) N/A 500 4 N/A $27.100,000 3368,800.000
James Island Charter HS (design,
3332  traffic site, athletic improvement) 1450 1600 2 €1 $10,000,000 $378.800,000
CCSD Emergency Operation
NiA 99 €3 .-$2,500,000 $381,300,000

b i 322 Axalea Hus Lot | $7,500,000 . $386,800,000
4 ° 4,990.3 ' District 3 Bus Lot N/A N/A 3 c4 $3,300,000 . $392,100,000
Athletic Advance Deslgn and
.. $39.4  Weight Room Impravement N/A N/A 89 c3/C4 $4,000000 $396,1000
Pinehurst Elementary - Roof &
3 ing Renovation Repair 785 400 4 €3 $15,300,000 $411,390,000
) o Park ES (rebuild school) 386 600 0 c4 $26,600,000 0o,
4 | 4221 | Jennle Mogre ES (rebulld school) 719 900 2 €4 $34,400,000 [ $472.400,000 |
4 4.4.4 | Dunston ES (advanced desipn) 315 50¢ 4 €3 $975,000 $473,375000
4 4.2.4 . carolina Park £5 (land) N/A 80D 2 N/A . $3,500,000 . £476,875,000 |
4 4.4.5 ' Ingleside Campus (land) N/A 600 4 N/A $3,500,000 ; $480,375,000
4. 4106 N/A RfA_ 10 { __$3,500000 | 483,875,000 .

 Propram Contingency @ 5%

$24,193,750

GrandTotal

6-1-9 - Page 9 of 9

.$508,066,750




75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

Finance & Operations
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Michael L. Bobby

DATE: April 13, 2015

'SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUBJECT: Fixed Cost of Ownership Prioritized List of Projects for Fiscal Year

2016

RECOMMENDATION: It is hereby recommended that the Charleston
County School District Board of Trustees receive and approve the prioritized
list of projects under the capital budget for Fixed Cost of Ownership (FCO)

for fiscal year 2016 as submitted and attached.

The material is submitted for: Action [ ] Information
Open [ | Executive

Respectfully submitted:

Mr. Michael Bobby
Acting Superintendent of Schools

Dr. Lisa Herring
Deputy Superintendent for Academics

Mr. Jeff Borowy
Deputy for Capital Programs

Committee Recommendation(s):

Audit and Finance Committee recommendation:

Mr. Todd Garrett, Chair
Audit & Finance Committee




Finance & Operations
April 13, 2015

SUBJECT:
Fixed Cost of Ownership Prioritized List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2016

BACKGROUND:

Staff annually determines requirements for replacement, improvements and
construction across the county among all of the District’s schools and
support facilities. The fixed cost of ownership process is critical and
important to our care of public assets and for providing quality educational
experiences across the county and it has been supported by our Charleston
County School District Board of Trustees for many years. It has also been
clearly understood and will continue to be such that the magnitude of
funding need versus actual funding is desperately out of balance. This
disparity going without correction will ultimately pass the tipping point with
respect to our ability to continue to support the desired level of quality and
equity across the District, for everything from technology to facility
conditions and furnishings and equipment.

DISCUSSION:

The current status for fiscal year 2016’s capital budget is such that the
Charleston County School District Board of Trustees has already approved
the Series A, Series B and Series C bond anticipation notes (BAN) to be
issued in the spring of 2015. Part of the general obligation bond issuance is
to support the FCO Project. The FCO action item was also approved to
support an issuance specific for FCO in the amount of $23,588,000. This will
be the fourth year in which the District has utilized the Spring BAN to
generate FCO funding such that it is available prior to the summer within
which much of the work to prepare for the opening of the school year is
accomplished. The amount of funding requested and approved matches the
amount of (BAN) funding in the current year.

As has been done per Board request and direction, each of the areas that fall
within the FCO realm have developed condition assessments, program
requirements, individual building requests, etc. a prioritized list with
estimated costs. Please find attached to this document in the following
order the list of these projects:

1. Facilities Maintenance & Asset Management
2. Risk, Safety and Environmental Management
3. Information Technology
a. Classroom modernization
b. IT infrastructure
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment
. Curricular/Extra-Curricular Support: Career Technical Education(CTE),
Arts, and Athletics

o



Note: There will also be an account set up for contingency utilization (to
manage unforeseen, undeliverable needs}, design and consulting.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School District Board
of Trustees receive and approve the prioritized list of projects under the
capital budget for Fixed Cost of Ownership (FCO) for fiscal year 2016 as
submitted and attached.

FUNDING SCURCE/COST:

General Obligation Bonds

Short-term borrowings

Paid off in less than 12 months

Interest rates have been less than 1% for this type of issuance in the past
several years.

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:

The ability to complete project replacement, improvement, etc. in a timely
fashion reduces the future magnitude of costs for the same elements had
they been ignored. The inability to address needs on a timely basis in a
significant way will cause fiscal impacts that at some point in the future will
be severely felt across the District. Many of these projects will also appear
in the budget resolution on the greater than $50,000 list as part of the FY 16
budget.

DATA SOURCES:
Michael Bobby
Ronald Kramps
Dana Henderson
John McCarron
Tamika Yeadon
James Braunreuther
David Spurlock
Virginia Reijners
Joyce Costello

PREPARED BY:
Michael L. Bobby, Acting Superintendent of Schools
Joyce Costello, Capital Projects Officer

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES:
N/A

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES:
N/A



lescdoud 128pnG 9TAS A 034 131sel

STOZ/LT/E FIURUL - Gi[R1S0T T

00°000°8RSET $ | 00°000°000°€T § | nso‘ooo‘ss 000°000°8TS 000°'009°7TS 000°009°8TS 000°009°81% STYLOL
- $ | 000007056 g - § - § - $ - $ - $ adlL
- $] - $] - g - §1 - §1 - s - ¢ (L1 - A20]OIm32 ] LOLIdLL]
- $] - $] - $] - § - $] - HE $ (41, - £8ojouta], 1:|
- $] - $| - g1 - $ - $ - $1 - $ QL - ABOOUYDI L, 79 AM[IoE,] ASSINE]
- §] - $] - $1 - $ - $ - $] - $ QL -euSe  poumsig
- g1 - g - $1 - g - $ - $| - $ adl - 07 12msig
- $ | o0'000°052 3| - $] - g - § - §] - $ AJUND2g 1947) OPUBM
E $ | oooo0'00ET kY - $ - § - $ - $ - $ Arior,] - Koued DD
- § | 00°0G0°00$T $] - $] - $| - s - $| - $ A3ojouyoa], 3 AUJDE - A0 [ JPUSIT
spaleag €10ZA4
- g - $ | 000007007 $] - $| - s $| - $ JuawR0R[dY 1) Asuyom]]
- 3 - $ | 00'000°0ST $ - s - g - $1 - $ FISUIRIL[Y WIISAS SUOYL OPUE M|
- [3 - ¢ | 00000059 [ - $ - $ - $ - 4 {s2ords $-q D Sunsxa ey uauraaoxdu) p-c1D
- $ - $ | 00°000°000°T $ - $ - $ - $ - $ Aumseg
- $1 - § | oo'ooo‘ose $1 - $] - $1 - $¢ - § 28BI01G 009 |YIY
- $t - $ | oo'oo0’osz $F - $] - $] - $1 - $ {SULIDAUTBUS / ALINDAS) Sif |18 o[ed
- $1 - $ | 00°000°00F T i) - $] - $1 - ${ - $ Xouuy SpIempz d |
syaeload fed +10TAL
- gt - $ - § - $ | 00000000y $] - g7 - $ spoafoLd €TOTAR
00°'000°88¢ $ | 00'000°00E $ 00°0006°00¢ $ | oopLe LTy $ | 00'000'00€ $ | 00'000°00€ $ AdudBuIIu0)) WeIgold
00000°009 $ | co'ono00T $ 00°000°00Z $ | oopstiise $ | 00°C00°06E $ - $ (I-v suof - LousZunjue;y
G0'06000T $ | 00000700T § 00'000°00Z $ | 0000081 $ | 007000002 $ | 00'000%00Z $ JURNSU)) % UdIsa(
00 £59°05T § | 00000 P8I 3 00°000° 81 $ | 00000 %81 $] - $[ - % HLD
00'£99'05T $ [ 00000 F31 § 00°000°+81 $ | 00000481 g - 8 - $ SOHRIYTY|
00°999°961 $ | 00'000°0EL $ 0000005 T $ | oo 000 H81 $ - $ - $ SHY|
0000070021 $ | 00'000°008 $ 00°000°008 $ | oo008’¢czo'1 $ | 00000 FRET $ | 00°000°008 $ wawdinbg 59 SaINIXLf SImIuIng
00'000°005°E $ | oo'o00'00s"E [3 00°'000°005°€ $ | sizen’coT' $ | 00°000°000°1 $ - $ 2IBMIJOF - ASOOUI[DA],
N $ - § - $ - $ - % | oo'on0'06E"1 $ A£ouagunuoy) - ASo[0EII ],
00'000°08¢ % | 00000085 $ 00'000°08S § | o0oo0'os $ | 00°000°50% t | 00'000°08S $ (Juataoe]day Ja3uiLd) 0ap1A - AZojoura ],
00000 LY $ | 00000 1LY $ 00°'000° 1LY $ | 00000089 $ | 00000089 $ | oo'oco‘oss $ Wi3)SAS pUmIog - AS0[ouR,
00°000°00T°1 $ | oo'000700L'L $ 00'000°001°1 $ [ oooooTI0T $ | oo'oo0’058 § | 00'000°00T°T § Ju2)) CIPAA - ASC{OUYIS],
00°000°05Z°1 $ | 00'006°05T1 $ 00000705 T $ | o0ooo'0s1'l $ | 00'005°005°T $ | o000000sT  § aueoeday D - AZojouyda,
00°'000° 1579 % | oooo0'1ISTY $ 00°000°1STF $ [ ooooo'09LT $ [ o0o00'9esy $ | oo'ooo‘000% $ sapeiSdp) Adojouyes ], woolsse])) - AFojouyaa )
00°000°005°T % [ 00000 00¢°T $ 00°000°008°1 $ | oo08T16LT $ [ o000 ren’s $ | oo'000°002") $ ATO[OUI2 ], UOTJEWIafu]
00°000°000°1 $ [ ooo00'sLy 4§ 00°000°548 § | 00°009°98L $ | 00000528 % | oo'oo0'sis $ JESWRERUR I [BIUSUINOAUT 73 AaleS STy
00000058 F $ [ 00'000°¢LpT $ 00'000°SLF T $ | o000r'819F $ | o0000°92L'S $ [ 00'000°526°C $ juRtuageuey 1258y 2§ SOUSUSIWE SANI[I9L]
wipng 9L07TAd PIpnyg ST0TAA [ 95png FLOTAA IRD |  393png FTOTAA 13png £107A4 103puyg TTOTAA 1°8pog [10TAL ey diodagey

9107 dis1aumg Jo 3507y pIXLy

[esodoug 108png 910z Ad - digsioum) Jo 1500y paxiy

JNSI 00y AJUN0) UOISILIBYD)



000°055% (Uononnsuc))) §q SMAIpuUy 15 (8) 3n0dng osLaT WOOISSE]D) 8}qEIIO ]
SHED000°0T$ SH paog Amy Treasuy durey
54 40] PapasU BAIY USYIWY - 0OSETE # OM - ISANOMI ALIIVA
000°056% SIUBS SAWIE 1§ HFONFR DVAH,
000°000°T$ IR SAWR[ IS Juataoe)day Jooy
000°5Z$ SH [[oyon N S[eMIRIG Suatizovday Futicoll/Eulpesnay
000°06£$ SH [1BYMIN spuawaaoadury uppeg
saurepms Astjod 193w 01 12311 Fw3e ysrusdon |05 Lz1s DURUINUTRIN () yraumaeday] apoyap,
{(1sanbay £qqod N 194)[000°0E1S SH pue[s] saurey {(2Z1¢ N X7) UOLIPPY 11707 SIUUS |,
10BIUCTY SJONUODFSETEES S[00YOS SNOLIBA FOUBURUTEIA SPONTR) AT
006'6% §d pooajualy WeNN VAT - Uisa)
000°001% SH POOAERI monayuswase[day Jooy - udisac]
000°005% S UBI0JICT) oy Auaae[day Joay
i uonuedyy - R BT i uenean L e T nondiasa 19afedd D
 pasanbay spoalod peromppy ]
| ooo0ss'y $ | yumomy [eo]|
799°917% S]Q0Uoy SnoLEA 8224 WD
FS6°69F% GH ULMPpOOD) SIUOWIIAOIAUI] JOTB A\ ULIOLS 2 DTTTRIT,
000°0€T$ SIAL SWEIAL 8 O B3] UOHRSIISPUOD JOOT WAS aye[pomay
000°00S$ SH 1mpaddag % SH [reag Hpdd SURT pazifeuosiag
"3J1| AJ1ATIS 8IB2A () INOqR suY Jool Suurewag |000°0$8E S+ osIaL] ] yupg Juawrase[day] Jooy]
“odas spueynsucs 10d Joor ISSCE E JO Jiey Jo juawaor)dal palmbay
sam[apng Asijed 195w o) 199 SwiSe yswepday 000 rocs 2OURUIULBTY (g) mawrase|dayy ooy
saxnbailgpoos1$ S)NSAT A2AINS Juanroe[day/sueday Jooy
Iedal ayIpawi AJIIOaPL (14 SIASHI 10203 am “parojduwon uoym UG paseg ‘S|O0YIS SNOUBA
PuE ‘00 §,J2a4 15| Ul PAPUNF Ses £SAINS JOOI SPLA 12LSI(T - P3INbay
wes301d 000 0FFS VIO SOURUSIUIEA] WBIF01 S0URUIIUIBIA JOO]
ADUBUSULEIA] JOOY SANRIIAASI] 10] 19BN WU, [BLkiuYy - pormbay
JUSWISEISSY aarsudIduIo) pruislI0 Jo uenajduwo)) ueieJ|6c/°87zs SWASAS Suippng 11 A58y - e[ 0Ueusjurely JAIsuayIdwo))
paambXa (060 059§ S[COI2G SNOLIBA 9PLA, 121L0SI(] - SUOIBO0[Y WOOISSL] ) 2110
parinbay [000°5L$ SJOOT2S SNOLBA waloL] - Lousdunuo)
pannbad|ogo‘si$ S[EONIS SNOLIRA $2OIAIIS JETOISSIJOLY
pamnbi[000°56% S[OOYDS SHOTIBA WAV suIo,g - Aou2sunuon)
pannbay {ov9° (L 9L SOURUAUIEIA Sjyaueg  ARES - AV ¥ W
paxmbaglo0o'ses 9DLFY() JUSLUSINOOLF SIRUAS 7y AlB[RS - JUSWIASNI0I S20IATaG ATIOR ]
R TT T T T ol oy pajem OF e noILRsa peloag s

spaload 910z 182 [EISI] - BEOPBZILIIPOJA] WO0LsSE] )/ AI[s190m() JO 1507) paxiy

UBWIUTLA SINP[IIE]




00T F0TS 5H spiempH auef WONRT JVAH ~ Udisa]
600°001% S SoUBNET SRy NJ0NSY JVAH - UStsa(]|
057678 S SOYTET AUULA] JuaRaeday Bunysiy - udisag
059°6t% SH SIYINE ALY HFoNAURLIRR[daY JOO - UISa(]
05£°7ES s 9017 TN 1oy AusRIR[dYY Jooy - USTSI(T
005°€$ S uosiaLLg sieday Suraed - usisag
053 Sl UosksLLy TJON3Y TOTRRIIUS A 1SNEYX - USISO()
000°001$ SH TOoskaL] onad DVAH - udisag
058°€TS S UOSIONI] yataoe|day SunydT - usisa(g
O0S°LES S plog Ay SIIREEIAQIAM] DIJRI] - USISa(]
000818 SIUIAPESY puR SUY JO 1A H[OED/SUEOF SEY - uS1sa(]]
05L°E% SW oue) Ja1R M UL - $315(]
006$ SINLATaIIAL 3100 eary pengy - apesddy SunySiT - udisa(
005° 1% SW Ay sf00], 10°] Bupjred - epeiddy) Funysr - wSIsa(
005758 Je=AS Unoyfen 5, ST Y YSaL] ROSIPPY - uBisa(]
000°81% S]O0UDS SNOLIEA TI00TSSeT))
aNIqey “uamose[dsy soweL.] % sico(] - udsa(

000°5£% S SpIeMpy suer HI0IY/JuRaoR Ry Jooy - D/ uBIsaq
005°LS SH UZ TN gonyuameoerday Jooy - IW)/UBISA
(roxy pog) waouo)) £197S - $$E9TE #OM - LSANOHY ALITIDVA[000°EES SIN o1e) Juaweoeday sSE[ETHRL]

aoto s [edisurid joord punog - 60857¢ #OM - TSHAOTE ATV

000°5%

sndre,) JeNIIAL I8 BI02IYD)

Fuyooxdpunog

TTGETE #OM - LSHNOEE ALITIDOVE

000°LS

G URI0IIOD)

(ye0) waweor day puig

Q7€ O} QB[ [ 2ACW 0] P22U ‘DL B L7 OJIL e | Paun],
- LOHE[OME ANNA OL 410 - +8SETE #OM - TSANOHA ALV

000°08%

SH 1I'H sudeg

UOHIPPY BT ALD

- 669TTE #OM - ISHAOAY AL DV

000°57%

(POT URY Jeau W) 9y Assingy

Juawane(day] 100y

pIepURIs
soueunoptad Aflaey UelS prsH - LFS61E #OM - LSHNOTY ALTTIDVI

000°cS

1200
wswdoAaT AR, % PG

201110 JUOE] HI SULI0O[T TN[OUI] 20e]day

AJI[TOET OJUI payoL)
HIP JO JUNOLE 301Pal PIROM - $9161E #OM - LSFNOTE ALITIOVA

005°ZS

§H SapisaNuMm

ABMOJTEM 21010U0D
yim sauos Smddas aorpdss pue ped 21910000 pualxs

£TOETE #FOM - ISTNOTY ALITIDV

ST1°ZS

S UBIO2IO)

UOIIPPY Y[EMaplS

SECHTE #OM - ISHNOHY ALITIOVH

000°F$

Aserrid 1TH [2ane ]

o Ae|d PaI2A0D 19PUN GRS PUB N[BMIPIS [[BISUf

FISFTE #OM - LSENOTE ALTTEOVA

000°00£%

A Yy 2ane’]

spunouSavd punore sume] 2aordwy

SLOLTE #OM - ISHENOEY ALITEDVA

000°5T%

SEIY 0Y) JO |DOYIS

1IN09 [feqiajseq 10PN ppy

HIN00 MU JO J[RESUL ISA0D C)
01d WO Q005 T$ SeY 00U - SO06TE #OM - LSHNOTY ALITIOVA

000°91§

S SpIEMpT d sawef

UONIPPY RO0D [[BqI9y5eq J00PIng)

CO.EEOm
yna uawaaide up st [edioulid - 9896 1€ #OM - LSHOOME AL LDV

000°0T§

SH 1uSeA AN

jea yooa2ays Jususuuad yim uonnred soejday

000°0<§

M3LA SBpIg

Q0rdg FUNIY JOOPIIY) JORIISUO]}

0000057

S 1B 21ed

sjuauaA0Id 91§

ATOJUIATL ATddns 191U27) 20110823 20UIIDY ABPOWLIONIE 0} TOISURdXT

000°05TS

MOLA 98U

orsuedXq 2SnOTIe A\

000°001% MaLA oBpLIg sdoyg yurel WY LT wepd 001 AJpoly
009°00T% S[O01IS SNOTIBA wawdinby acusueurely [RNdED
ISANOTE ALITIOV.I{000°2E$ POCAUIIF B) PRIV IS SWIRAN SUTELIN.) 9515 % WIRISAS puncg

IDJUEHAPME JA] SIFI[IIE ]
spaaload 917 1e3 & [¥ISL] - UONEZINIIPOFA WOOISse] )/ dIYSIdumQ Jo )50 paxig




000°EDT§ S Uo7 I BIEMPIRE] PUE S100(]
000°€£8% s uer7 Wy juaweseday Buioo],y
000'91$ SH UosI3LL] sureday] 2do[AUE
000°L8S 7] bosIally 3IEMPIEH PUE SIO0(]
000°FFS $q Aowpmg sneday sdopauy
000°£9% S Aemyaurg SIAUNOD/SUOTITIR] SWOCIIEY|
000°59€$ SH Aawyourg UIOVO) 1gonad DVAH
000°ZES SN OLBD sieday SUIAR ]|
000°LFS SIAL OLIBD s1reday adofaauy
000°16% SN OLED SEUENO.)/SUORILIE] STIOOFSI Y
000°0ST 1S STA] O1Ie) OBy DVAH
SE8L8T #OM - 308png - v wIoglo00°s1§ SHY 97} JO [o0yog JUSUESIB] Y AMOPLEL M,
"2JRSIEN PUR U2YOK] “Pl0 8l SI0UOESq UL G00 S LS (2prg Juawzorpdayy s1ayoeafy|
IOUSIA ) ST UOISS[IRYY) YLION
"3JeSUN pue UAY0Iq Plo ale s1ayowalq JWaIm)|[000°sLE {ap1§ Juaurase[dayg sIayosea[y|
10151 A ) SH ARAPROY JaiRD
000°000°T$ SN SM2IPUY 18 SINVS
le ey ((14) Hoddng reuononnsuy Jo UOITEAOUSY|
000°05F% PRIV HAIRD yuowaoe[day OVAH
000°018% SH TBH uoldei(q doyyooy - Juawaserday DVAH
‘Hjonal 3V AH 1T uaD puncie 1asf0ad Surmel(000°058% S5 sSpiempd | sowef sdo] Jooy - juawow|day DVAH
0st6% S |pyiaddag WJOA9Y UOTIB[US A JSIREXT = US1Sa(]
000°0018$ 4 Jyseddag WONIY DHVAH - uBIsa(
00L°8TS S yaddag emase[day SunysiT - udsag
008°LTS o 1mpaddag UORBAOUSY SUID01)ESY - Us1sa(]
000°00TS SH [[eH 3f12¢l NjonayAumkace[day Jo0Y - USIsa(]
0S0°LS S URICIOT) enayAuEaR[dag Jooy - uSsa(]
0SHHTS SH M+ PURTPIIAL onayAusuwane[day ooy
0SFFI1S STTAS[YSY 189 sireday] Juraeg - US1Sa(]
000°8TS SH AS[YSY 1S9 O UOLRIIHUL A JSTELXH - U31Sa(]
00T°T$ SH A48V 159, siredoy adofeausy 1xT - USISH(T]
000°051% SH A3[ysY 153, onR JYAL - UaIsaQ
05T'9TS SH A3Jysy 182, HIOI/fuawaorydoy Jooy - UBIS30]
006°cS SH 19uSeA] AR sieday] SmarJ - ugisag
0SE°LS S ey vwndag sneday Stav ] - T5183(]
05L°6% SH e ewndag JonaygAuamane|day Jooy - udrsa|
0000018 SH A9SINTE nonny OVAH - udisag
056728 G L8sIng] watwaoe|dayy Sunydr - ugIsac]
0ST°CS S Jaed Aequnp saeday] odoRAUY Jxy - UaIsag]
05E°6LS §A e d Asfuny 1gonaARaoe|day Jooy - USISaE
008°5T$ $ uospe] SHBdoy FUIARJ ~ USTSa(]
000°66$ S uospe| 10Ny AustIade]day JOOy - USTSa(]
001°c$ ST SpIeMpy suel HIO12Y UONB[IUI A ISNRUXT - US1Sa(]
0000018 SH spresmpy auef WD DVAH -~ udisa(]
057°67% S SPIBMPI uB[ wawaoe[doy Sungsi - uslsagg

UBUNMIETA] SINIIIT]

sy3aloaq 9707 1va X 1RISH] - HONRZILIIPOTA] UI00XSSE])/AdNjsIaumQ) JO J50) PaxIy




000°LS SH 8,Uq0r 35 oIy DVAH
000°9ET$ SH sUqor 15 {JoLmauy) Furueg
000°6LE SH suyer 15 onanyuEaueday ooy
000°ECTS SH smer 1§ JUBWSIE oy SHLIOO[
000°¢1% SH 7)) eupdag JIONTY UONE[NUR A ISABIXE
000°29% SH ¥rep) eundag sieday adojoaud JOTIANN:]
000°008°1§ SH Wer) eamdag oY DVAH
000°1€$ SH e[ emndag (Fouaup) Funmeg
0009618 SH 1) ewmdag STRMPIEH] PIE SKO(]]
000 FEYE SH YLD eudeg Mo umusseday] Jooy
000°CICY SH Yre[s tundag Juawseday Suncor ]
000°€ES 54 puejs] solref saeday FuaRg
000°LS S pue[s] sauref NJoI UCTIR[IUA 1Sneyxy
000°018% S pue[s] Sawer sireday ado(aaug JOLIaXg
000°66% SH pUe[sT sauef AIEMPICH PUE 5100(T]
0007018 SH pue|s] souep Juawade]dxy Sunioo|y
000°¢1$ §d Lesinyg snedoy adoppauy IoUa)xy|
000°7¢T$ $d AasanH (JOLIUT) Sunure |
000°01$ $H Aesmy QIRMPICH PUE SI00(]
000°EETS Sd AasInH REuroRday Suoo g
000°S 1§ SH g Lajuny sieday sulang
000°TSS$ §3 md f2pung Jmauce]day Suncorg
000°5TS Si uospe] siredoy] ado[aauy I0TIaFX|
000°9¥8°18 Sd uospeT 1onNT DVAH
000°86% $H uospe] (1oT12quT) Bunuieg
000°89% §H uospe JuatuAcT Aoy FUTIC0L]
000°00¢$ SH Wmpoony sneday adopAng JOTIRIXE
000°ZZ$ ST ULAMPOOLY JIBMPIEL PUR SIOOC]
000°LTIS SH squie] {1ouspu) Sunureg
000F1TS SH SquET] SIRMPIEL] PUE SI00(]]
000°61$ §H squieT prewoe[day Sunico)y
000°11% ST Spresmpd suef steday Sulaeg
000918 S spiempy suef saeday] adojeAur JOLISENG
000°€9% SA SpIEMpPH ouef aEMpIRH PUE SI0O(]
000°0F% SH SAUInH Sruwjy GOLIR[US A JSTIRX]
000° 12§ SH say8ny] s surday] ado[aAng
000°L6$ SH soyBn|] Ay (ormatur) Sunureq
0062678 SHf SAYENE] 2TUUTIN UOLILIE J/3Te MPIRLI/SI00(]]
00G'55$ S SIS STy onauRmaseiday Jooy
000158 S ol I siedoy Fuar
000°6% SH U0z 1A UONB[UI A 1SNRIXE]
000°T1$ S UOLZ I stieday adojeauy|
000°+86% SH UOLZ I 1onod DVAH
060°781% ST o7 1N I [day SUNETT
000°91% §q worz N (S973US) 1yoney SWoOnSTY

ADURTN U A SA[EIC ]

spoaload 9107 Jwa X [easty] - UONEZITIAPOYA wiooasse] )/ dIgsiaumsgy Jo 156 poxiy




0G0'TFI S SH [[2H uopiex] juswaor[day U]
000°61$ St IfBH 2113 sueday Sursed
000°L9% S IR 212 oY HOLRIIUR A ISOEYXH]
000°598 SH 1[eH 21126 sifedey odo[eATy J0U0)X]
(00 F81$ SH [IH 211ed JJonay JVAH
000°E81S SH [¥H 2f1ed UOIIEAOUSY SEHOOTISYY
000°59€$ SH [{EH 2[i=d] SIEMLEF pUE SIOOCY
000°1ZS S [[EH 2ll=d Juauase[doyf FULI0aL]
000°49$ S URIOIID) sueday Suise
0007728 QA URIODIOD) siedyy odojpauyg oMY
000°0£0°TS St UBIOSIOT WON3d DYAH
000°651% SH URICIIOD) UOTIBADUSY SIO0NSYY
000°E01$ SH ueloalon {zouayuy) Funureg
000°FLS Sy UBLODIO T} ATEMPIRH PUE SI00(]
000°58% S UBI0IOT) wawade[dey Sutiooy
000°0T$ SH UOISRIEYD YHION sapedoy Suraeg
000°FES S UoIS[IRY D) ION sneday] adofaaug J0L2]XT]
000°L11% SH HOISARYD GION Jgoaayfuatsar]day Jooy
000°96% S "OISI[IRYD) TRION Juaurasr[day] SULI0o]
000° 11§ S8 Yd PUBIPYA sumday BUlAR]
000°€ETS S 3ed pUBIpIN smopurp/sareday adofoaug]
000°LES St 3ed PUBIPIN (seary 250 YSIL]) Sunuey
G00° 118 SH *d PURIpTIA TJonay/usuoelday Jooy
000°ZES 47 SR PUBIPIA tuzoe oy Fuico)g
000°21§ ST piod Al steday Suraed
000°ZLY Sd plod Ampy TJOI UOHEB[LIEI A ISNELXH
000°39% S p1o,] AR saeday adojeaus] 10UAXG
000 FT1$ R S3] paeg Ay UOLJBAOUSY SWIOOIISI
000°6E1% S pleyg Ay Juaurase|day Suisooff
000°1E% Areumadg [ |ane sneday adofaaug Jorrayxg
000°6E18 Azermad T [edne] {Iouajuy) Bupured
00G°ST 1S ATeunig (1Y [aane| Juawaseday Sucooly
000°CTS GH POCMIULE suedayy adoasug JoUayxy
000°618$ Sd poosmnag Wousy DVAH
000°97$ SH pooauarg Juaweoeidoy SOy
000°0Z$ SH poomiualg QIEMPIRT} PUB $100(]
000'%9% SH ARMUSY 1S9M saredoyy edojpauy Joaxy
000°7E9% SH A2[UYSV 189 (Jo1xagur) Sunurey
00008 SH ASJUSY 1524 2JBMPIEH pue S500(]
000°€0ES SH AS[usy 159 JgonTIAuswaseiday Jooy
000°9Z2$ GH AIUSY 153/ umuaoe[dyy surioor]
000°LES SH JouseA Amury sareday] adojeauy Jotmyxy
000°L65§ SH 1ousepy Areiiy (rorroquy; Sunuted
000°0+% SEH sUtor 18 sieday Julang
000°8% SH S,uyor 1§ sHeday] adofaauy Jonexg

VuBUAULR ] SANI[IOE ]
s199{oag 9707 1va X [€ISIY - UCHEZIWRAPOJA WOOISSE[)/AISIAUAMQ) JO 150 PIXI]




ST HGOT $661 - FI#

000°5T§

doyg Anusdre)y ‘asueuajurel

(1) dn-y11d “¥o1ypA

ST QST A0 SA61 - 694 TSI NOOT 18 6661 - 6T#

000°05%

() doys cIny “aouruuUIeEA]

IDUBOT “20IYIA

$8200% 0] SIUIPIYS 10T WANUIAROIU] - (0L TLET #OM) - ¥ WO

"SIWEONSA) pue punoisield

000°9%

ARuig [y [ome]

Juawase[day] Joo(T/Mopu p

TS168T #OM - 198png - v uwo,1|000°9% S ATRIE[IA 9007, eary pen() - apeiddy) Sunysry
1L068T #0M - 198png - v wiog[000701% STAL ATEH[IAL 2j00 107 3ubyee - epriddn Bunyd]
0007055 100G UNOY[E)) 5/, SII] A1y Ysald UosIppY,
000°000°TS S SMAIPUY 18 SINVS

e Iua)  ((Id) woddng JeUenonIsUl JO UOTIRAGUSY

quatennbay 4SO MmN 2SSt A13jeg

000°CTIS

§]OOY2G SNOLIE A

WOOISSED) o[IqON Uatus0e]day] ssuer,] 3 $100Q

000°001$ SH Sprempi |l SOALL/ Funled/spunordie]d - UBISY(] paoueApy
000°0058 {11 2sed) S5 J1eH 31194 Tonaxy apesddy) 3077 unjieg/spunoriierd]
000°T$ SH UOISIIRY]) TIION JJOI13Y] UOHBTEUAA ISNRUXH - UBIS(]
001758 S jled pue|piy HJOI>Y UOTBIIUAA ISHEX - U815a(]|
00L°L8S Sd qTed pREpIN WO DV AH - ¥8153(]
008°F1% Sd e PUePTA] UOMRAQUYY SIIOCSay - uS1sa(]
005628 SH paod ATejn OO DVAH - udisaq
005°'F$ ATeriLrd 1[I [20neT sneday Suiae ] - uSisagg
DOZ'1§ Sq poomuarg L0419 HONR[MIUIA ISneyx - uS1sac]
00Z°1% S A3sInE] UDIE[RU A 1SNEYXY - udisa(]
006'LTS §4 yied Lojungy Njonyy e[ day] 300y - u3EEa(]
00Z'9% S squer) UDTRTIUD A ISEYXH - UDLSA(]
O0ETHTY SH squrey moxayg IVAH - udisa(]
009128 SH squeT JusuEaoe [y SUIUE] - Ustsa()
00e'1S S Spleaspy suef UOHB[HUSA ISNBYXT - USIS3(]
000°1$ S spiempd due[ (2[BUIS) IJONFY SWOONSIY - USISA(]
007’18 SH saydny sueA] TOR[UA A 1SRN - US183(]
008°9%$ S SPUENT MU Jonaymnoe[day Jomy - ud1sadg|
00t'TS §4 M7 I UOITR[U2 A 1SNBUXE - U189}
008°c% S Amy{ouTg SIEday SUIAE] - UFTSA(]
1EL88T #OM -198png - v uniodj000° s SH II'f] 1sudeg TOMRACUSY PJoL, A2e1] - USISa(]
000°05% SH UBIOIO) D Y sjuataA0Ld] oyrel], ~ 3deouo)) uSisag
¢00°0s$ SH %led puepIA sprawaaoxdur) sigel], - daauo)y usisa(|
({lunipei§ piey) pletd 00119814 pue 2snof] piaid|o0006s STY Opue (g} 28er01g oAy - WSIS3(Y]
‘PIALA 1RGSR - ST AA 00 LS AQ40T 3T Jod parmbay - sima g

000°0018 S smarpuy 35| o)y poddng simapesy Jo uoneaID - W)/US18sQ
006918 S Ipeddag snedoy adooaug Jom3)Xyg
000°1£T8 $4 prydedda g Tuswane[day] SUTI00]]
000°81% SH sprempA ¢ 1Oy UOTE[US A 1SOBYXT
000°Z6$ SH spIempd gf sueday adopAug 10TIIXT
000°T0£§ S sprempd dr JTEAMPIRE] PUB SI00(]
000°6.8% S spremprl g Iyenayauamae[day jooy
000°5T1% Sd spIempy | Justuase|doy Fullco] ]
000°51% SH 1[BH U048 snedoy odojaaug Iouareg
000°56% S4 11eH vopseiq (10115101) Bunure |

IQUTHAUIEA] SA[IdE ]

spaf0id 9107 182 A 18ISL] - TONEZNLDPOTA TO0IsS])/AIYSIUAQ JO IS0y PIXL




000°L60°TS S A9[Usy 159 oaR OVAH
000°75% ST ASUSY 153M, aJempie}] pue s100(]
000°¢L1% SH AS]USY 3594 nonTAuswIRday ooy
000°9C$ SH 10uBe AT sweday Buaeg
006°6T$ SH 1vudepy Aenjia utRor|day urloo]f
000°081% ST sor 1§ UOLJi}Ie /21 MPIBL]/SI00(]
000°61% SH e eunydag siieday Suiaeg
H00°F5S SH e[y ewmdag (xotropu]) Sunure |
000°59% SH e[ vuidag HJONFIAUEasepday Jooy
000°%S6°1% SH AdsmE e DVAH
000°csT$ $H AdsiH juataordayf Sunysr)
000°8€$ §H A3sInyj arempley pue s10003
000 17% S5 JEed Aaqung sareday adopeauy] Jxg|
000°851% $d Nred Asqungy algmpleH pue sioo(
000°675% SH e sajuny MjonFyfusLIase|day] Jooy
000°7L1$ SH uospe] siredoy Fulard
000°F01§ §H uospery IRMDIRF] PUE SI00(]
000°099% S uosper| W0 uawor[day Jooy
000°69% 5 UIMpoosy (1oursjuy Bunuieg
000°GLS S NMpoon aieMPIEH PUE $100(]
000°vE$ $d SpIRMp auefp JJONOY UOOB[HUSA JSnelXT
000°€LE T $ SpIesmp auRf 00U DVAH
000°561§ ST SpTesmp auef juatuooe|day Sunysry
000°+69% S SpIempd atef npoxyAuswcr[dsy jo0q
000°5T$ S sprempd auef Justuase[dey] Sunaap]
000°L66 1% S SABNH AU WY DVAH
000°561% S saFnH MUUIA juatase|day Sunysry
000°1EE8 $H1 sayBnH amusN AFOnRI TRy 300y
000°6+1§ S uoLy AL JFonTIAuRdYY Jouy
000°+2$ S UOSINI] sareday] Surazg
000°61% $H uosIaLy 10N UONRJIUIA ISHRYXT
000°LTI TS §H uosIALL] WONSY DVAH
000°651$ §d uosIaly Juatraseday Sunysiy
000°82% G UOSTARLY aurace[day SU00]y
000°0sTS SH PI0 Ade syuatraAoIdw orgel].
000°F9% §H Lawpourg (1£EEL XdD) 958aT SUANSIXT JO as8YaIng A[qE0
000°55% SH OpuBm {10569 XdD) 988 SUSIXT JO 0SeYoIN] A[qELIC]
000°55% SH OPUBA {80569 XdD) 9seF SUNSIXH JO 288YynIng 9[qelog
000°55% SFf uospe’| (S616Y XdD) asea] SUNSIXH Jo 9seqoIn ] a[qelicd
000°8¢% SN dep ey {65 ET XdD) a5eaT SUNSTXT JO aseYaing ajqeliog
000°8€$ S deo 1nep] {T6SET XdD) %827 Suisixg Jo aseyoIn  o[qeHod
Ooonomﬁm SOMU3peIY n:m SUY JO 13Uy Hoey/suloef sy
atedas puodaq paBewe(] - 909E0E #OM - V WIOE|000°ES (880T RI) SH ARIPEOY PoLIED Surooy.]
000°578 SIAl OLED UOIEIPIWY 12)2 4 ULICIS

spaloag 9107 183X [¥ISI] - WONEZIGIIPO A WIOOLSSE] )/ ANTSITM ) JO JS0)) PaxIy

UETIJUIL ] SIPIIE




00S°FS SH PUR[s] sowef 1J01193 UOTIRTIIUD A ISEUXH - US1S9(]
001968 SH puB[s] ssuef Wouay DVAT - UBisaq
000°1% §4 Lesingy IGO0 UONE|US A ISOBIXS - UDISa(]]
006't$ SH Assiny TOTIRAQUSY SWOONSY - USISa(]
007688 SH Aasinyp onyy/uaIRday] Jooy] - USISa(]
(08°c% S e ] AS[UNE] UOLBINUS A JSOUUKE] - USISA(]
0009828 S e Aajuay Wonayg DYAH - uSisaqg
001°¢T$ §q Jaeq Lsjungy WL day] SUNYETT - Usisa(]
00S°€TS SH SR AdJunpy UOMEAQUSY SWOoCHSTY - WIISa(]
0ces SH Mg Aspuny onsgammsepday Jooy] - udisac]
00E°ES SH mmpocs IOy UOLRIIIUI A ISNBUXT] - UBISH(]
006°LT§ SH WMpooL)y NonngAuIUE[dey Jooy - udisa(]
000°1$ SH U0ty PN saeday odopaauy ouaxy - udsa(|
00L'Z$ SH UOSIILL] 10Uy SOH OM/I9]T0g - uBIsa
000°6% 9g wosId] CONBAOUSY SWI0OTIETY - UBIsag]
G08°01% SH Asuxould JJOTIYY UOHRIHUDA ISOBIXS] - uB1sac]
00L°1% S Aawpurg oy S NAN/IRT10g - ufisacy
009°LT§ §H Aouxourg Juawoeday SUTYSIT - UT1Sa]
005°Z5% S Astoulg 1onay/uawade|dey Jo0y - uS1sag
000°6% SN oLeD) TOTIB[NUS A JSTIBLXE - USLISa(]
D08'TI§ S o118 wawordey SunyT - udisag
008'86$ SN oLe) oS AURUIIRIAYY Jooy - USISa(]
000°021$ SH ItH 1sudeqg. UCIRACUSY 9SNOL] PaL] - uS1sac]
000°€9% S Jjyaaddag JJORNY UOIR[IUIA ISHBYXT
000°109°78 S iytaddag 0N OVAH
000°85TS SA [nyaddag uowsoe[day SUNYSI|
000°7818 S Inysaddag UOTIRADTN SU0ONSaY]
000°7Z78 §H nyzaddag SIRAPIEL] PUE SI0O(]
000°698 SH Spieapd €[ {(3ouequy) Fupureg
000°7T$ §H J[BH uoieig JuawRoe|day] FUTIe0]]
000°2063 59 e voxea WIOGNE OVAH
GO00TT 1S SH [BH 212 onay/uswepday Jooy
600°STS SH IEH s[i=d wowasedoy §micoy,]
000°L¥S §A He100107) TJOIY AUSWAIR[IDY JOOY
000°65 1% S OISR YLION (1ouayu) Sunuieg
000°€9 1S §H 1B PUBTPTI TFOnIY/JUsWae|day JOoy]|
000°168 S pIog Atepy (Jouaur) Sunure g
D0O'8ZES SH pIog AR 2IEMPIR]] PUR SI00(]
000°95% 5S4 poomulgg WONIY DV AT
000°601$ SH poomuig SIEMPIEL] PUR S100(]]
000 VLI TS S poosgualg NHjonRAuswaepday Jooy
000°9018 SH POOMpIH awaoeday Sutzooyy
000°E9.L% SH A9IUsY 15oM, supdoy SUIAR]]
0600218 SH ASTISY 15844 10N UONRTIUA A 1SHRgX Y
000°3% SH ASTOSY ISam steday ado[aang 1Xg

TEMIIUELA] SILU[E ]

syaaloa 9107 Hea L [8IS]] - UONEZULIIPOTA] ULOOASSE[)/AIYSIBUMQ JO 1507 PIXL




000°19% SH suyor 1§ Jusuraoe oy Sulroo]]

000°TTS §9 Aasmpy UCHR[IIUIA 1SNRYXH

000°6LYS SH e Aoungy FonyAuswaoedayg jooy

000°79% S4 squieT UOR[OUA A JSOBYXY

000°ETHZS §d squre] WONY DVAH

000°912$ $H squE| juowase[dey] Surppdry

000°FES S sque Tt day Suriooyg

000718 SH SpIempr] auef UOTIBTIUR A ISHeyxT

000'+§ §H spIempt] suef (373w} onay swoolsay

000°Z1% ST 2SN} armuTA UOTIB[IUI A ISNELXH]

000°89F$ S SAYSNH ST nyonayuswaoe[day jooy

000'+TS S UOTZ TN OTIRTHURA, 1SHeUxH

000°89% SH UCSIALL[ {Iov1aquy) Stmoe ]

000°TES SH UOSIATE] Juswaoeyday] Surool,)

000'85% SH Aatmjoul ] snedoy Juiaeg

000 THTS SIALO1RD (seaxy 9501 (BIH) Supumeg

TT1L88T #OM -198png - v uued [000°077§ SH IMH 1sudeg UOleAOUNY PRL] YoeL],

000005 S WIOI) D Y sjuawiaAoId] otyea] - 1daouo))

009°¢05$ SH Y1 d PURTPIN SAUEACId oI - 1daduo’y

- (FTSROT #OM) - V WEOTI000°S TS S SOPISAIILM, AuRUA UGI] “TONB][EISU] AUTT JAJB A

- (6¥0097 #0M) - ¥ wi0g[000°00T$ SH Awapeoy Naten (qe71 Anpeirdso]) toIsIRAue) Wooy]

- (8F9ELT #OM) - V W04 [(00"sHS SIN o1y nedyy 107

- (P1569Z #0M) - v 1U0.1[000°81§ SH Amapesy paimn Qe AIR113031H “UOTRIEISU] DVALL

ISP UT|0H0°005S SH poosuaIg apesadp) 0y Surymg

Aqqog oAl Jod parmbay - stmaT G000 CHTS SHIEH 3l1ed JuneeuiBugyAlimoag

000°0I11% SH 11818 SWo0Ls3Y - IEnpojy

((untpers p1O) PIL 20g0e1d pue 9snol platd|000° 0068 SH opuem (£} 9Fer01g onapNy
PP 1Bqastq - 91 A1 00 LSIUAD Aqqod a3 2ed pambay] - stmo] g

000°000°T$ SIN SMaIpuV 1S I2ua) poddng oTuwapeay jo UONEDI)

00S° 11§ SH Mpraddag sireday Futaeg - UBIsa(]

008°C1S St Spresmpy I sneday Swaed - us1s3Q

004L°5$ S spresmpd g1 11JO1Y UoTR[Iua A Isherxd - udisag

000°901% SH spaempH d[ WonR VAT - uBisa(g

007°1$% S 11 uolARI(] sneday Sueard - udisag

081°9% Sel HeH uomARiT uawase[day Sunysry - udisa(

009°1% ST IBH =lj2d HJong SN D Aepog - udisag

000°99% GH URICIIO)} JEJOJ1 Y AAUDLUIROR] Aoy JOOY] - UBISa(]

00TL18 S Jred puelpyy o Y/ATARIday Jooy - uFsa(]

006°€9% Arewird [IrH [aIne-] Hyonxyuatusae]day] Jooy - udsag

001°6% S pooMITRIg sireday Sutary - uSisa(g

00T+S ST A9[USY 15940 JgonPAURLIRIR[day] J00y] - udisaQq

001°6% SH S1of 1y 3oy UOLIRINUIA 1SNBIXH - USISa()

006'LETS SH sWyo[ 1§ NJoNay JVAH - UsIsa(

001°18 SH suqor 1§ twowseday Funyary - uSwaqg

001°01S SH suyof 1§ UDNBAOUIY SIIOOLSHY - udisa(]

spaaf01d 9107 180 A [EIS1Y - UONERZIWIIPOTY woeasse] )/ dIYsIammQ) Jo 1507 paxiy

IDVMBUNMIEA] SIDI[IIE




Sa[I 00T L340 9661 - LOT# SS[IW NDST I $661 - 19#

(00°09%

() DVAH “outliaure]y

uep ofreD) OPHRA

SR HETT B 6661 - LT #

000°0E8

MBS PBAY “Q0URUIJUIRIA

URA 03IBD) 90

S2pW A4S 9T A0 5667 - 6 SOTIW Y09] JIA0 L66T - pS#

000°09%

@

doyg 99]A135 PO, “20UBUAJURIN

UBA OBIED) 2J0IyaA

AW CTT 1240 G661 - LEH[000°0ES {1} doug peoLnody “asusuLUIRIy UZA 0BIED) F[MYIA
000°51% SH [yaddag 0TI /eetusor day] Jooy ~ UBISa(]
06S°LTS S SprempiT g1 monayAuswaseiday Jooy - udisa(g
000°58% SH [[eH ucldei(] sneday Futar - U1
00T°'87% Sd 1ed PrRIpIN JonAUsUIase[day Jooy - udisac|
001°9% ST pIoy AeTA sireday] adojpauy soumxq - udsa(g
00F+S$ SH plog AT JgonyAuawaae|day] Jooy] - USIsaq]
00T+ SH poosuarg 1JONY UOLR|IUIA Isneyxy - USisaq
001°L8% S poosuarg MIOIAY DVAH - USISa(]
005°L% SH A2[Usy 159, sireday adojpAlly JOLAIX - USISa(
008°LT1% SH A2USY 1534 yonsgAuIR[day Jooy - uSisag
009°1% SH e eumdoag sireday adoaAuy o)X - uisa(]
000°1$ SH yie)) eumdag LR AAE [N Jooy - uisa
00€'81% SH pue|S| sawref sireday] Buiae g - udisaq)
001'9% 54 Aesimy] SITEdoy FUIARY - UFISA(]
00.°9% Si Hosper] 1JONaY UONR[IIUA A IShegxy ~ WIIsa(]
00L°ES S ULAPOOL) SIieday SuIARy - UFISa(]
005°¢S S ulmMpoosy WJORNYY TOTR[HUI A JSNBXT - UB1sa|
007°TS G ULAPOOD) s1eday 2d0TaARY IXG] - UBISa(]
006°9% SH UImpoog) NI DV A - uBisag
009°C SH squreT sipdoy ado[aAl] JOTINXE - UB1sa(]
000°LS SH selSny s saredoy Surasg - udisa(]
00LTS SH UOSIALLY saeday Suraed - udisag
006°1¢$ SH UOSIONLE (S.117) sfreday] adojasuy 1x; - UStsaq]
60E°05% S 0LIRD Juawaor|day] SUIIET - Ustsaq]

SETRFTH OM - V WIOI[000°0ES SN 01ED) 9pr13d[] Wooy 1[I0 % Weonsay - UBISA(]

WIN0D K]S B 2I0J2I8Y3 ST
pue A[iqeden 2014198 DIIJ 2ARY JOU S0P JOJBAS)S JUIIINT - Y261 PA[[LISU]

005°¢%

DALICT MATA 23pug

Juaurace]day IojeAalT ~ USIsac]

Agqqod 1N tod pannbayg - simaT d[005 T2 §H 11H 1sndeg 231015 MY - UBIsacg
00079528 81 112 uopieig SAMDRH PR SI00(
000°L$ SH TOISA[IEYY 0N BONTY UCUB[HUDA ISTYXT
00G°LOTS SH UOISI[IBY,Y YLEON JFBMPIRT] PUR §I00(]
006°18$ SH ITed PUBTPIAL IFONNT VONB[NUSA ISNRYX
000°LLBS SH 3ed PUB[PIA Wen=y OVAH
000°8V1$ SH Y pue[piAl TOTIBAOTY SUIOOIISYY
000°SH6'CY §A prog AP Jgonay DVAH
000°5+S Aseuini JIFH joroe ] snedoy uaeg
000 1ETS Arewid e jeIne ] SIZMPIBH pUe S100(]
000°T18 SH pooatiarg 105y UOIR[IIRA JSheyx]
060°761$ SH 12udep AN (1ortayup) Suyuwed

spoafoad 9107 1834 [¥ISI - UOHEZILIIPOTA] WOoUsSE[)/dISIaum() Jo 1507 POxIg

URIAUIBA] SODI19E,]




000°LETS SH 1PUSe[AT ATIEA Jusuraoepday] Sunoor]

000°16% SH SHO[ 18 ORI UOHRIHUIA JSNRIXH

000°6LE°TS SH s,0yor 18 WonTy JVAH

000°11% SH suer 18 Juator]day Bunysiy

000°101% SI1 s,uyof 1§ UONRAQESY SWW00I)S3y]

000°ETE SH SUHO[ 3§ {aoLia1uT) Furpure g

000°8L1S SI1 s,uyof 15 aIMPIRE] PUR S100(]

000°TFS SH sugor 1§ Juawieat]doy SuLIooff

000°s+$ SH pue|s] sauref HJONY UONRIHUSA 1STeyxy

000°796% SH pUe]SE sate[ JJeNIH OVAH|

000°6ETS SH pUBJs] sawe[ UCTIIUE J/21 PR E]/SI00(]|

000°08% S PURS] Sauref Juswace[day Futioo]y

000°01$ § Aesinpy JJONSY HOLRTIUIA, JSHeyRy

000°61FS SH A9smyy UOTBACUSY SWCOLSIY

000°Z68% g Aasmy HjoaauawRseiday Jooy

000°11$ S AasIngy Juawade|dsy] Funicol.]

000°85% 59 jied Aejuny UCIIR[HUDA ISneyxy

000°098°C$ SH Yl Asquny oISy DVAH

000°152% SH Yl Aapuny Juatuaor]day Funysr]

000°SELS 84 ed Lamny UONBAOUTY SWIOCIISY

000°€9% SH JHeg Adung (s8a1y as(] TEIH) Sunuied

000°6$ S yied Aduny nFon>yAusodeydyy Jooy

060°9+$ SH uospery Juatwasepday] Surrool|

000°EES SH UIMPOOD) TJORY] UOTIEUI A ISTBIX]

000°6LTS SH UIMpoor) jenay Auawade[dy] Jooy

000°L9% SH sprempd auey (totrapuy) Sunuie g

000°8% SH Uo7 A sueday adoeauy 10119)Xg

000°LTS SH uer7 WA Justuace[day] Surroayy

000°LES S UosiaLL,] JJONSY SOH DM/IRTI0Y

a00°06$ S UoSkAL] UOIBACUNY SWCOLISIY

000°801% SH Aomfouly IO UOGBINUS A SRR

000°L1% SH Aawyourg Hjonay sHH LM /eoeyg

000°0LZS 89 Asuyoulrg uawzoedayy Sunydi

000°6TSS Sq Asmypurd oy Auswase[dayg Jo0y

000°06% SN oLE)) UCHR[LUSA 1SNRUX:]

000°871% QI O1ED) Juawaserdayy Sunydiy

000°886% SIN OLET) JJONYAUNWARIATY Jooy

000°L9FE SN o1y Juawase|day SULI0of]

000°00T18 SH ITTH 1stdeg UCTRAOUSY SNOH PRI

SWOOESSE[2 (000 00 SH Opue s, Adouey
S[IqOT 0} SUIp|1ne 101] FUD{[RM UL JAESA JAWD[OUT WO S1USp)s
1oop01d 0 ssprqow sy 01 sardoues APTAOKY - (TH66ZZ #OM) V 1Oy

W)SAS YW AH I U5y Sutsn 1Fona1 Fuumeld anssy Au[end) Iy 100puf|oosLs Sq [myraddag JamRR]dny OVAH

S3|W HOST A0 LEGT - TL# “SOIW DS T J2A0 L661 - Ly#1000°088 {z) doyg 007 ‘souBUAIEIY Uz 03180 ONIA

§399[01d 9107 1BIA [€ISIY - ROTIEZILIIPOYN UL00Lsse] )/ dIysIaumQ Jo 1507y Py

DUBUNWEY] SIDIIIE




SINOA Jo siigataq oy Surdnesd ur dnosd uowadeuely A510u%|000°6% S AWapesy palleny Funoluopy AS1aug awm-[eayf
ay) o1 afeyueape 980y B SMO[jB OS]y a1y [ear ur a3esn a1y smednaso
Surprmg soys 03 21ge Suraq AG $1800 AF10U9 [0NU0D 19713 C] ATESSIOIN
piezRl B S3]BIIO pUR UdABUN $I 10| FuDIed 000 0SS S FIBH uolieaq J07 Sunyie nedayeoeday
"SUI00JSSE[D 3[1qoul 0] BUIPJING Woy SU[eM USYM ISIRIM (000 SLES apis 108 JooYdS Ateyuawa| ‘sSutamy
JUALI[DUL EOS) SRPNIS 199302d 01 sapqow 2t 0] saudoued 2praosd
000°08% GJAl OLIB) uzwase[day SULISA0T) MOPUIAL|
96LLBTH OM - V IO |000°68 SIN OUET) [EIsUy yemaplg
SSTSPTH OM - V WIOH|000°00ES SIN oLy oprEid[) WOty PO ¥ WeARsH
SBELLTH OM - ¥ ULICH|000°00TS SN o117y O[L], ‘BULI00]]
SIALDH JO sJauaq 211 Surdned ut dnosd usundeuey AZRUg|000°SS SY #ojing Aurronuop] AZrauy sw-eay
217 0] AGBHIBAPE 95T B SMO[[E OSTY "2t [eal w a5esn 1217 sjuednooo
Fwippmg meys 03 27qe uraq Aq s1500 AFHUD [OLUED IMZ] 01 AIESSION
“SEWIABS ATIoUa I2Ua0 vIep Jof Senwumpoddelnozog IATIC] MTp, 28pUg LHDISNI
Bussnu oxe om pue JyFisu] uo jou st Suipyng I 29 ‘Apuaunyy OYUT SIUN SUIPLING )] 21 03 NV'E PUE J3[[CIU0] J[eIsU]
TI20U0D A1aJeS B 210JaIayl SO0 SES IALIT MATA 28pTIg JuAoR]dRY I0jBA]
pue Ajjiqedes 2914198 2 9ABI] JOU S20P JCIBAS[I JURIIND) - RLGT PA[EISU]
TOL88TH# OM - ¥ WO TH000°0SS SH TITH ssideg {spurjg) SUTIIA0)) MOPULM
Aqqog M 2od pannbay - sTMAT #000°STCE SH I[H sndeg 0BRI0)S ISV
STFEECH OM - V IHOJR000°05S S Uo7 1A SpUijgl/sapeyS
T9TS0EH OM = ¥ WIEOTEN00'9TS SH PUE[S] sawer SPTITH/SIPeYS
TTTTOCH OM - ¥V WHOJH000°SHS SH I[HH 1sndeg Sput[g/sapeys
000°00€S Sjeoy2 S SNOLIRA SI00(] U0 YSTUL]
PBOLOE # OM - ¥ WHOJH000°0ETS (Burpring Funcoyy
21U §F] 29NIES SOME[ 15
000'STIS SH trgreddag siiedey Suiaeg
000°29% S piyaddag (seary as(1 YSIH) Funurey
000°8E 1§ SH sprempi] gr snedsy Suraed
000°L5$ $H sprempd g NJOIY UOHBEHUIA ISIEYXT
000°090°1§ SH spresmpd |l HJonaY DVAH
000°C213 S 1[EH uepieiq stteday] Juiaeg
000°819% S [eFT veARI(T Jusuraozpday Bunysr]
000°91§ SH e 2[Pd HIoLRY SOH BM/AR]I0E
000°099% S UBIODIO)) gonsygAuawmRe]dng J00y
000°51Z§ SH ed PUBPIN SIRMPIRT] pue S100(]
000°TLTS 54 3ed PURIPIAL onayAusRoelday Jooy
000651 SH e pue|pr Juatase(day Suooly
000 F1$ G plog Arepy USR] WI/I0BAS[H|
000°6£9% ATRUN] (I [2a0e TJony/usuaog[day Jooy
000°16$ SH poosualg siredyy Snaeg
000°Tr$ SH A0SV 3534 HFONSYAUGWSIEFAAY JOO
0000118 SH 12uSepy Amry STeMpIe] pre sloe(]

AIMEENTWIRTA] SIN[IDE

s)aforg 9TQ7 Iud X [¥ISI] - WO RZULIIPOIA] WOO0ISSE])/AIYSIIUM() JO )5S0y PIXL]




- (8FK6TT #OM) - ¥ 10 |000°00TS SH Splempy g ssumef JuauRorday MOpTIM

gloor°Ls SH spresmpd ¢ sswer uoneIREIINY - by a01ateg poog

‘000°TES PAp220x2 se Nong Joy sitedas 30 1500{000°001% doig spuncIn juawRoeiday] dungy yans],

JUALDLJ3 AT 10T "SMOPUIM YOO SSBISAUIWIASED PIO 00008 [$ S UIMPODD) SMOPUT A

000°0ST§ $d lrgreddag RO AUIUORTASY Jooy|

000°8% S SpieMpy 4 (aoLreguy) Sunum |

060°5L1¢ SH sprempg [ oy AusmRRdayg Jooy

000°058$ S 1JeH umAri] sieday Furaeg

000°08% S BT 1ed {Fo1I]0T) BUnUIE]

000°T8TS Sd e pEepN IJONNYAUAWR0E|daY JOOY

000°19% S pleyg Arepy smeday] adojaaug 1oL

000°bFSS SH prog Aepy ronY g Auawaoeiday Jooy

000°TF$ SH poomiualyg O UOTIR[TIUD A ISTRYXT

000°'1L8% SH pocaqualyg IYeNTd DVAH]

000°1518$ SH poomjuarg (Tourapuy) Fupueg

000'sL$ SH A3[Usy 15apm sedyy adojsaus souaxy

000°5PH$ SH AS[SY 1S9 (SBaIy 98] YSI[} FUIEE ]

O00°RLL1S SH AI[YSY 180 wjonNIAusLoe)doy Jooy|

000°T1$ SH 1eudey Are[iA] (Joumuy) Funueg

Q00°9LE: SH 19USRIA ARy Tuatroce[day Suloo]d

000°97§ §H e vundag suedoy odojeany Ionexg

000°LS SH P10 vtaidag njonFAUAseday Jooy

000°E8TS SH pues] sowre[ sreday SuIARg

000°19% So sy siedsy[ 2uiarg)

000 +¥8 S Assmpy {Io1127uT) Sunure |

000°29§ SH UosperT O3y UCTIR[IIUIA, 1SNy

000°2€8 SH urmpoony sneday Sumeg]

000°SES SH UIMpOOLD) WICHIY UCR[TIUDA ISNBYXT]

000°7TY S ULApOOL) smeday adojaauy 1xg

000°69% 5 BLMpoonH MoNay JVAH

000°'9Z% SH sque smeday adojpauy Jouayxg

o00‘0Tes SH spleaspy sauef uogoe]day Burroo])

000°0L$ el SaySny Uiy snedoy Suiang

000°L9T8 §A sayBny awupy Juawesryday] BUIO0T]

000°8T$ SH UOIZ YA (rotropu) Sunureg

000°LTS 54 UosBLg snedoy Surang

000°61C$ G5] UOSIANL] (SA1) sueday adojeaudg ixg

000°ZE$ $H UOSIAIT] Juswasedey] SUIoof]

000°80CE SH Aampurg (Fo1Ia7U]) Sunwe |

000°895% g4 Aswpourg JTEMPIEF] PUE S100(]

000°E05S SN OLIED puawor[day Sunysiy

0097614 SW oL AIEMPIEL] PUE SIO0(]

Hnpuod 1 Aqes unr Juo| Afjevondooxo ue S Sy, 9)qea[007 TS G ULAPOOD) T-VIIA 01 9[qes NI 298[day - S[OII0))
Jo pratuzog[dal 1noymsm 10T 1TUN JoNTeD ¢} 9[qeu[) pageurec]/pafie]

IINTHIJUTEA] SIBIPIR,]
spefoad 9107 183X [E3ST] - UCNEZIWIAPOTA] WI00.1S5e])/dIysIaumy Jo 350,) Paxry




000°C1$ SI] UOISI[LEL} YHON]| UOMBACUY MOPUIA X0 SS3I

006°€$ SE] T0IS3[IRY) YUON Iswrep - by 921a108 poo,|

Aqqog ayiy Jod pammbay - SI43'| €[000°5TTS SH UOIS3[IeYT) 0N 2des015 MRV

wergord Supling ¢107-010Z|005°68 §H QUreSET ABLINA] UOTIRISSIIIAY - by 201419 PoO.]

68T88T FOM - 123png - V U01|000°068 SH U0z I UONEACUIY 307 SUINIE]

001°L8 SH uerz I (apeasdny) upjem 1973317 - 1by e01A105 peog

001°LS S HOIZ HA uoneISLyay [A 102221 - by 831AIRG POO]

«+PUNCT 218 §301A0p100 0% Aurapeoy Juesesa[d A STONU00 $yYO UO 90UBUSIURL

QATIATIP JE SSBIINUL LM SIS0y “PTEMIO] SUI0S uawdinbo feoneio aaneuaaald 2123dwos “afjonuoy N WA sor[day
uo spedar A[1500 PIOAR 0} §2 S|ORM00 SY(Q(] JO 20URUANIIREY pauSisap
e AJI[IQRI[011U00 WigIsAS [[N] AR 0] JOPIO UL JUSWROR[dD] SPISU ‘PAFE.]

006°C$ SIAL 2pasSuLtIoy DueA - '1bg 9914125 poog

IoM PUAT PIIOM ST, ‘SUI[-UO JYSNoXq A[IU2DAE SJOOYDS MaU [[B[000°0STS S IO 131U} SO M /I[NGFISIA
Y aperodioaur o] T[2UpgA Aepdn o) padojoaap usaq aary soads udisog

(zo0z patured 1sep) SNpay2s ured 1e31240{000°06$ S YDA Juiure]

016°6% SH sayBng UL £/807 ULg- PUE]G JULE A - “IbF 301AT3G PO,

000°61% SH SAUTNH IUULA] Iuexs - 1bg 201198 pooy

006°t$ S SaySnpy UONBIAZLIISY - 1bi] 221A10G Poo,]

006°cS SH JIed puepi Tauire A - ‘1hy 2014195 POO.]

WASAG AT 1S J0 LAV e 10N(000°C0TS warHd HNENIW aw2or]day ULIE[Y 211 TV

AW IOOT 1340 L6611 - §TEH SO NHST 140 5661 - 9L#|000°05S doyg Anuedre) “soueuajurepy (7) wep, 08D APIYIA

SWOH Jo s1geuaq oyl fudned ur dnors juswageue|y A510u5 (000" 6% yoa], ARy MO BULIONUO[A AS1AUT SWI[edy]
auy} 03 25eIURAPE AFNY B sMoJ[e OS[Y oW [ear ur ofesn 1oy sundnoso
Suip1ing moys o7 apqe Sureq Ag §1500 AFIBUS [ONUOD 199G O ATESSIDIN

TOPRRT #OM - V uodfo00°06$ SH Bodury USUTAORIANT J0OR] WAL

L00T'LS SH U[oouT UonmIaELaY - b 291AT3G Po0y

TSIS8T #OM - V UI0J|0000FS SV IIH A998 Bunueg

Juaa1ga AZ1002 JOU SMOPULM YD0[q SSE[3/UTIIsEd PIOJ000 08 1S §H squie SMOPUI AN

6T168T #OM - ¥V IHOA|060°5T1§ S sque Sunuieg

98.L88T #OM = V WIOJ|000°521$ SH uospe] UONBAOUZRY WHCONSIH

88887 #OM - ¥ W04 )|000°0TS SH wospey sonbreja

(5} £1T68T #OM - V ULCH |000°5T1$ SH UospE] (dien) wswsoeidey “Surioo)d

(7} 75188 #OM - ¥ 104 [000°09 1§ S squm] SuriooL]

006°F% SH SpreMpy suer uoneIaFLgay - b 201a195 pooy

005°8% SH Spiempy suef (ouedord) uoAQ - by 014195 poo.]

WEAS SIL] JSH 10 TV UE 1IN0 09§ §H sprempy auef JuauracR[day] ULREY L] LY

005013 SIN PURIS] SItme( UOTBIRSL)Y - IbT 201A%8 poog

001°2% SN pue]s] satie {opeiEdn) uy e “1ezaaa - b7 501ATaS poo]

6508ZT #OM - V UIOJ|000°05E$ 3OLBY Y YETH PUR]S] Solre[ Sunysr wmpelg

(100z payured ysuy) sjnpatys jured [pagaid|000°001$ S puRjs] sowes Junueg

s PUNOJ 318 SIOIAIP 2AIIJAP JI 35BN |00E'TS S PUBFS] SOWE[ SV Jo uonerado ya2y)) SI0SUIG

[TT44 SIS0y 51502 [euonerado aoySiy t Sunnsas waisAs Iy AL 2 Jo OO pue ‘s1osuag dwa], ‘ANPRUNY 2ATIR[OY MIBIQLERD
1831 31 JJO SuLMoIy §1 STYL UOHEIGHED JO In0/ULLONOUN][BIU SIOSUIS

NUBUNMEA SIPIIIe,]

spvafoad 91(7 1ea A [EISI] -~ HONEZIWIIPO LY WI00ISSe])/dIysaum( Jo 1567y paxig




00T'L$ I21RT PALIAUSP] 12Z331y - 3bg 201a09g pooy
aq 0], - SUOTIED0[ /S[OCYIS OM ]

00Z°ts 53 Yied oudlg AQTI IUge]y Swirep - b 991A138 pooy]

000°C1$ S e J ouols s20) 18N ‘Iaweals - 1bT a01a35¢ pooy

001°LS SH B ou0l§ {opesEd]) ur yem 12z - 1bT 221AIag pooyg

SO Jo sifouaq au) SwEnes ur dnoid JusmaBeuey AS1UT (000771 SH 1S SULIONUO ASIouT um)-[eay]
a1y} 01 3geIUeApe 2801 € SMO[[2 0STY AW 831 U1 a8esn Hay) swednoso
Suipring sMots 03 2(qe Suraq Aq 51500 L5I9US [OXIUOD 13)13G 0} AIESSAIIN]

4+ PUNOY T8 $231A0D JATIOAIP JT SSRADULI0G EE SH 121§, SI0SHAG

T[FM 835004y 82500 [ruoRIado JoySiy ut Sunnsar WIMNSAS YV AL o4 JO TOD pue 2mssard SpJg ANpImnH SANB[Y SIBIQIED
1591 9 JTO SULMOAY] §1 SIY ], TONRIQI[BI J& IN0/SUUCOUNT[RIL SIOSUSY

‘81894 € [000°0FS SH SO 18 A]947) IDUBUIUTEIA] SUILONLPUOIFY JORI],
A1aa3 uonipuosy seAK g1 ooko apf payernsy (o0 ayI] Spqesn 1Y)
utepurews 03 paoe[dal uaag IABY A0} IR PIUIRIUIRW 2¢ 0] PIIU SHOBI],

wawasedaa spaau “pajre] [ngog SH 5UYyof 1§ {1) Josuag Apruny aoejday

SINOH Jo sirauaq 2y Furdnes ur dnors JusweSeuejy AFIaug]
3t 01 aFejueApe 080y B SMO[fe OS[y -ouIy) [221 W oesn oy sprednano
Supping moys 0] 2[qe Furaq Aq 51500 £3I0U3 [0NUOD 19713 0 AIRSSIIIN]

000°51$

SH sWjor 3§

SULIORUOIN ATIDULT SW-[Eay|

(£007 payured ysey) appayos uned [2oyo£0 00005 1§ SH ser 1§ sunuief
uonetado sadord Joy pannbal uauisoe|dy payre|006°cs SH sef 15[ # NVIA % £ NVIA U0 sivfonuesy aoejday - sjonuo)
Aqqod 29I Jod parmbay - st F(000°S L SH suyor 1§ SFRIONS o0V

{6661 pawired 1ser) anpayas jured ea11947)

000°STES

SH 20IUBG SauIe[ IS

Fure, |

001°L$ S 2aURS SotURl 18 (apri3dn)} vl e “10zoaiq - by a0iAlag poo]
001°L% S 20UES SAlUB[ 1S (apr1adn) ur yoeay 101007} - 1by astatag poo,]
"£89[000°08S suoneaad(y e yona], 1adaamg ‘apnpop

Jo S1ea4 ¢ [ UL J[3s )t 107 Aed prnom aseram -sjof Jo sdodms (A[Ia1mnb)
Tuanbha1) 240U MOJTE PINOM A[213A Jo SeERINg (000°§7$) 10 Sunped
w01} saaea] daoms 01 Jeak & awir) T Jeoyas Jad 0§ €S 1500 APUALINy

000°6LS SN SPOOMILION | jo0U2§ INCYSNo] suokie pue sdouajunoyy aoeday

000°SLY ST 1SmYauL | [conas Ineysnoy) suone pue sdolruno’y aokdoy|

- (Z0L18T #0M) - ¥ W04[000°5 4§ Sq 1smyaulg SUTOOTISSY SEACUAY]

000°SLS SA Asuzour | [0oysg JroySnony suonmed pue sdopsjuno)) 2oejday

G0061$ S fyaaddag 1AUIRA] - DY 221ATaG Poay

- (9316387 #0OM) - v WI0.J[000°09% SINL SPOOMIION sumned

000°00T$ STAL SPOOMILION "[OOY25 J0USN04Y] JIBMPIRL] PUR SI00(T 33Rfda

ST JO s117uaq 2t Burstied w dnots juswadeuey AZ15UF 000 8FS SH UCKSATIRYT) YHON JsTEAOIGW] DHENY) MO

a1 0) d8ejueape aSny B SMO[[R OS[Y "ot [eaT ul afesn uayy sjuednooo
SuTpIIng MoOys 01 spqe Sureq 4q 51500 ABITR JONUOD 19713 O AIRSSAIIN

DUWEUINUIRA] SONIION I

spoaloag 91pz 1wa A [E2SI] - UOREZINIIPO A WO0ISSE} )/ dISIoUM() IO 1507) PIXL]




"Papasu uoneIodsuenl  [oogs e pajuswarduir Sutoq weaFosd man[000°0S 1§ WA FPALD sIopues ApNYS/sng AIANY
(FREERT OM) - ¥V WHOE|000°558 e Aawnjoulg Payg 35eI0lg
SL6L8T #OM - 193png - V WI0J{00('009% S praddag SINSCRUH Baly JAACD
wonERLL[000 6 5% SH UOISe[IBY ) YIION] 123005 “BELINANASY PRI
pue 23eurep ‘1) O} STUSWAACIALIN PayI} ONSYIE ONEW O St STY T,
pasadans ST (Y |060°005$ SH U03safLey?) yuoN TPISU] Jataea] g 3 yori], Honnadie))
S69L8Z #OM - PPN - V WU |000°08% S SHRNOA 2INS0[9UF PIRALIROS)
000°81§ SV 1T 417290 BUIELINSNT U000} [[Eqaysed
LEV8ST #OM -193png - ¥ WIOT000°0E 1§ Inreyny A1 pue(s] sawep apIA AHANLY
788887 #OM - 193png - v uloi[po0‘0ss SH splempy { sowef watraseTday aseg 2407y - BULI00[]
"SI Y05 ] 12A0(|000°06% (£) A30[ouyDa ], UONBLLIOTUE urp 0318 VPIUA
9661 - S1# Pue SIMUFHOT 1940 9661 - T1L# S YNOT 1040 661 S8t
- (BEETET #OM) - V UL 0009 Sd e ASuniy wooy [T TOYe[{eIsu] uonILE]
"SWIOOISSR]D A[LQOW 0] Fup)ing woIy Fur[em Taym 2yeam 0069014 sweiFolg 11815 peal] Sa1EqOJA] O Sp[d WEA] - SSUIMY
JLDUOUL Wy sjuapnys 10e701d o) safrqour sy 03 sardoues opIAGLY
POLLBT #OM - 198pnd - ¥ WO [000°0FS SIN 0Ly PEd 3 1007y [[Bq1dseg
- (Z69¥52 #OM) - ¥ U0 {000 06% SW SWEIIIM T O Hnoy) [IEQIYSeg % S, “Buroeyinsay
Aqqeg N|00005S SH 1Y 1sudeg SSR[ ST ATRUL[n) JO UONBAOUSY
- (ISE6LT #0M) - ¥ LU0 |005 6§ SH 23ing AL ‘BulIoo[]
a00°007$ S uolsungy spustuasosdw] oygel], - 1dasuc)
9TI06TH OM - ¥ ULC|060°5S SH mosw T (Bary ssaursng) U004
99LFOEH QM - V WO [DO0ES SH MY 601 (0D} wecousse|y Bupioo] ]
91LPOE # OM - ¥V WI0J|000°SES S 3fed ouoLy Sapeys
IZ1687 #0M - 19IPRE - V W04 {000°0E 1§ S ucysun(g {(ad1ey) Suiooy,
‘Jeoyos peddns 01 samanoe NClN000T1S SH AS[USY 152 (981071} sng ANTANDY “IdIYoA
Yum sng SMELILIOD 1940 A[JUAIIND ST 100D (§F6977 #0M) - ¥ WO,
“swipesdap o000z SH A9IYSY 1S9, sonbaepy eoejdayy
Afpidelr st ANSUaUI uoleuIn ] *930705q0 81 Ae1dstp uas juormyy
SIALDH 3C s1gauaq oy Fursned wr dneud juswasewely ASI0ULH 000 SH AYSY 159, Funonuoly ARToUH Fn-jeay]
a1y} 03 s8ejuRAPR 2501 B SMO[[E 0S[Y “awu1) [eo1 Ul 95esn Ity sjuednaso
Suipimq Mot[s 0] 2]ge Suiaq Aq 51500 AFISUD JOXUOS 191124 O} ATRSSIIIN]
(1007 parured yse[) 2(npatos jured (2311240 |00G°0FF$ SH A9[SY 159 Fugureg
SWO0JSSE]D - (RELFST #OM) - ¥V Uod[000°0LS RIS PEAH AD[YSY 1S9M Juatrade[day MopuLim
TZ898TH OM - V W0 T|000'95S ST opuem Fuuoo[y Axodg Jureg
000°8$ YInog opuesm U3AQ - "Ih 201AI13§ pooy
SO E Jo siyeuaq oy FwEes ur dnord wauraSeueiy AZIUT[000°C GH Opuem BULIOHUOA ASISUS AUID-|eay
sy} o} aBereApe 8N € sMO]e o5y o [es1 ul sFesn nay) spuednoao
Fwpyng moys 01 a[qe Futaq Aq 51509 51302 JONUOD 13134 0) AIBSSI0IN
000°5ETS SI00YIS SNOTIRA SUpNY ASIOUT [00Y2g
1sanbay] Aqqo0g I [000°05 S S[O0T25 SNOLIBA UOTIIPUOY) t7) “SI53E9E] JOT8 A
000°0¢% S[OOYDS SNOLIBA waurefdyy Suuwol]
000°001$ S[00Y2S SNOE A SUTsIqIngay “AB M 90UBNIUT Pie SI00(]
000°05$ SOOI SNOLIEA wel30l] 30URUNUIRIA SENLIS WNLICIPNY

§199{04q 9107 18I X [LISIY - UOTIEZILIIPO P UIeoAssE] )/ dIysIaumQ Jo 1503 PIxiy

IIULUIME A SANITIOR |




D00°LLY Sq Assmy sneday adojaaug 1or13xg

000°8% 71 Aesingy {seany osp) TSIH) SumUTEd

000°81% ST yed AAUNE sneday Suiaeg

000 181% S e d A2[uny Juaaoefday Sulrooly

000°L18 S uespe| sueday adojeaur toue1xq

000°65$ S wospe| (seary 2s) Y1) Sunure]

0060°L8S$ S UAPoODy oy Auswooe[day Jooy

000PETS SH squia- saedy Bulsed

000°¢1s SH squue] (suonIRg) SWO0HSTH

000°29% $d squie] (5eary 2s0) YSTE) Sunme

D00°ET§ Si spaempy auef sireday Suraed

000°61% S spIempy suef sireday] 2do[oatrg J0TI1XT

000°FT$ Y sprempy ouef SUOIBAQUYY SWOOIISIY

000°57§ Q5] saySny suury sneday] 2do[2Aug JoLIAIXY

000° TFIS G Saydny araury SUOTBAQUSY SWOOIISTY

000°19% SH SAYENY SIUUIAL (seary 2sq) ysry) Suruee

000°T1$ $q oT7 ‘FIN sieday Suraed

000°€1§ SH HOIZ N snedsy sdojauy souanxy

000°05% Qo Bl W SUOTIBACUSY SWIOOIISS}Y]

D00°SSES S worZ I TJONRLAUR [T Jooy

000°828 S HOSETL] O3 UOHE[HLRA ISR

000°61% S UOSEALL] sieday ado[aaug 1o11a)xT

000°8LS S UOSILI] juawace|day] Buroo],

000°05% S Aauour g sneday 2do[oauy JoLRIX

000°5s$ SN oLy sneday adoaaug IoTIarxg

SLIY INT 01 TS WO paonpalinoo oon’ 1§ Lrossayuoly Jadoas) jsey [11 2858 d ‘UoHeAOUSy ‘Bp[g URY

(ZLTO6T #0OM) - 7 TECTI000 000 TS STAL ASTUSV 1524, Al

3SBI “SJOOYDS JPPIN ASSY 1534 JO JUSuLFI[EaYy

LA T 0) IWT$ Woy pasnpa [004°600°1$ Lossauopy Jedoos Jseq 11 958U J “TOHRAOUYY “Bp1d UIEN

000°00LTS S Asuerg 1]J 9SBIJ JRUSEIA 03 UORBAOUI]

655067 #OM - V IO [000°06S SH spRMpPH f s Juaurareday MOpULAM

£TE06T A0M - V WHOI|000°8S Szl suiyg WasAS punog

000°05T$ 2OURUUTRA (¢) syoni], Aouasiswy “SapoIgep

Sansst A11noa5 [000°05$ S[00UOE SNOLERA sedoy ‘Surousy

000°05T$ i i [E12] “BUIp[ig o3es0)g

‘aul] Avadoid |00 0cTS doyg spunoiry ULy Wooyq ‘IOJOBI], “a]01ysA
puE op1s peCI T Furtinuny) 9913 Yym Surdesspue] spunois oy asn o,

"PRAIOEE mQ:&ONn_ QIUOII0A[A 10 PIBE 218 JJO OU (s WO Adoo OOOAODM% SO SOUBURUTEIA] Qm.ﬂ:o.ﬁd«v mMGMB@uD MNE—M_D
PABY 11 IR STUIMEID UOHINIISUOD [EINIISHYIIE S,191081(] S48 Jo Aumofeia

‘Jooyds 1oddns 01 san1ANRE BYIC[0G0°08S SH AQ[USY 1S9 (wunIpalA]) sig AATOY [DIYdA
M Sng SUIPIUIUOD 1240 AJUALIND SE[COYIS (L09SST #OM) - V WIo

000°00T$ S[00Y2G SholIe A sHOISURdXH TIOSSORIONY]

(800TFT #OM) - ¥ IO |000°0ZT$ SIA ATEHTIAL 2100, (L00#) (e31eT) shy ANANOY OPIGOA

EOE88T #OM - 198phy - v ULog|000°5Z8 S$Hui0d se[ng UONZTOSUTOT WEOLSSETD I00pito

(8C6FRT OM) - V TARIOI 00000 1§ {2} suv 2 Jo [ootjag stoog] Jooudpunog

DUBTIJUIR Y] SO

spaaloag 917 AR X €IS - WONBZHIIIPOTA] WIO0ASSE )/ AIsiaum() JO )1507) paxiy




6LT°L9YETTS 161G, spaaload [euonippy|

000618 s yeeddag sareday adoposuy Jouay
000°LT$ G5 spaemps €[ sireday] sdofaaug rouiaixs
000°57T$ SH Sprespy gl ORI AUSIReRIARY Jooy
000°191$ SH sprempi gf Juatuzoeyday Funi0o]
G00°€8% SA I[P woliercy JJONFY UOIEIHUIA ISHRYXT
000°L1% S5 [1eH uoel([ sireday adejasug JoERIXH
000°F9% ST 11eH uotien] {seary asn) yS1H) Bunure|
000°601% SH [[BH 2[jod sieday FulAeg
000°'91% SH [eH 2128 sueday] adojoaug oUAIxXg
000°'7T8 SH IeH M2 uatuase|day Furroor ]
00019 $H ue10s10 sieday Sueaeg
000°99% S UBIGOIOT 1JONIY UOLR{IIUI A ISTRIXT
000°9Z$ $H URICDI0D) saeday adojaaug 0TI9I
000°65§ S ueic2IoD (seary as() Y1 }dunme J
000°LS$ SH UOIS[RY)) YHON snedoy] Buraeg
000°6Z8 SH uojsapey) YUON 1JORY UOTIR[MUIA JSneYXT
000°6¢8 S8 uoIssprRgy) qUON simday adojpAug JOLmIX|
000DELS SH nosareys qUoN| HIONN DVAH
000°598% SH vasapreyn YUoN enayauawsae[day Jooy
000°TT$ 54 e d PUBIPIN saeday Juraed
000°CeTs SH Ied puejpiy suedoy odoaaug fouayxg
000°7¢ES SH e PURTRIEY wawaseday] RruIds
000°0878 SH JHEJ PURIPTA Juatace|doy FunySry
000°L6% SH e d puelpIiy (JotruT) Sunurey
000°07% S plo Atepy sneday SuIAeg)
000°8Z$ S pAo Aepy sireday 2dOTRAUL JOLNIXG
000°0¢$ ATewiLig [T [PIne | NyoLay UOKREIUA 1SRG
000'SEY ATRWILL] [IH [2Ane | siedxy 2do[PAUT JOLIAXT
000°ZES°1$ AdewL [IIH [PIneT ol DVAH;
000°901§ Arewniag iy [eane (seary as( ys1y) Funuieg
0000218 AR [T jame ] UONIDHE J/3IRP Y [/SI00(]
000°THS S POOMIINY siedny] SUaRg
000°97% $H poomiuarg sireday adojeauy Jouajxy
000°8% SH 13UBB AxER|Iy 1JCISY UCTIRIOUS A JSIRUNE
000°cFS SH 1PUIRIN AIRUTTAL sneday adojaauyg IOTINXG
0000693 SH 1ousey Aep(ipy {To11amuy) Bunurey
000°6LTS SH 1eusefy Ay aXeMpIEH PUE SI00(]
000 LYS SH smof 18 sieday Suraey
000°L81% SH suyof 1§ (rouup) Sunure
000°0T% SH i) vupidag snedoy adojoaty Iouaxy
000°12$ SH yrey) ewndag (zo1apur) Sunureg
000°CIES ST PUEST satuef (zoteapur) SunureJ

UBUNUIRTA] SINIIIE]

spaload 910z 183 X [EIS1] - UVODEZIUIIPOA] WooUsSE[)/dIYsS.I3um() Jo 150 Paxi]




| ooo‘oco‘s $ | junoury [ejof,
sisanbax 1| 000'st $ ADURBUTIUO)
:DEUD«DHQ ——M.w m:H:D«ﬂw\ﬂm—m HOH thn—m— ﬁOOB muOquE.wm:U..wO FDUEUUTEBLL DOD«O# W S[oOYas sA0qe Mﬂmoanﬁuﬂpm mx_Ub:vm POOM PRISATILATH
00008 § AUEY SAUTE[ 35 PO 1K71-5
eare punosdie)d plo wle-g 103 uamdmba punoifierd apeaddn| opo'os $ SoURE FAUR[ 15 PO 1AG-7
E218 pENOTSARTD PTo IAZ]-¢ 1o justudmbe punosdierd speiddn| opo's $ g Aawaurg pre 1471-¢
rale pUnoISARId pio JA7|~g a0F Juamndmba pumoidLerd speisdn| ppo'cs 4 ST R GU0lg PIO #AZ[-5
's30B1Ms wonoajod [[ef rqani Jo asueusiuiew| 000'sl [ spunoidie)d aydonpy spunoadie[d 1goo [[ox
Kraedes Jusprus poseasour oy anp Juamdmba penoBierd ppe| opo'sz1 [ Awopeey 12a1§ Sunoal PlO 146-7
{o00°00kS SLOATOYA LNTIWADVNVIN MSTH
‘sfooyes mog s3sanhaz a2In0say ALnNag iy 01 pezijnn aq proa s 00008 $ APLAM-IOITSI(] AousFunuo)
"BULie] pauels aary Jey) soaraap Smfe aovpdar s s poo'zz g SPIM-ILOSK] SISUUEDS pUe s19juLd JUaasE]day (101dey) TuowaBeLUR A 10JI81
quswdmbal 800°0L [ IPTM-JOLISIC] {sa[ommaa) swaeped joguoy) poe poemIwIS,)
JUALREURIA ADULSIaTIT Yiis $9191y2a 2y dmbe oy spury sepnyoux ST, "SI YR [ I2AC DAL
[1144 JTI0 AT L, “SA]IT (T 140 ST paoe[dor Fuiag S[oiaA Ju() SO[OTIaA o) sor[dal pInosm 1y ],
saapurd (] 99aprs yo juswaceidar ¢/ 0009 $ SIEOY2R YSTH U2 A[PPIAL (Y91 pue a[pPI} 1uswace|das sougoewr (7 JIspyg
"STR1sAS a1 Jo aFe o) Aq s1 Auond Jamasedoyg J0THSTT o1 s8010E sopeddn oy wed reak uaz| 900708T $ I[PPIIAL SPOCMILION;| sapeiddn Te)SAg eoUR[[loAME
“BurpiImg WIBTE O Ay
uonIEuEl IB3A £ 9T JO g IBRA| 000 06T $ SPIM-10IRSN] sopessdn [0u0)) 55950Y JMORIATY
2q PINOM SIY[ "[IEJ '012 SIS[JODU0 J00D UM sUed 40y o8uAaBos 03 Furaey| 2w om PUE PONTNUOISIP
uaag seq zedo[ "oy 03 e1emfos Zedo |, WO uomiswRy I2aK I & 1l K{JUaLIND 2IB D8
“Teak (JBa SaLIRINY 9501 JO €/ Jo uswoeoejdal| Q00°ET $ IPIM-IITASTCY ypwaoeldal Axaneq (nogdD) OIpRy peseg (008
Burofuo mwe ef s, “sndures wo veTEoIUNUITLS AdusFIatua 10§ 5o1pel waAld GoRq SEY [00YDS yory
0000098 SLIYArOUd ALTHNDES
R - vopemepdxy: JUNQUIY PJEUITGIETE wondrrasaq goalog g ool v

JUOURERUVTY] [EIGIMMUOIIAUTY PUE AJafes “YSIH

8)22[Dag QL7 T¥IX TEIST ~ MOLLZELIPPOT WOOISSE]Y/AISI2UMQ) JO 150]) DIXLY




| ooo'ser §] 1ol spaloag reuonippy|

'S00Y28 wol sYue) afrIols punoisrapun Suowsy| 900°08 $ P1A-10IOS (]| syue ] 2ffRI01S punoigiepuy)

SLOArOAd TVNOLLIAAY INAWADVNVIN ASTH

“Iref IR seuo aov|das 0) 19 myo oteds Anq osTe PINOM S1y 1 Jusiussesse rage aendoxdde| 00 og g 3PTM~ISLOSI(CT SOIpR1 paseq [o0qag
2I3TM FUIPPE JO/PUE Jrey SOIPET SE 23UEGIXS 107 PIZITIN &g UED TRY) SOIPRI (g Anq PInom ST,

‘Buiziprepuels a107aq yorqpaay e 006°0¢ $ 2pIM-1oLnSI(] eBeudis Buipmylem
O} WL paf|e oq 14 Aageg o1[qng <re)metwo[g msiatoqrer e wajsds jond v m Sumnd Apuoims sie
) S[POYOS N0 TryNm S8eudis SupuyAes Fupplelswr pue Sutidrisap jo sseood 9T 100)S PINOM SIY ]

‘JaBpnq 180} paxty szead jse] ur dn IMBIP 23om SURISSD| 00070 $ SHY A\ UIRJA OPUB A, UOIE[[RIST] 2[nqTsa A
[IMPNRIY SUSISap 313 JO soa0xdde J§() 90UO S]OOYDS 25IUY TL SI[NGIISAA [[BISUT P[IOM SIT,

"A[IS02 aq pINos SPoDA oY1 T a0 20137 Sumsme ay| poo'RT [3 uers 1y Fuwonay xmsuinad pumoiiie]g]

01 Buniea) pue saredsy] IYFIS J0 S| MO[[E 0S[e PIROM ST, ARSI PIWEIUIEUL 5¢ 0} JTI| ST
o} Futaro]|B B9 parea]s oy T SUEe] Ind piross oofoud s1g], “suogeao] [e10ass Ut seal) Sulpey
AQ U23(010 UDIG SBY PUE SFI[ JO PUS B 1B $1 1 S[EDADI UOVZ YA JO Toniod IRaT T §O JUWESsIESR wy

"IOTART3() AT) Furusasad ao/pue judino oy Burdimuapt wi ydiay{ p000L $ MAASTPIY PUT UNOY[E) ¢f wa)sAs soueiflaaing
TR AARY P[NOM OSA 13ym Smot 1992 SuIp[me 971 w ofdoad pus Yoip Jo sasuelsu [R13AAS
PeY 24wy o swegsAs BISTIRS ik FUPIING UIBW 5, MoTA0RDITT PTIg THOTIIE,) ¢/, JHIN0 Pios STy ]

"PDUEPUINE 28H O] POsT 2q P|nod S[H PUE sesng [0oyas| H00°08T ] S[OO1OS ATRIUAR[ SUIAISAS (T] JUSPIIS [00Y0§ Aeuawafy]

U0 1 0GM W0 TONRWLOIUT 0W-[Ba1 2ARY P[oa am aneld w7 and a1e swa)sis poddns aimng 3y “spedy
PouBlEse g “soog AIEIQI] N0 JIBYD "D 108 B SIMAPIG ASTAIHITS PU 1| IqEINNeIE SsEalaul
03} W2SAE S 2NN 0} Ssualtrpedap (18 mof[e prom TIL, “A7iqedes S arey plies S[00YIS ([§D0)
TIe pa32(dumos usyy “SoUmoRW TONESTNUSP] WAPHIS YIIA S[00YDS ATRJE2IIB[S JHINO PNOM S1GT,

SLOUTOHd TVNOLLIAAyY ALTHND IS
OIS IRTORE

T s

HOLEI

ANNOWEY PRIFRLDSH

paysanbay saalead ppuomppy

JURMITRURTA] [EIUIUMONIAN] PUt £)IJEg “Ys1y
539f01g 9107 483X [¥ISL - UONEZULAIPOLY WooIsSELY/ANSIOUMQ [0 1507 PIXI]




| mondwssqalosg -

1 000'00s'T $ | junoury [gyo i

KouaSunuoy 11945] 00052 $ 7510 AomaBurmo))
sysenbay Buriqe]y SNOSTBI[AISTA} 000°G0T $ TSI BUI[GE]) BIE(])|
"533 "SRIBUIE]) JEALUNDOCTE OGO'SL $ 7510 SIIQOTA] IALTUNG

‘spaeog reurg “JOH ‘FUIlqen Sapnow - SWooIsses s[ow 10§ dnieg
SYOEY FIOMIDN “TIAIS “¥d 10J| 000°0S $ €510 spuarace|day Sdn)|

a|qejieARUn 218 sped Justese[del puB AJUBIIEM JO TNO 8B TRY) S0 )
aqeqearun| 00005 $ Z510 SHIUIDORTANY WENSAS V([

are sped uawaoedas pur AuBLiEm JO JNO 218 JRY) SWSSAS YV +-0)
a[qeprearun 2 sped Juwserdar pue| 000001 $ €510 s1uaw0r]dyy SOIN0JIIATT HI0MIaN]

AJUEIIEM JO JA0 2R JRY) SOMIONOID JI0MIAU JHUID RIED PEE [00TS 4-7)
alqe[earun aie syed Juaweoeidaz| 000 005 $ €c10 spiowaor]doy JoAIS

pue AJUBLIEAM JO INCG 218 TBT) SI2AISS ISUSD LI PUR [OOTRS -0
s[qepearun| 000001 § 7810 syuatroe[day W)sAS suoydaja ]

ale syed atuooe|das pue AJUELIEM JO INO 212 1BY) SWISAS 3U0Y ] +=0)
Burueen) pue “Bunnseod| 00°0SE $ £C10 UonRIZIA YI10MIAN (T JOSOINA]

“Fuisuadt] Suipnur UONRISIAL SO HIOMIIN LJOSOIMIA] 0] [[RAON

T woueee e —

s193load 9107 183 A [EISI] - HONEZILIOPOLY Wo0ASSE]/AIGSIauM() J0 )SO)) PaxL]

AZojourda I, wonvuLIcjuy




| vozziz'e $ | [e)0., $193f01 enonippy|

KousSunuo)) [T o4 parRfe(t | 007807 $ 2810 s00kATag voddng fesiuysa | patajaq
spuaase[day] S[214aA 1 PAIAFaCT | O00°09 $ 7510 usumane[day] SO PRI
0Ty NIoMIBN “19A3S ‘Y 10J d[qejirarun] Q00T $ £ST10 sluatudoe|dayy §4n pasagaq)

ore syed yustmaoe|dal pue ARTeIem JO J00 218 18] SN -0 PRUsfe(
alqeeARUN aXE| H00°SE $ Zslo sjuotod]doy WNSAS Vd PALIFaCT

sued juauwaoeidal pur AjueLem JO Jho aFe Jey) SUIRISAS Vd -0 pauelag
ajge[iearun 2 sped uswace)daa pue AueLes | H00 0+ 1 $ 510 SJUSIR0R]day SOTNONII[H NI0MISN PRIIJR(]

JO 100 1B 1B SOTB0IIII[I JIOMISU I0JUID BIEP PUB [00YIS $-7) PALIST(]
a[qeneAeun 21e spred juswradserdar| 000°t6T $ €¢T0 SJustERadR[dey Jearag pailajeq)

PUE AURLIEM JO IO QI JBL] SI2AIIS IAIAD BJRp PUE [00KIS -7} PALRI(]
a[qefrearun 23e spred| 000°0TS $ 75810 sjuamrase[day wNsAg suoydafa ], panalag]

Juauaoe[dal pie AJUELIEA JO N0 2IE TBY] SWIISAS JUOYJ =) PIIIIJI(]

i O BUe mnﬁ o 5 ....”.«.E.EE paje m_,w T =e:e.uo.ﬂ......

= nondinsaisefory

-~ p3sanbay spaaloig reuonippy

ASojouyds [, wonewmaoyuy
sp3load 9707 T3 X [#ISL] - WOREZIWIIPOTA] mooasse )/ digsasusng 3o 1507y paxiy




1 000°TS9%6 8 Junowry (w0
€410 juowioda(g pue ‘ucnejuaua|di] Juswadeuriy 193{01g
AQUDFUERIOD) UOLRZIUISPCTN TOOISSE[D) %, C 00978 ANRFUNGUO]) HOPEZIWIIPOJY WOOISSE]D
06T $ Z510 AouoFunuo)) 1991014 07 ISJsuea],
000 1SS $ 510 Juatoe]day] I
Juatdeday] ATO[OUIA], JYA)) BIPJA] APLa-1o1NSI(] NI WRIB[EY TIJUILF
0SS°ET $ 510 BQ ASUS5UNUOT} 10al0L] 0} J8JSIRI],
00008 $ 510 3peIgd) A7V Wooipieey
00008 g 7510 AIR|Rg/Sa01Alsg oddng [eoruyda],
0SFLIE $ ZSED JUAIIIRTANY] WIMSAS OIPIA PUE pUNog
UOTNGLOSIC] 09pTA PUR punog apla-191si(] JUIMIIL[AIY WI)SAS 0IPIA PUE PUROS
000°¢S $ IST0 €9 Aouadurjuo)) 10901 ] 0] IJSUBL],
000'5¥0°T $ 8TEO AZojour22 ], 131ua7) BIPRI
JUSTUOETAYY ASOTOUYIIT, JAUA)) BIPSIA ap1aa-JoLIsI(l sapedgd) ASoouyaa |, iU BIPIW
00529 $ ZEH0 BQ ADUITUNTOT) 102[01 ] 01 J3Js0RL],
05T $ 510 $10[14 QP Mg
00G'SLY § (433 sqeF (A1) Uoneonpy ASojouyda ], pue Jadme)
0SL THF $ TEE0 TUSooe[day qur] [PIaUAL)
005°LET ¢ S0 JUA20R]AYY Jendiwio)) SARBRLSUIUpY
TUSW0BEIRY D spim-1osiq ymawe(dey Dd
0ESTIE $ 7510 £0 ASUSBUNUO.) 192l014 0] JJSURLy,
00L°LOF'T $ 7510 sapeaddr) SSapRII M,
05.°868°1 g 510 sdojde] 2ayoeay,
000°761 $ SCED SUBRITIN23], Moddng pue juswaoydoq 11t
000°0+Z $ 9¢T0|  @duBumuIEpy pue poddng il Yeorq SR 1
D00 00S"T $ sc1o|  uewdmbo Sunuoddns pue ‘sdde ‘spes ‘sases ‘spegr
spedl s ustusselday seandiuon Juopnmg
000°00T - g TSI0|  spw BuIping pue “Fuijqes ‘Sureo oop ‘spegr ‘sdoydef
“s1op0aford ‘spreog [MVIAS ([jyoRg ASojouwmday,
000°005 $ 9¢T0 yuowaoe[day qugyropalorg
000°001 $ $ST0 yoddng pure SUISHIDIT AEMPOS THVINS
sapeldd() AS0[0W[OA I, LOOISSRED) aPIM-101NSI(] SapEAB[} AS0|0UII ] WOOISSE[)
B TTI G E - ONEI0Y uondinsaqidaorg: o _

HOHEZIUIIPOFA] MIOOISSEL)

spaaloag 917 Tea X [€ISIY - UOT)RZIWIIPOTA] VE0OISSE])/dIGSIANAM() JO 3507 Paxiy




| oo0'zis's g |

16101, 5199044 enomppv]

JuawAo|da(] pue ‘uonepuawidury ‘JuswaFeuey 19301
AOUABUIIUOT) UONRZILIAPOLA] LID0ISSR) %46 PRIIA(] 050°0LT £3ua3uN1U0)) UONEZIILIIPOTY UIOO.ESSE] )
000°6T $ 50 eg Acngunue)) 1aload 0y Japsuel],
000758 $ TET0 TUSURIRTINY UL
Juatuadeday] P Apir-1011$k] paaIje( JUAWFIR[AY JFULLY
055°¢T $ 7510 By Asusduiine)) 10alo1d of JSUBIL
000°0$ $ 9s10 5901A12S Uoddng [eoTmREa ],
05t L68 $ 76 10| suoTppy pue sYUABIE[AYY WISAS VIMIA PUR PURDS
UOHUNQENS[(] 0APIA PiR PUNOS SPIM-101ASI(T PaLyacy JuwIeday) wWalSAQ 03PIA PUE PUNOS
000°5S $ 7510 rg Aouaduniin’y 10afoag 0] 1SURE],
(00°SH0’T $ 8710 AZOTOTAT. 193Ua]) BIPAN
1uaHdPIdY ATO[OUYIAT, JALUR)) BIPSA] HPEM-J0LNSI(T LRI sapexdd) Adojouraa], Xajua)) BIpagy
00579 $ 810 EG ADUDFUNUO)) 109[014 O} JaysuRI]
05TEE $ 510 S10[Td Qe =dmn,
BO0°SLY $ 7510 =ae1day qe (1.D) ueneonpy AZo[ouyda ], pue I2IED)
0547 THF $ 7610 awaaepdyy qe [RRURD
005°LET $ 2510 uAwIoeR[day Bndue)) 2ANBNSIUTLPY,
Juawar|doy Dd SPIM-19LLSI(] paLIafa(] wewazeday Dg
0StL8 $ 810 ') Adua3unuory jo2ford 01 178Ul
00£260°L $ T510 sapeFdp) ssafarpm
0ST'TSE°E 3 $ST0 sdoyde Fanaes],
000G 0FE ) §510 () S101LUIPTO0T) [EUONINNSU] jEIIUYID], {!]
- $ 9¢10 asurLMIIRIAL pu poddng Surumear 1
- $ cciofsdde ‘spedrspedt qum usweseydsy sndutosy Juspmg
006001 ) ZET0F  spw Buippng pue “Juijqea ‘sumd oop ‘spe gl ‘sdojde]
‘s1010alo1d “spIvos] VNS ‘[[Mdee ASo[oumaa]
000°00S $ 9510 JUAUEOR Y gy icioalorg
000°00T b §610 SouRUNIRA PR poddng preed LIVING
sopelddn Aoouyaa ], UIDOISSE[ ) SPIM-IOTIISK] PAIIIAT sspeasdn Asojougaa], Wooasse))
i e i S Twondipmq G o

1 paysanbay spreload rewonippy

TONEZINIIPOTA] WOCASSE[)

5392[00,] 9107 A¥a A [€ISI] - UONEZILIIPOTA M00IsSe] )/duysoumdy Jo 1507y paxyy




| oovons‘e $ | ymnouwry [e0t|

uoneuAA[dw] pue juswadeurlal 19904 10§ AouaBunuo) 046| $£L°061 $ 510 A£ouadumuony

UBMBOG UonuaALAU) 03 25u0dsy| ¢00%ss $ FEEO 11 WXz

slamijog JeueHzonpy| 405’81 $ ¢SO dourerg

SIEMIJOS UPNY | O¥C'L] $ I¥10 TV

wasAG Juawedeuely 20142(] 9o | G00°0S [ By 9610 WA ANVT

justdeues uonest)dde 201007y jooyag| (0571 $ 0LTO 0101y Jewg

US189pal 91IsqaMm JPuBIUL pue o[ GOOT0ST [ LETO W02 §]00YISPS00 UTISAPIY

2014125 UOHR[SURT ddensdueT| 38701 $ ZT10 IVSueL]

o1emijog Sunsa], pooypiyy Ajred| 00F11 by 0510 P~ TVICA

sremos AV T| 600°00T $ 6910 ST Fusurea ] 19ZRAOA

UOTIN[OS UoNeIFaun] BIe(]| (ST EL] § £L1O E1E(][9427]

wialsAg Juamaseuey eude)) ueump] dopaaag| Lo poE $ €L10 A - WesAS 1ustegeuey [eyde)) uswmyy

USAS JUSWaSeue]y Teide ) UBTUNL] UOISSTUU0Y2(F| 008 St $ CLT0| 91807 UONOGNLY - WidSAG Jusa3eurA] [elrdey uewny]

WRISAS UDTIRIONERIO) WOH-01-[oolos| 0477801 3 CI10 WNSAS UOIBIIUNUIIO, ) AOUaS Ity

ST “[IEW-3 Juapns ‘Funsog-qam | 000°6Z1 $ S110 (SII'T) wasAg 184 Funures’) jooyagdieys

AIDA0D3I JIPAID)| O0O'S6F $ 0L10 0C0Ta

Fursuaol] aOED PUIOY ‘AT MITY ‘Spupselog “radeygilayseg| 000°SER % €510 2IBMI[0Y DENINESRIJUL.
OIXIN/IEIN Y NOBAIO] "3 MINA "AY IS "DVN TRAON

SwAsAs payeja ovscydwa pue Furunosse pung| po00TE [ LELD suonyeat[dde ssaursng pue Walsis Jug

2IBMJOS UONBWIOINY I2JUa]) BIPAN| TCEF6 $ 8710 Aansact

suondrsqns asedqeiep I BIpaUT 3UTUQ | 000°81T g 3710 $30JNOSIY J[ED

alemIJos BuISIN| 00196 $ FEI0 QoL STFOYNEIH;

WR]SAS 12pI0 Yiom suonelaxd| L1€%6p g 1110 apnq |0o0Udg

SUIIAIIIS JOYUSIA JOCUIS| O0O'CE $ 0F10 JUABIFRURA] JONSIA J03deyg

uoren[eAduonensiga juadopasp [euctssajord 10] Blep [BISLICISIH | 05T $ $S10 JUIC) JRNSIZTY 010123

3UT53) puR SUMNRD eNy | 0S7°6T $ 9910 UL SJOOLIGATES

Fupyoen edaddy| goe'e $ Aoes L) ddy

LR T L U0 Y P B T uenduase@ peloag o

ATEMYPOS
spaoloag 91z 1u2 A [BIS1H - WONEZILIAPOLA] Wo0ssse[)/dIfsIaumQ Jo 31507y PaxLg




f 005266 $ | 1830,], s133f0.14 Teuontppy|
uoneIuSwE|dtE] pue JuswiedeuRly 10201 JoJ Acusunuoyy v, pauatad| 0oLy $ Z810 AOUIBUTIUC))
WIAJSAS JUORFEURIA SR, SIO| 000°00€ $ 1110 21eMPOS Sanae,] JOf §185
wsAy Juiyors], Asssepy R0 | pog0nE $ 8710 3IEMIJOS ATISEIA [RUOSIA]
WI)SAG JUalBIeURIAL JIAPIOUT WW2pMS| 000°007 $ 8TI0 09€ ANAZY
aremyyog ¥saq dpg| ooo‘ost $ 21empos Jsog d[oHq
g " - e T oneoT T T E R

. pRisanbay sprafory jeuoppy

spoaloag 9107 1B X [EISL - UONEZINIIPOIA] WHOOISSE)/AIYS.OUM() JO 1S0)) PIXI]

arem)jog




| so0°Lps $] JUROWY [BJ0 L
000°00% Jeoyog YTy opuey TR BuREag wnuelpy paxiy|
000°59 S[00UYDY ShOLBA Juatudepas(y pooypy Aley|
Eoﬁm y3iyg .GEE.\ ﬁu? wauroeday] Sumeds E::SE_E wﬁmm
G E.E..ua o " wogdriasa sloig:

- .paysenbay spaloag euotuppy -

| ono‘enziT $ yumoury [e101]

0007811 $ J00T[OS 3TH A[USY 1894, JUaR0T[doy SUDESE WNLIONPNY Paxt]
0006 $ ATONISAT (TS soowerddy
000°0TT $ JOOYDS YBIf AR[YSY 1S3 waw=og[day ¢ef s2mduo,)
000°0T $ AIe)ualua] TOSINL] Just2oeday] SN, ] WOISSE[])
00007 g AFPLUSWIA[Y SAYFN DTN JU3WIaoB[day] SIMILIN,] UO0ISSE[ )
000°0¢ $ 000§ ATRJUSUR[H UCTZ A Juausse[day] SITYITIn,] WO0ISSE[]}
00009 $ [OCYdS YAIH 1[eIS 9 npuRoRiday qe] 20UNsg
000°0€ 4 S[00TIS SNOTIEA SIIEIND) 95E)S [00T0S ATBIUAWS] Y
000°5¢ g LEH] 219d Tuawadseday 779.0 SpRID 15T
000'sT $ Amuswealy sumg y/SqE 20U
009°sT 3 Areluawary suing sqe] 1Inds
000°5¢ $ [00Y2§ Are]UStE]H 9GO ITy/3q2] 2UR12E
000°01 $ SPIEMPH g sowe[ $qBT ADBISN]
00D°CE $ SpIesmpr ¢ soue apeigdn) 2anpuin,g 2peid s
000 00T % S[O0IS SNOITE A 182anbay] 21047 pHAl - Y 2ImIuan,j
0007001 $ AROJHSAU] (TS0 AIOJISAUT TOOISS2[))
000'ce $ WUSB ATEIIA Josmad[day H129.1:] SALENISHIWDY
0008 [ 1I0SSYAIO SHOWILS Satuef UOHIPPY IOSSAIUOIN
000°¢T1 g Adsing] UOTHPPY LICSSAIUCTA]
000°€S % 93IJ() JUIWAIND0L ] SIJATAT 2 AlR[ES ~I3ANG WIAINI0L] HONDILYSULD)
000°051 $ uoEO unuaohsooum mEu:um_ 23 AIR[BY - JUAIBEIICT] ﬂonu_.EEoU
L JUDOMLY PACMSTY : =c:.._:3.uﬁ ﬁuqﬁm 5

juamdmby pue saxmx1q ‘sanpruwanyg

5193{0.1 ] 9107 1€3 X 8IS - UONRZIUIIPO JA] WOOISSE[)AIGSIUMQ JO )50 PIXLY




| vreioce g | Tejo ], s132[0.d [enonippy|

€ T -9 ARIOL]| 056°07 $ SIWVM
£ 8o ) - 51 Mutoud| §s9°1] $ Opue A
€ eaX -H] Aol $o6°6H $ SHVM
€ Ieax -CF Aend] 16161 $ Bufey
£ T3 -rT Alolg | oot e $ ST [ LA-SIAT
€ Ieap - | AICA] 008°LT $ AN
¢ reap o[ Awiend| Tz $ dep) meH/SWeIIME D
T 183 - AMOL| 055716 $ TTH 1stideq
7 feak- g o] oe0'Te $ AIS-HH-V A0

¢ e -, Aaond| 06T LE $ QLI /AU 21

7 Jea -9 Aol g| 9501 $ SOPISAIYAY -2I00]A] STUUR[-T[RL] f[P€

" JUNOUIY PRRHINST: gdiiosaqavalog

L paysanbay spsload reuonppy

| 995'961 S| Junomy [e0]]

| 3% -9 ANIOLJ[ ++Z°9T SAPISANI M ~SI00JA] STIUS[-]eH Sf[e]

1 T3 -g AUoud] 0S8°FC SB[ pues] SOUIE[/SWa[H AB[USY 1504

T 180 - Atoud| 0s9°¢l TOS[H S SALEDL) S84 N

T Teak ¢ fuong| ¢i¢'se S[O0U2S ATEJUSWIRTH UOISIITYD) IICN

1 Jeak -7 Sjuond| oos‘od 12 J OUMS-UIAPOOD)-STINg-SqIUE ]

1 Ie2k -1 Auoud| 0$g°so S[00UDS 0T 381(]

“ToAQ[ [BTIONOUN Juswidmby s3ULSENSIYIIN
© 0] AJOJUIATL JUMETISUT AT $A03d1T1 0] ATeS5303U ST 11 UOTOTLISUT
ST} 0} $59008 9[qEInba 5p1a0id 0] J5pIO U] ISLOSIP IR JY] SSOIOR

) PaSSAIPPE I3AAU SBY (]S

JuROWY, PAEWNSY

onduosyg 3asforg

- MO0

Sy
spaload 9107 4va A [BISIY - UCNRZILIIPOTY WOOISSEE)/dN|SI2UA() JO J50)) PIXI]




[zeerrt 5] [E30 1 39001y [Fuonippy]
papastt I00ES JO SoUE[ed| TLE b1 $ [O0U0S SNOLIBA (@014 43N] 10042 PPTA SPEAL LIS J0 20UB[E
T " ddd) _ T S ST T Y Y B

- papsanbay spo2koad puonippy

| L99°0s $ | yunowry o)
£99°¢CT § S]000§ SNOLIEA (9LA 301 MIN) 100U APPTAL 3TM 1DTISKT
000°01 § joeyag ydiH axpng SJAURH [feqio0]
000°08 § (001§ YAIH amg 10042 Y1 2qmyg
000°s 3 [OOUDS YBIL ] IUTEIA] LRI Juatudieebs oty
7 JUNOMLY PIJBELY : ERR 1L R o HORdLES(T 3aoag i ;

SINIPV

s19al04d 9107 18I A [BISL] - UONEZIWIIPOJA WOOISSE]/AIYSIdNAQ JO J507) PIXIY




| 9905t 4 JuROULY [€30,1 ]

"G PU0S B IO

pasu e s1 218y, ‘15e) Suwmels s1 weidord ABojouyps ], o1 Aemareny| Ho0‘0s [3 APPIAL ¥ M - SIIPTIS PAduRAPY ASO[OULRA], 01 ABMAIRL) O} SPRIZG[)
"paau 1 Jo uontod B 15A00

[T SIY T, “opea3dn Spast pue payepino st woolsse]y asudioug jeninp | 169797 [ OpuB A 7 1-H Wool 0} sopeiddn)
sEndwod yo Fuiperddn sjelissaasu

$2SIM03 UFISA(] (BRI Jo) sjusmannbal aremijos papeiddn | 0o0'sy [ JJ211RL) 1107 ury - samdwoes pajepdn
wooisseyd aeds soxew sy uy juawdinba
Jo wonoaoad I3)eq o] pue suone)] eoeds 0] anp papasu ase

sdopde] “sieandwoo [euotppe g1 sannbar werdord m 177d Jo uoisuedxg| 000°9Z [y s 107+ BEOOY - 1m0 pue SI=nduwiod man|
SASIN0D SISO JIOUE PR ASO[CUL2 ], 0] ABMI]BL) IPNJITT Jetf) STULITFO

7.1 Jo uoisuedxs ai} 01 snp popaau s1 ge| randuros payepdn wy| 000‘sH $ degy pre] €617 urooy - gej randwiod 717 SN B 21Bar)
“TIOFORIESUT FO AJIAT[SP JOJ AJBSSIOIU SI LIO0ISSE[D
21qe3Ins € 01 99eds [RIASHPUT Ue WOIJ WO SKY} IO UOISI2AUO))

‘wsLno I, pue Afendsepy “xofew 4]y mau e Fupuels aq [[1s (18] 006°c9 [0OU2§ YSTE] S,0Hof 15 HTTA WOOY - WO0ISSEE) Auadie)) japaway)

P e g T o : : e Ea WOTBIOT o 2o nopdusagryelodg o AT

s10aloag 9107 1834 [BISE - UONBZIWIIPOIA] WOOISSE[)/dIgsSIauMm() JO 150 PaxI]




[ SST'SLTLET $]  1moy pueis) spaan 392[0ag (Bu0DIPPY o |
| noo'sssez $ ] [810L, pUeasy 9 A4 O]
| o00's8e g junowy (€10
000 8RE AouaBuzuoy) Wersor g
§ EETT e

LouaGunuoy weaSoay

| ooo‘000 $ | ymomy Je3ey )

-V ASUaSuuey
onhena P

{1 - v Adwaduguo)

5| junoury [gpo)

Bunynsuo)) pue udsa(g|
saqinlorg:

Supnsuo’y pue n3sag
s1afoag 91Oz dea X [LISI] - UCLIRZIWIIPOTA Wooasse) /drfsIaume J0 1507 paxig




“ounty SCHOOL DISTRICT
75 Calhoun Street, Charleston, SC 29401

Capital Programs
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: ‘Michael L. Bobby
DATE: April 13, 2015

SUBJECT: Reqﬁest to Negotiate Use of Former Baxter Patrick Property and the Partial Use of the
West Ashley Campus

RECOMMENDATION: It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School District Board of

Trustees allow staff to negotiate use of the former Baxter Patrick property and a portion of the West
Ashley property with the Charleston County Public Library.

The material is submitted for: Action [] Information

Open [] Executive

Respectfully submitted:

Mr. Michael Bobby W
Acting Superintendent of Schools

Dr. Lisa Herring 7
Deputy Superintendent for Academics

Mr. Jeff Borowy -m
Deputy for Capital Programs “’KL//J fz k.m\

-

=

Committee Recommendation(s):

Audit and Finance Committee recommendation:

Mr. Todd Garrett, Chair "Zv/ / {,//? -
Audit & Finance Committee f/t/: K ."DWSK“;:;%



Capital Programs
April 13, 2015

SUBJECT:
Request to Negotiate Use of Former Baxter Patrick Property and the Partial Use of the West Ashley
Campus

BACKGROUND:
Charleston County Public Library has expressed interest in using CCSD property on James Island
(District 3) and West Ashley (District 10) for construction of public libraries.

DISCUSSION:

o Charleston County Public Library has expressed interest in use of two 4-acre parcels of property
in which to construct a 20,000 sq. ft. facility and parking with space for facility expansion in the
future.

e The Baxter Patrick property is a 5-acre site adjacent to the James Island Elementary School (See
Attachment 1). The District has no plans for the property. Construction of a public library on the
Baxter Patrick site could provide value to programs at adjacent schools, James Island Elementary
and Clark Academy.

e The West Ashley Campus property is a 92-acre site adjacent to West Ashley High School. The
District has a portion of the property which is unused. Construction of a public library on the
West Ashley site could provide value to programs at adjacent schools including West Ashley High,
the future C. E. Williams Middle and West High School Center for Advanced Studies.

e Staff would seek Board of Trustees approval on any proposed agreement.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School District Board of Trustees allow staff to
negotiate use of the former Baxter Patrick property and a portion of the West Ashley property with the
Charleston County Public Library.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:
N/A

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:
None

DATA SOURCES:
Jeff Borowy, Deputy for Capital Programs

PREPARED BY:
Jeff Borowy, Deputy for Capital Programs

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES
N/A

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES
N/A

ATTACHMENTS
1. Site Plan



Septima P. Clark Academy
15 Acres

James Island Elementary
34.43 Acres

Baxter Patrick
5 Acres

R""\‘t(“\mcn‘f !



ccellence is o

unty SCHOOL DISTRICT

ir standard

75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: John F. Emerson, General Counsel

DATE: April 13, 2015

SUBJECT: Revision to policy BCA - Board Member Code of Ethics

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve second reading of amendment to

policy BCA, Board Member Code of Ethics,
regarding contact by members of the county
and constituent district boards with parties to
pending matters.

The material is submitted for:

Respectfully submitted:

Michael L. Bobby
Acting Superintendent of Schools

N/A

Jeffrey Borowy, Deputy for Capital
Programs

NA

Todd Garrett, Chair
Audit & Finance Committee

E. Tripp Wiles, Esqg., Chair
Policy Committee

Action [ ] Information
Open

[ ] Executive

NA
Michael L. Bobby
Chief of Finance, Operations &
Capit grams

,4/

John F. E\merson, General Counsel

|:| Item voted on and
recommended for Board
A&F Committee on

E] Item voted on and
recommended for Board

Policy Committee on _02/12/15



OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL
April 13, 2015

SUBJECT: Revision of policy BCA - Board Member Code of Ethics.

BACKGROUND: Both the CCSD Board of Trustees and the various
constituent district boards hear and review appeals and other matters in
their judicial capacity. These hearings include student expulsion appeals,
student transfer appeals, and teacher appeals, among others. From time to
time members of these boards are contacted to parties to these matters,
e.g. the families of students who have been expelled, teachers who have
been non-renewed, and other members of the community with an interest in
the matter and who may be witnesses. In the courts this is called ex parte
communications. Such contact, when it occurs outside of the formal hearing
is considered improper under traditional judicial rules of conduct, and for
good reason. It is inappropriate for a board member to investigate or
receive information not available to others who may hear such a matter on
appeal. It can lead to undue influence and also the presentation of
information not subject to challenge or cross-examination.

DISCUSSION: The Policy and Personnel Committee has approved an
amendment to Policy BCA that would prohibit knowing contact between

board members and individuals involved in matters that may come to the
board on appeal.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve second reading of amendment to policy
BCA, Board Member Code of Ethics, regarding contact by members of the
county and constituent district boards with parties to pending matters.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST: N/A

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT: N/A

DATA SOURCES: Office of General Counsel
PREPARED BY: John F. Emerson
REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES: Yes

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES: N/A




Policy

BOARD MEMBER CODE OF ETHICS

Code BCA Issued 4/ 09

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for ethical board conduct.

The board of trustees of the Charleston County School District and the boards of the constituent
districts commit themselves and their members to ethical, civil, businesslike and lawful conduct,
including proper use of authority and appropriate decorum when acting as board members. The
boards shall have the authority and responsibility to apply these standards of conduct.

A board member shall honor the high responsibility that his/her membership demands by doing
the following.

e thinking always in terms of effectively meeting educational goals for all children

e understanding that the basic function of a school board is policymaking, not administration
and by accepting the responsibility of learning to discriminate intelligently between these two
functions

e accepting the responsibility along with his/her fellow board members of budgeting so that
facilities and resources are provided for the effective functioning of schools

e placing children’s interests above partisan or other political interests
e representing, at all times, the entire school district

e accepting the responsibility of becoming well informed concerning the Freedom of
Information Act limits on informal board member meetings, the duties of board members and
the proper functions of public schools

e recognizing responsibility as a state official to seek the improvement of education throughout
the state

e conforming to a standard of civility in interactions with other board members, employees,
students and the public, so as to treat all persons with dignity and courtesy; profanity, threats,
threatening job termination or abusive language is prohibited and, if used, may subject a
board member to public reprimand and, if repeated, constitutes cause of removal of from
office through the procedures as provided in S.C. Code Section 59-19-60

In order to build and maintain productive and effective relationships among themselves and with
the superintendent and staff, board members shall maintain a system of communication and
interaction that builds upon mutual respect and trust by doing the following.

e recognizing that authority rests only with the board in official meetings and that the
individual member has no legal status to bind the board outside of such meetings

e recognizing the integrity of his/her predecessors and associates and the merit of their work
e keeping an open mind on matters before the board by committing to a vote only after hearing
the facts and opinions of others in a board meeting properly noticed under the Freedom of

Information Act

e respecting the opinion of others and graciously conforming to the principle of majority rule

Charleston County School District (see next page)



maintaining the confidentiality of matters discussed in executive session

Refraining from knowingly communicating, outside of a formal board meeting, with staff,
students, families or others who have matters pending that could come before the board for
review. Such matters could include teacher non-renewals, student expulsions, voluntary
transfers, and other matters.

A board member should maintain desirable relations with the superintendent of schools and
his/her staff by doing the following.

striving to procure, when a vacancy exists, the best professional leader available for the
superintendency

giving the superintendent full operational authority for properly discharging his/her
professional duties and holding him/her responsible for acceptable results

acting only upon the recommendation of the superintendent in matters of employment or
dismissal of school personnel per the Act of Consolidation

having the superintendent present at all meetings of the board except when his/her contract
and salary are under consideration

referring all complaints to the superintendent and discussing them only at a regular meeting
properly noticed under the Freedom of Information Act

striving to provide adequate safeguards around the superintendent and other staff members to
the end that they can live happily and comfortably in the community and discharge their
educational functions on a thoroughly professional basis

presenting personal criticisms of any employee, including of the superintendent, directly to
the superintendent or the board chairman, but do so in confidence

Adopted 12/8/75; Revised 12/8/86, 11/11/91, 7/26/04, 10/13/08, 4/27/09

Legal references:

A. School board members are under the jurisdiction of the " Ethics, Government Accountability and

Campaign Reform Act," Section 8-13-100, et seq., S. C. Code, and are subject to rules of conduct of
the statute.

Such rules include, but are not limited to, the following.

School board members

1.
2.

May not use their position or office for personal financial gain (Section 8-13-700).
May not receive compensation to influence action (Section 8-13-705).

May not receive additional money as payment for advice or assistance given in the course of their
employment as a public official (Section 8-13-720).

May not use or disclose confidential information gained in the course of their responsibility as a
public official (Section 8-13-725).

May not serve as a member or employee of a governmental regulatory commission that regulates any
business with which they are associated (Section 8-13-730).

May not appear before the Public Service Commission or the S.C. Department of Insurance in rate or
price-fixing matters (Section 8-13-740).

Charleston County School District



PAGE 3 - BCA - BOARD MEMBER CODE OF ETHICS

7. May not enter into contract with a governmental agency or department which is to be paid in whole or
in part out of governmental funds, unless the contract has been awarded through a process of public
notice and competitive bidding and no official function regarding the contract has been performed
(Section 8-13-775).

8. May not offer or give gifts or promises to members or employees of a governmental regulatory
agency or department that regulates a business they are associated with (Section 8-13-705).

9. In cases where a potential conflict of interest exists, individuals shall take such steps as the Ethics
Commission shall prescribe to remove oneself from the potential conflict of interest (Section 8-13-
700).

No elected public official, regardless of compensation, and no appointed public official, regardless of

compensation, shall hold office unless he/she has filed a statement of economic interest with the State
Ethics Commission (even if a negative report). (Section 8-13-1110, S.C. Code.)

Charleston County School District



2} ¢l PaY OXN »excellence is our standarc
County SCHOOL DISTRICT

75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: John F. Emerson, General Counsel
DATE: April 13, 2015

SUBJECT: IMG - Service Animals.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve second reading of newly created Policy IMG
— Service Animals.

The material is submitted for: [ ] Action [X] Information
Xl Open  [] Executive

Respectfully submitted:

NA
Michael Bobby, Michael L. Bobby
Acting Superintendent of Schools Chief of Fingnce, Operations &
Capital Programs

N/A '

Jeffrey Borowy, Deputy for John F.'Em rson, General Counsel
Capital Programs

NA |:| Item voted on and

Todd Garrett, Chair recommended for Board

Audit & Finance Committee A&F Committee on

Item voted on and
E. Tripp Wiles, Esq., Chair recommended for Board
Policy Committee Policy Committee on _2/11/15




OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL
April 13, 2015

SUBJECT: IMG - Service Animals.

BACKGROUND: The District must establish a policy to address the basic
structure and accommodation of service animals on district property and
address the admission of service animals to schools. The attached proposed
policy was provided by the South Carolina School Board Association as a
model and has been approved by the Policy and Personnel Committee at its
February 11, 2015 meeting.

DISCUSSION: The District must comply with state and federal laws,
regulations and rules regarding the use of service animals by staff members
and student with disabilities under appropriate circumstances.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve second reading of the newly created Policy
IMG - Service Animals.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:
NA.

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:
NA.

DATA SOURCES:

Department of Exceptional Children
Office of General Counsel

South Carolina School Board Association

PREPARED BY:
John F. Emerson

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES:
Yes.

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES:
No.




Policy

SERVICE ANIMALS
Code lMGDraft 2[2015

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for the presence and accommodation of service animals
on district property.

To ensure that individuals with disabilities (students, staff and visitors) are permitted to
participate in and benefit from district programs, activities and services, and to ensure that the
district does not discriminate on the basis of disability, the board will permit individuals with
disabilities to use service animals in district buildings, on district property and on vehicles that
are owned, leased or controlled by the district in accordance with this policy and procedures and
applicable state and federal laws and regulations.

Service animal means any animal individually trained to do work or perform tasks for the benefit
of an individual with a disability, including a physical, sensory, psychiatric, intellectual or other
mental disability.

The work or tasks performed by a service animal will be directly related to the individual’s
disability. Examples of work or tasks include, but are not limited to, the following,

assisting an individual who is visually impaired with navigation and other tasks

alerting an individual who is deaf or hard of hearing to the presence of people or sounds
pulling a wheelchair

assisting an individual during a seizure

alerting an individual to the presence of allergens

retrieving items such as medicine or the telephone

providing physical support and assistance with balance and stability to an individual with
mobility disabilities

e helping a person with psychiatric and neurological disabilities by preventing or interrupting
impulsive or destructive behaviors

The provision of emotional support, well-being, comfort or companionship does not constitute
work or tasks for the purpose of this definition.

School administrators may inquire of the owner or handler of a service animal whether the
animal is required because of a disability and the specific tasks that the animal has been trained
to perform, but will not ask questions about the nature or extent of an individual's disability or
require medial documentation, a special ID card or training documentation for the animal or ask
that the animal demonstrate its ability to perform the work or task.

The service animal must be under the control of its handler at all times. The district may ask the
individual to remove his/her animal from the premises if the animal is out of control and the
handler does not take effective action to control it or if the animal is not housebroken.
Additionally, if the presence of the animal poses a direct threat to the health or safety of others or
would require a fundamental alteration to the service, program or activity of the district, the
district may be able to exclude the service animal. The district is not responsible for the care
and/or supervision of the service animal.

The superintendent or his/her designee will develop and disseminate procedures to implement
this policy and accommodate individuals with disabilities requesting use of a service animal in
district buildings and on district property and vehicles. A designated administrator will ensure
that all individuals involved in a situation where a service animal will regularly accompany an
individual with disabilities are informed of this policy and the procedures governing this issue.

CHARLESTON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT (see next page)



PAGE 2 - IMG - SERVICE ANIMALS

Adopted »

Legal references:

A. Federal Law:
1. American with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C.A. Section 12101, et seqg. - Prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability by public entities.
2. Individuals with Disabilities Education Act of 197 5,20 U.S.C.A. Section 1400.
3. Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504, 29 U.S.C.A. Section 794.

CHARLESTON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT



NATI€STOIN »excellence ndare
unty SCHOOL DISTRICT
75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Policy and Personnel Committee

DATE: 04-13-2015

SUBJECT: BEDB-E Agenda template

RECOMMENDATION: Approve revisions in Agenda template as proposed

Xl Action [ ] Information
Xl Open [] Executive

The material is submitted for:

Respectfully submitted:

Michael Bobby,
Acting Superintendent of Schools

N/A
Jeffrey Borowy, Deputy for
Capital Programs

NA

NA

Todd Garrett, Chair
Audit & Finance Committee

E. Tripp Wiles, Esq., Chair
Policy Committee

Michael L. Bobby
jlance, Operations &

son, General Counsel

|:| Item voted on and
recommended for Board
A&F Committee on

Item voted on and
recommended for Board
Policy Committee on qllﬁlﬂg




Board of Trustees
04-13-2015

SUBJECT: Board Agenda Template
BACKGROUND: It was determined by the Policy and Personnel Committee

that the current template for board agenda could be reorganized and
therefore flow more smoothly.

DISCUSSION: The proposed changes to the agenda template include
moving action on all minutes to a place immediately after adoption of the
agenda. It would be immediately followed by Visitors and Public Comment.
It also adds a slot for reports from ad hoc committees.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve revisions in Agenda template as proposed

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:_  N/A

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT: N/A

DATA SOURCES: N/A

PREPARED BY: John Emerson

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES: Yes

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES: N/A




Exhibit

AGENDA
Code BEDB"E Issued 8/08

The board agenda shall have this order of business.

L Executive session
II. Call to order, moment of silence and special recognition
I Special recognition (not to exceed 20 minutes)

Iv. Superintendent’s report

V. Visitors, public communications (not to exceed 30 minutes)

VI.  Approval of minutes; public vote on motions from executive session.
VII. Management reports

VIII. Update on items related to the plan for academic improvement

IX.  Potential consent agenda items

Issued 12/8/75; Revised 11/10/80, 12/8/86, 11/11/91, 8/25/08

Charleston County School District



Recommended Template for BEDB-E
I.  Executive Session
II. Call to Order, Invocation/Moment of Silence and Pledge of
Allegiance
III. Adopt Agenda
IV. Approval of Minutes/Executive Session Items
4.1 Open Minutes from Last Meeting
4.2 Executive Items from Current Meeting
4.3 Financial Minutes from Last Meeting
V. Visitors, Public Comments (not to exceed 30 minutes)
VI. Special Recognition (not to exceed 15 minutes)
VII. Superintendent's Report
VIII. Committee Reports
8.1 Audit and Finance
8.2 Policy and Personnel
8.3 Strategic Education Committee
8.4 Health Advisory Committee
8.5 Citizens Oversight Steering Committee
IX. Adhoc Committee Updates and Reports
9.1 Diversity Task Force (example)
9.2 Teacher Roundtable (example)
X. Potential Consent Agenda Items
XI. CAE Update/Management Report
XII. Wrap Up Comments




Recommendations for Policy and Personnel Committee Meeting — April 8, 2015

Recommended Template for BEDB-E
L Executive Session
I Call to Order, Invocation/Moment of Silence and Pledge of Allegiance
MI. Adopt Agenda
IV.  Approval of Minutes/Executive Session Items
4.1 Open Minutes from Last Meeting
4.2 Executive Items from Current Meeting
4.3 Financial Minutes from Last Meeting
V. Visitors, Public Comments (not to exceed 30 minutes)
VI. Special Recognition (not to exceed 15 minutes)
VII.  Superintendent's Report
VIII. Committee Reports
8.1 Audit and Finance
8.2 Policy and Personnel
8.3 Strategic Education Committee
8.4 Health Advisory Committee
8.5 Citizens Oversight Steering Committee
IX.  Adhoc Committee Updates and Reports
9.1 Diversity Task Force (example)
9.2 Teacher Roundtable (example)
X. Potential Consent Agenda Items
XI.  CAE Update/Management Report
XII.  Wrap Up Comments

Policy BEDH Public Participation at Meetings
Issued8/08

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for public participation in board meetings.

Board meetings shall be conducted in an orderly and efficient manner. Reasonable controls shall
regulate public presentations to the board.

Any individual who desires to appear before a regular meeting of the board shall sign in prior to
the 5:15 p.m. open session and will be allowed a maximum of two minutes to address the board.
A maximum of 30 minutes shall be provided for public input to the board. The board will allot
equal time for each speaker within the 30 minute public input time.

A suitable visible timing device shall be employed and it shall audibly mark the end of the two
minute presentation period.

An individual or group may appear before the board only once on the same item within a six-
month period unless special permission is granted by the board. No speaker may use the public
input session for personal or derogatory comment of any individual, to discuss personnel matters
or to discuss matters otherwise private or confidential. Speakers are to discuss issues, not
individuals. The chairman or his/her designee is authorized to terminate any speaker's time who
does not conform to the focus on issues.



CountySC

HOOL DISTRICT

75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

Board of Trustees
AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: John Emerson

DATE: 04-13-2015

SUBJECT: BEDH - Public Participation

RECOMMENDATION: Approve changes in policy BEDH as approved by the
Policy and Personnel Committee

The material is submitted for:

Respectfully submitted:

Michael Bobby,
Acting Superintendent of Schools

N/A
Jeffrey Borowy, Deputy for
Capital Programs

NA

Action [_] Information
Open [] Executive

NA

Todd Garrett, Chair
Audit & Finance Committee

E. Tripp Wiles, Esq., Chair
Policy Committee

Michael L. Bobby
Chief of Fingance, Operations &

‘General Counsel

D Item voted on and
recommended for Board
A&F Committee on

& Item voted on and
recommended for Board_
Policy Committee on "‘/ %}IC‘)




BOARD OF TRUSTEES
04-13-2015

SUBJECT: BEDH Public Participation

BACKGROUND: The current policy BEDH provides that public participation
at a board meeting shall last no more than 30 minutes and that each
speaker will be afforded two minutes. The policy does not provide for
situations in which there are more than 15 speakers or for other reasons the
public comment could not be completed in 30 minutes.

DISCUSSION: The proposed revision provides that where there are so
many speakers signed up that allowing each two minutes would cause public
participation to exceed 30 minutes in length, the time will be divided equally
among those signed up to speak. It also provides that each speaker will be
afforded a minimum of 30 seconds in which to speak. In the event that still
causes public participation to exceed 30 minutes, the time for public
participation will be extended accordingly.

The author has also taken the liberty of substituting the word “comment” for
“input” as a more appropriate term.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve changes in policy BEDH as approved by the
Policy and Personnel Committee

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:_ N/A

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT: N/A

DATA SOURCES: N/A
PREPARED BY: John Emerson
REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES: Yes

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES: N/A




Policy

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT MEETINGS
Code BEDH Issued 8/08

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for public participation in board meetings.

Board meetings shall be conducted in an orderly and efficient manner. Reasonable controls shall
regulate public presentations to the board.

Any individual who desires to appear before a regular meeting of the board shall sign in prior to
the 5:15 p.m. open session and will be allowed a maximum of two minutes to address the board.
A maximum of 30 minutes shall be provided for public comment to the board. If the list of those
signed up to speak exceeds 15 names, the 30-minute period will be divided equally among those
speakers. Each speaker shall be allowed a minimum of 30 seconds. In the event that all speakers
cannot each be afforded 30 seconds within the 30-minute period, the period shall be extended to
ensure that all speakers are permitted a minimum of 30 seconds. inputto-the-board-

A suitable visible timing device shall be employed and it shall audibly mark the end of the-twe
minute presentation period.

An individual or group may appear before the board only once on the same item within a six-
month period unless special permission is granted by the board. No speaker may use the public
commentinput session for personal or derogatory comment of any individual, to discuss
personnel matters or to discuss matters otherwise private or confidential. Speakers are to discuss
issues, not individuals. The chairman or his/her designee is authorized to terminate any
speaker’s time who does not conform to the focus on issues.

Adopted 10/22/75; Revised 11/10/86, 12/8/86, 4/27/87, 11/11/91, 7/26/04, 8/25/08

Legal references:

A. S.C. Code, 1976, as amended:
1. Section 30-4-10, et seq. - South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.

Charleston County School District




	.4-13-15 Meeting Board Agenda
	OPEN SESSION

	10.1B Head Start Early Head Start Financials January 2015
	10.1C Head Start Early Head Start Financials February 2015
	10.1D 2010-2016 Capital Building Program (Phase III) - Wave 1 Savings Reallocation
	10.1E East Cooper Montessori Charter School Renewal
	10.1F Pinehurst Elementary School
	10.1G Fixed Cost of Ownership Prioritized List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2016
	10.1I Request to Negotiate - Former Baxter Patrick
	10.2B Policy BCA - Board Member Cord of Ethics - Revision
	10.2D Policy IMG - Service Animals
	10.2E Policy BEDB-E - Agenda
	10.2E Policy BEDB-E - Agenda
	BEDH Backup

	10.2F Policy BEDH - Public Participation

